FACHL:
f THOM
FINAN 8@

P R@@ESSED |

‘
_____BISYS
\\\\\\\\l\\“\\\\I\\l\\\\\ll\\\\\l\\\\\\\\\\\\\\l\ ALJS

060367 =
(p=30-05"

[ RECDSEC.

|
MAY 1 5 2005 g

meseima e

THE BISYS® GROUP 4ac

| 2005 ANNUAL REPORT




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DENIS A. BOVIN
Vice Chairman
Bear Stearns & Co. Inc.

ROBERT J. CASALE — CHAIRMAN
Former Group President
Brokerage Information Services, ADP

THOMAS A. COOPER
Chairman
TAC Associates

RUSSELL P. FRADIN
President & Chief Executive Officer
The BISYS Group, Inc.

RICHARD J. HAVILAND
Former Chief Financial Officer
ADP

PAULA G. MCINERNEY
Former Chief Operating Officer
Oppenheimer Funds

JOSEPH J. MELONE
Former President & Chief Executive Officer
The Eguitable Cos., Inc.

CORPORATE OFFICERS

RUSSELL P. FRADIN
President & Chief Executive Officer

BRUCE D. DALZIEL
Executive Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer

CORY A. DOUGLAS
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Finance & Controller

JOHN M. HOWARD
Executive Vice President &
President, Insurance Services

J. ROBERT JONES, JR.
Executive Vice President,
Business Development

STEVEN J. KYONO
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel & Secretary

SHARON MURPHY
Executive Vice President,
Human Resources

WILLIAM W. NEVILLE
Executive Vice President &
President, Alternative Investment Services




Dear Shareholders:

We are pleased to pre:sen’r our fiscal 2005 financial results to you. Much has
happened since we Iost shared our annual results, including the completion of a
financial restatement and the strategic realignment of our businesses. All the

while, BISYS" businesses continued their solid performance.

Financial Restatement

Asyou know, the Compgny has restated its financial results based on the findings
of an independent Audit Committee investigation, which led to a delay in filing
our Annual Report on FcPrm 10-K, which is included in this letter. The aggregate
amount of the restatement is a reduction of approximately $66.9 million in our
stockholders” equity at lbecember 31, 2004. Over 85%, or $57.0 million, is related
to fiscal 2002 and prior yéors. The restatement has had no material effect on our
cash flows but did Chonbe now certain activities are classified and reported on
the cash flow statement. While we still have fo produce Form 10-Q filings for
several past quarters, Th‘e publication of our Form 10-K Annual Report closes out

our internal inves’rigc:‘rio‘n and moves BISYS forward on a frack of improved

financial reporting cmctj control. We are committed to developing and
maintaining a strong cor‘w’rroi environment, fostering high ethical standards in all
parts of BISYS” business c:rpd making the changes necessary to ensure the infegrity
of financial reporting at FB\SYS going forward. We have taken numerous steps to
realize this goal, including: 1) recruiting new leadership and supplementing
resources af all levels of\’rhe organization, 2) improving controls and processes,
3) investing more in Tec:rpnology and systems, and 4) intensively reviewing all of

our policies and procedures.

Strategic Realignment \

In the last 18 months, we completed a strategic review o evaluate the fit and
financial potential of all (Pf BISYS’ businesses. The first step in that effort occurred
ack in April 2005 with ﬂpe sale of the Education Services business o a division
of Kaplan, Inc. This busi‘ness is reflected as a discontinued operation in the
enclosed financial statements. The most recent action we took was the sale of
the Information Services segment o Open Solutions Inc., which was completed
on March 3, 2006, or in T‘he third quarter of fiscal 2006. The realignment of our

businesses is a major oc§omp|ishmen’r, and the timing could not be better, As




BISYS emerges from the restatement process with a clean set of financial
statements and capital that is available from recent divestitures, management
is in position to fully focus its fime and resources to create shareholder value by
driving growth and profitability in our businesses.

Business Performance

Most of our businesses met or exceeded their financial goals in fiscal 2005. Overall,
the Investment Services segment had a strong year with approximately 10% higher
revenues year-over-year. Most of the growth in the segment came from organic
growth in our Alternative Investments business and through the acquisition of RK
Consulting. An engine for future growth, RK Consulting makes Alfernative
Investments the second largest global administrator of alternative assets, with
over $200 bilion under administration and close to 1,000 associates. The
Retirement Services business reported steadily improving performance. Fund
Services had a challenging year from a revenue perspective. Two of its largest
clients, JP Morgan Chase and Bank One, merged and took their business in-nouse,
starting in fiscal 2005. In addition, the sale of the soft dollar brokerage business to
the Bank of New York and the retfrenchment of select European operations had
adampening effect onrevenue growth. Since the financial effect of these events
was only partially reflected in fiscal 2005, their impact will be greater on the
revenues reported in fiscal 2006.

The Insurance Services segment posted nearly 16% revenue growth and @ solid
margin of 26%. Life Insurance Services fook many important steps to get ifs
business back on track by improving customer service and positioning the
business for continued revenue growth and margin expansion. Commercial
Insurance Services grew its business consistently.

Reviewing our fiscal 2005 financial results, cash flow from operations remained
strong despite higher than normal operating expenses at the corporate level,
which were due to incremental fees from outside auditors and legal counsel. We
were pleased to redlize expanded and solid operating margins in the Investment
Services and Insurance Services segments, and we look forward to growing
these businesses steadily in the coming years.

Company wide, we confinue to implement initiatives to improve revenue
growth. This means infroducing new products, improving sales productivity and




better addressing customer needs in all lines of business. It means a commitment

to provide consistently

continue to seek impr‘

excellent services in all of our businesses. We will also
ovement in margins by reducing costs, streamlining

operations and moximi;ing efficiencies while ensuring we deliver on our service

promise to our clients. |

We are very encouraged about BISYS' future. Completing this restatement allows

mMmanagement to focus
our shareholders. The un
margins and cash flow.

We would like to Thonkc‘

on its mission of organic growth and value creation for
derlying businesses are sound and are generating good

ur investors, customers and associates for their patience

as we work through bringing the balance of our Form 10-Q filings current with the
SEC. We look forward 1o reporfing to you on our progress in the future.

Krast) o

Russell P, Fradin

President and Chief Executive Officer

The BISYS Group, Inc.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Annual Report on Form 10-K provides financial and other required information for our
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. Included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are restated
consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003, as
discussed in Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements. No amendments have been or will
be made to our Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the years ended June 30, 2004 or 2003 as all
relevant changes have been reflected in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
June 30, 2005. The restatement also affects periods prior o the year ended June 30, 2003. The
net impact of the restatement on such prior periods are reflected as a reduction to beginning
stockholders’ equity as of July 1, 2002 in the amount of $57.0 million. net of tax. Our previously
filed Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, and our previcusly
fled Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended Septemter 30, 2004 and
December 31, 2004 and prior periods should not be relied upon.

On July 25, 2005, we announced we expected to restate our consolidated financial
statements for the 2004 and 20083 fiscal years, the first and second fiscal quarters of 2005 and alf
quarters in fiscal 2004. The restaterment principailly arose frorn an internal investigation initiated
by the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors in April 2005 to gain a full understanding of the
facts and circumstances surrounding cerfain arrangements between the Company and
advisers of certain U.S, mutual funds. As the investigation evolved, the Audit Committee, with the
assistance of independent counsel and independent forensic accountants engaged by such
independent counsel, broadened the review 1o include accounting transactions across all lines
of our business as well as the facts giving rise to the restatements described herein and our
accounting policies and procedures related thereto. -




The aggregate impact of all of the identified accounting adjustments for correction of errors
on our balance sheet is a reduction of approximately $66.9 million in our stockholders” equity at
December 31, 2004, the date of our last publicly reported financial statements. The adjustments
generally fall into the following six categories: adjusiments in connection with (1) revenue
recognition issues, including recognition of revenue and deferred revenue from newly acquired
customer contracts, service bureau hosting arrangements, software sales and the determination
of gross versus net recognition for cerfain fund services activities; (2) accounting for business
combinatfions and divestitures, including capitalization of certain acquisition costs, charges to
merger and divestiture related accruals, recognition of certain merger related cash flows as
revenue, recognition of divestiture related gains and operating expenses, and amortization costs
for acquired intangible assets; (3) accounting for vendor rebates and other non-routine
fransactions, inciuding expenses incurred in connection with legal and contractual seftlements
and with certain fund services marketing arrangements; (4) accounting for leases, including the
recognition of escalating lease payments, the recognition of lease incentives, and the
capitalization of equipment lease obligations; (6) accounting for insurance commissions
payable; and (6) other miscelldneous errors, Additionally, adjustrents were also recorded for the
fax effects of the restatement adjustments and miscellaneous tax related errors. The net impact
of the restatement on net income for each of the relevant periods is set forth below
(in thousands):

Six months
ended
December 31, Years Ended June 30,
2004 2004 2003 Pre-2003 Total

Net income, as previously reported ... 843,606  $63,580 S 98,243
Pretax restatement adjustments;

Revenue recognition issues;............ 2,435 7,753  (18,918) $(46,430) S (55,160)

Business combinations and

divestitures ................. TETTUTTR (836) (6,765)  (6,636) (22,562) (35,799
Vendor rebates and other f
non-routine fransactions ............. 3,035 4,728 (4,299) (8,842 (6,378)

Ledses oo (408) (1.872) (.01 4977 (8,276)

Insurance commissions poyoble ...... 1,957 (2,541) (489) (455) (1.528)

Other miscellaneous .................... 847 3,453 (1,285  (5.593) (2,578)
Total pretax restatement adjustments .. 7,030 5756 (32,646) (88,859) (108,719)
Tax effect of restatement adjustments . 2,509 2,361 (11,687) (31,822) (38.639)
Restatement adjustments for tox

MAtters ... — 3.156) — — (3,156
Effect of net restatement odjaus’rmems . 4,521 6,551 (20,959 $(57.037) $ (66.924)
Net income, as restated ................. $48,127  $70,131 §$ 77,284

A detailed description éf the adjustment items and tables showing the effects of the
classification and res’rofemer)f adjustments are set forth in Note 3 to our consolidated financial
statements included in Part ll, tem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have aiso identified internal control deficiencies, and have suggested changes to our
internal controls over financial reporting, some of which we have begun toimplement and others
of which we intend to implement during the course of fiscal 2006 and beyond, which are
designed to remediate the deficiencies described in Management’s Report on Infernal Control
Over Financial Reporting set forth in Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Management
has reviewed the internal control deficiencies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,
and has advised the Audit Committee that the control deficiencies constituted material
weaknesses in our infernal controls over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report and the docurﬁen‘rs incorporated by reference in this report confain “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the securifies laws. These forward-looking statements
are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. All
statements other than statements of historical facts included or incorporated by reference in this
report, regarding our strategy, future operations, financial position, estimated revenues and
expenses, projected costs, prospects, and plans and objectives of management are forward-
Iooklng statements. When used in this reporr or mcorporofed by reference herein, the words

“will,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “plan,” “target” and
similar expressions are lnfended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-
looking statements contain such identifying words. All forward-looking statfements speak only as
of the date of this report. We do not undertake any obligation to update or revise publicly any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
Although we believe that our plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested by the
forward-looking statements we make in this report and in documents incorporated by reference
herein are reasonable, we can give no assurance that such plans, intentions or expectations will
be achieved. Factors that could cause our results to materially differ from our expectations
include, but are not limited to, those factors set forth in this report under item 1 “Business — Risk
Factors.” The cautionary statements qualify all forward-looking statements attributable to us or
persons acting on our behalf, Unless otherwise indicated, all statistical information provided is as
of June 30, 2005.

PART |

ITEM 1. Business.

The BISYS® Group, Inc., together with its wholly owned subsidiaries, supports more than
1,000 clients throughout the financial services industry with products and services provided
through three principal business groups: BISYS Investment Services, BISYS Insurance Services, and
BISYS Information Services. We provide fund accounting and administrative services to more than
2,800 mutfual funds, hedge funds, private equity funds and other investment products
representing more than $500 bilion in assets under contract; provide retirement plan
recordkeeping services 1o more than 19,000 companies and individuals in partnership with more
than 50 of the nation’s leading bank and investment management companies; provide life
and commercial property/casualty insurance distribution solutions, and related products and
services; and provide information processing and check imaging solutions to more than
1,000 banks, insurance comp‘onies and corporations nationwide.

We seek 1o be our clients! single source for our offered cutsourcing solutions and 1o improve
their performance, profitability and competitive position. We endeavor to differentiate our
services by delivering superior quality, with a particular focus on client retention and customer
safisfaction. We increase our revenues through (i) organic growth of our clients, (i) sales
of additional products and: services to existing clients, (i) direct sales to new clients, and
(iv) acquisitions of businesses that provide similar and/or complementary services to financial
organizations and other cus’romers.

We were organized in Augus’r 1989 to acquire certain banking and thrift data processing
operations of Automatic Do‘rc Processing, Inc. (CADP”). Our initial business was established in
1966 by United Data Processmg inc., the predecessor of the banking and thriff information
processing operations of ADP. Together with our predecessors, we have been providing
outsourcing solutions to the financial services industry for more than 39 years. We are
incorporated under the laws of Delaware, and our principal executive offices are located at
105 Eisenhower Parkway, Roseland, New Jersey 07068 (telephone 973-461-2500).




Business Strategy

Financial organizations foday are challenged o compete more effectively, improve
productivity and maximize profits during periods of both economic growth and decline. We
provide viable alternatives for automating critical tasks and functions, and provide specific
expertise and experience to financial organizations. Through our outsourcing solutions, we Qssist
clients in achieving operational and economic benefits, and provide our clients with
opportunities to generate incremental revenues.

Qur objectives are 1o increase our client base and to expand the services we offer to them.
We seek to be the premier, full-service outsourcing business partner focused on enhancing our
clients” growth, profits and performance. We seek to build value for our shareholders by
increasing both revenues and earnings per share, through a combination of organic growth from
existing clients, cross sales to existing clients, sales to new clients and strategic acquisitions.

We provide our products and services principally through three major business groups:
BISYS Investment Services, BISYS Insurance Services, and BISYS Information Services. These
business groups are separately managed, strategic business units and are reported as operating
segments. Certain of the business segment information required to be included herein is
incorporated herein by reference from Nofe 12 of our consolidated financial statements
included in Part I, Itfem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. On September 15, 2005, we
announced that we entered intfo an agreement 1o sell the Information Services group to Open
Solutions Inc. for approximately $470 million in cash, subject to final working capital and ofher
adjustments. The transaction closed on March 3, 2006 and net proceeds after transaction costs
and the payment of faxes are expected o be approximately $300 million.

BISYS Investment Services

Our Investment Services group provides a broad array of investment services, including
mutual fund, separately managed account, hedge fund, private equity fund and retirement
plan services. ‘

We support approximately 80 domestic and offshore mutual fund clients, representing more
than 1,200 registered and non-registered funds and more than $400 billion in assets. Our fund
services include administration, accounting, transfer agency, shareholder services, legal
compliance and regulatory support. Our fee structure for mutual fund clients is, in some cases,
based on the average net asset vaiue of the fund, subject fo minimum charges, and in some
cases consists of or includes account-based fees and other fixed charges. Through our Financial
Research Corporation (FRC) subsidiary, we also provide the market analytics, research and
consulting services financial services firms need to develop and distribute competitive products
and services. These services are typically provided on a subscription basis.

We are aleading global hedge fund administrator, supporting more than 1,600 hedge funds,
funds of hedge funds and other alternative investments, We are also a leading provider of
accounting, administration and tax services for private equity funds, supporting over 300 funds.
Our full-service hedge fund solution includes fund accounting and valuation, investor and
fransfer agency services, director and corporate secretarial services, and legal, compliance,
and tox supporf. To complement and expand our alfernative investmen s businesses, on
January 7, 2005, we acguired RK Consulting, a New Jersey-based provider of investment fund
administration services 1o the hedge fund and private equity industries. Our hedge fund and
private equity fund assets under administration are more than $200 billion.

Our fee structure for hedge fund and private equity fund clients is, in some cases, based on
the average net asset value or invested capitfal of the fund, subject 1o minimum charges, and
in some cases consists of or includes fixed charges.

Through our relationships with over 50 institutional clients, we support more than 12,000 smaill
and mid-size retirement plans and their approximately 1.6 million eligible employees. Cur




|

comprehensive refirement plan solution includes prototype plan design and maintenance,
administration and recordkeeping, ERISA documents and forms, customized marketing and
sales support, and staff training and development. In addition, we provide a turnkey
adminisiration and recordkeeping solution for over 4,000 owner-only Individual(k) pians. We also
support approximately 400,000 employers and four million IRA holders with ERISA documents and
ancillary services, and train approximately 12,000 industry professionals annually. Our retirement
services fee structure is generally based upon the number of eligible employees or participants
in a plan subject to certain minimums, as well as fees based on assets held in the retirement plans
we service, and transaction fees. Our retirement services documents and forms are sold cn a
per unit or annual subscription basis, and our ERISA training and reference services are provided
on a fee-for-service basis.

BISYS Insurance Services

Our Insurance Services group provides life insurance and commercial property/casualty
insurance distribution services.

We are ¢ leading independent provider of distribution services supporting the sale of
life-related insurance and annuity products. We support the sale of products from approximately
175 highly rated insurance companies through career and independent insurance agents and
financial services professionol$. We support the sales process for term life, fixed and variable life,
long-term care, disability and annuity products with a wide array of services, including agent
licensing and contracting, sales support, advanced case design, application processing,
medical underwriting support, commission reconciliation, and policy owner services. We also
provide a robust insurance ddministration system and advanced Internet-based caopabilities
designed to expedite the sdles process. The insurance companies we represent issue the
insurance products and ossume the underwriting risk and full responsibility for the policy benefits,
while the agents and ﬁnonmol services professionals that we support selt the products to
consumers. Confracts with insurance carriers supplying products for our life insurance services
customers typically provide for compensation based on a percentage of premiums paid and,
in some cases, transaction charges, and are generally cancelable on less than 90 days notice
at the discretion of either party. We also maintain contracts with the distribution arms of a number
of insurance companies, producer groups, broker-dealers and banks to provide insurance
products and services. Our insurance services fee structure is generally based on a percentage
of premiums paid and/or profits we receive from insurance companies.

We are clso a leading iddependenf provider of commercial property/casualty insurance
products. We distribute the products of more than 75 property/casualty insurance companies
through approximately 3,000§re’roi| brokers and agents. We support the distribution process with
sales and back-office support services. We specialize in insurance solutions for complex property
and casualty risks, commerCIoI and habitational real estate, high-limit property capacity and
property catastrophe, directors’ and officers’ liability, errors and omissions liability and
employment practices liability, We also act as managing general agent for various commercial
insurers, focusing primarily onthe fransportation industry and the workers” compensation market.
Contracts with commercial | property/casualty insurance carriers supplying products for our
customers typically provide for compensation based on a percentage of premiums paid, and
are generdlly cancelable on less than 90 days notice at the discretion of either party.

|

BISYS Information S_ervices }

Our Information Services group supports more than 1,000 banks, insurance companies and
corporations with information processing, asset retention solutions, specialized back-office
services required to support §orporcfe—sponsored cash management programs, health savings
accounts, insured deposit solufions and check imaging solutions.

Our comprehensive banking platform supports banks with integrated core deposit and lending,
commercial and retail services, ATM and debit card processing, electronic and Internet-based




banking, branch automation, customer relationship management, executive decision-support tools
and document imaging. We also provide a complete imaging platform, enabling our clients 1o
convert paper-based checks into digitat or “virtual” checks and o process them electronically.

The American Bankers Association, through its Corporation for American Banking subsidiary,
endorses both our core information processing solution and our check imaging platform on an
exclusive basis as the recommended solutions for community bbanks.

We have established a corporate financial solutions group to focus on growth opportunities
for financial services in non-traditional markets, such as healthcare banking. corporate money
market, retained asset and insured deposit markets, Our corporate financial solutions leverage
our traditional banking services to provide an industry-leading suite of outsourced solutions,
including information and transaction processing, and call center services, Our asset retention
services enable life and property/casualty insurance companies to establish ongoing customer
relationships with claimants and beneficiaries by offering personalized checking acccounts and
online debit and stored value cards as alternatives 1o lump sum payments. We currently enable
life and property/casuaity insurance companies and corporations to retain more than $20 billion
in assets. Our specialized back-office services also provide complete management for
corporate-sponsored cash management programs, money market accounts and health
savings accounts, insured deposit sweeps for brokerage firms and diverse other initiatives
requiring banking capabilities.

Our relationships with our banking and corporate financial solutions clients are based on
long-term contracts that renew for successive terms unless ferminated by either party. Our fee
structure for these clients is based primarily on number of accounts, loans, participants and/or
transactions handled for each service, in some cases, subject to minimum charges, plus
additional charges or special options, services and features. Our check imaging software is
licensed subject to a one-time fee with recurring maintenance fees.

OnSeptember 15, 2005, we entered into an agreement to sell our Information Services group
to Open Solutions Inc., a provider of integrated, enterprise-wide data processing technologies
for banks and credit unions. The fransaction, which closed on March 3, 2006, was structured as
astock sale. As consideration for the sale of this business, we received approximately $470 million
in cash, subject to final working capital and other adjustments. Net proceeds after closing costs
and the payment of taxes are expected to be approximately $300 million. We used the net
proceeds from the sale to retire our oufstanding 4% convertible subordinated notes due
March 15, 2006.

Contracts

As described above, we provide services fo certain of our clients on the basis of long-term
contracts that renew for successive terms unless terminated by either party.

Although contract terminations and non-renewals have an adverse effect on recurring
revenues, we believe that the contractual nature of our businesses, combined with our historical
renewal experience, provides a high level of recurring revenues.

Client Base

Our clients are located in all 50 states and several international locations, principally Western
Europe, Bermuda and the Cayman Islands. We provide outsourcing solutions to commerciail
banks, mutual savings institutions, thrift organizations, mutual funds, hedge funds, private equity
funds, insurance companies, insurance producer groups, corporate clients and other financial
organizations, including investment counselors and brokerage firms. Total revenue from
unaffiiated clients located outside the United States for fiscal 2003, 2004 and 2005 was
approximately $65.4 million, $81.7 million and $86.6 million, respectively.




Disaster Recovery Systems

We have implemented business continuity and disaster recovery plans and procedures for
each of our material processing platforms. The key restoration services include off-site storage
and rotation of critical files,. availability of third-party “hot sites” and telecommunications
recovery capability. We continue to modify our business continuity and disaster recovery plans
1o reflect changes in our operating platforms. Our plans include provisions calling for periodic
festing of the plans. which, in some cases, is conducted in cooperation with our clients.

Sales, Marketing and Client Support
|

We market our services directly to potential clients. In addition, we support insurance agents
and companies, brokerage firms and other entities in their endeavors to gain new clienfs. We
have more than 60 offices located Throughout the United States and also maintain offices in
Western Europe, Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands.

We utilize an account executive staff that provides client account management and
support. In accordance with our strategy of providing @ single source solution to our clients, the
account executive staff also mcrkefs and sells additional products and services to existing clients
and manages the contract renewal process. Using centralized resources, we provide our direct
sales staff and account executives with marketplace data, presentation materials and
telemarketing data. We maintain client support personnel that are responsitle for day-to-day
interaction with clients, and alsc market our products and services to our existing clients.

Competition

We believe that the markets for our products and services are highly competitive. We believe
that we remain competitive due to several factors, including our overall company strategy and
commitment to service excellence, product quality, a comprehensive and integrated product
ling, timely introduction of new products and services, and competitive pricing. We believe that,
by virtue of our range of product and service offerings, and our overall commitment to client
service and relationships, we compete favorably in these categories. In addition, we believe that
we have a competitive advantage s a result of our position as an independent vendor, rather
than as a cooperative, an offiliate of a financial institution, a hordwore vendor or competitor to
our clients. ‘

Our principal competitors are third-party administration firms, mutual fund companies,
brokerage firms, insurance companies, distributors of insurance products, independent vendors j
of computer software and services, in-house service departments, offiliates of financial
institutions or large computer hardware manufacturers and processing centfers owned and -
operated as user cooperatives.

|

Proprietary Rights |

We regard certain of our soffware as proprietary and rely upon trade secret law, internal
nondisclosure guidelines and contractual provisions in our license, services and other .
agreements for protection. Other than one patent relating o our check imaging system, we do
not hold any registered patents or registered copyrights on our software. We believe that legal
protection of our soﬁwore} is less significant than the knowledge and experience of our |
management and personnel, and their ability to develop, enhance and market new products .
and services, We believe Thbf we hold all proprietary rights necessary to conduct our business.

Application software similar to that licensed by us is generally available from alternate
vendors. In addition, in instances where we believe that additional protection is required, the
applicable license agreement provides us with the right to obtain access to licensed software
source code upon the occurrence of certain events,

J
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Government Reguiation

Certain of our subsidiaries are registered as broker-dealers with The Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC"). Much of the federal regulation of broker-dealers has been delegated to
self-regulatory organizations, principally the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.
("NASD™") and the national securities exchanges. Broker-dedlers are subject to regulafion which
covers all aspects of the securities business, including sales methods, frading practices, use and
safekeeping of customers’ funds and securities, capital structure, recordkeeping and the
conduct of directors, officers and employees. Additional legisiation, changes in rules and
reguiations promuligated by the SEC, the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the Office of
the Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC"), the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC”),
the Federal Reserve Board ("FRB") and the self-regulatory organizations or changes in the
interpretation of enforcement of existing laws, rules and regulations may also directly affect the
mode of operations and profitability of broker-dealers. The SEC, the FRB, the self-regulatory
organizations, state securities law administrators, the OCC and the FDIC may conduct regulatory
proceedings for violations of applicable laws, rules and regulations. Such violations can result in
disciplinary actions (such as censure, the imposition of fines, the issuance of cease-and-desist
orders or the suspension or revocation of registrations, memberships or licenses of a broker-dealer
orits officers, directors or employees), as well as civil and criminal penatties. The principal purpose
of such regulations generally is the protection of the investing public and the integrity of securities
markets, rather than protection of securities firms or their creditors or stockholders.

In addition, our broker-dealer subsidiaries are subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1 (commonly known
os the “Net Capital Rule”). The Net Capital Rule, which specifies the minimum amount of net
capital required to be maintained by broker-dedlers, is designed to measure the general
financial integrity and liquidity of broker-dealers, and requires that a certain part of broker-
dealers’ assets be kept in relatively liquid form. Failure to maintain the reguired minimum amount
of net capital may subject a broker-dedler to suspension or revocation of licenses, registration
or membership with the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the SEC, the NASD, and various state
securities law administrators, and may ultimately require liquidation of the broker-dealer. Under
certain circumstances, the Net Capital Rule also prohibits payment of cash dividends,
redemption or repurchase of stock, distribution of capital and prepayment of subordinated
indebtedness. Thus, compliance with the Net Capital Rule could restrict our ability to withdraw
capifal from our broker-dealer subsidiaries. At June 30, 2005, each of our broker-dealer
subsidiaries met or exceeded the requisite net capital requirement. At June 30, 2005, our broker-
dealer subsidiaries had aggregate net capital of approximately $16.1 million, which exceeded
the requirements of the Net Capital Rule by approximately $15.1 million.

Under the Investment Company Act of 1940, our distrioution agreements with each mutual -
fund terminate automatically upon assignment of the agreement. The term “assignment”
includes direct assignments by us, as well as assignments which may be deemed to occur, under
certain circumstances, upon the transfer, directly orindirectly, of a controlling block of our voting
securities. The Investment Company Act of 1940 presumes that any transfer of more than 25% of
the voting securities of any person represents a transfer of a controlling block of voting securities,

Our offshore Fund Services, Hedge Fund Services and Private Equity Services operations are
regulated’ by financial regulatory bodies in their respective jurisdictions. These operating
platforms are examined periodically by such regulatory bodies and failure to comply with their
rules and regulations can result in disciplinary actions (such as censure, the imposition of fines,
the issuance of cease-and-desist orders, or the suspension or revocation of registrations,
memberships or licenses of our offshore subsidiaries or its officers, directors or employees), as well
as civil and criminal pendalties. The principal purpose of such regulations generally is the
protection of the investing public and the integrity of securities markets, rather than protection
of securities firms or their creditors or stockholders. :

As a provider of services to banking institutions, we are not directly subject to federal or stafe
banking regulations. However, we are subject to review from time to time by the FDIC, the




!
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National Credit Union Association, the Office’ of Thrift Supervision, the OCC and various state
regulatory authorities. These regulators make certain recommendations to us regarding various
aspects of our operations. In qddiﬂon, our processing operations are reviewed annuadlly by an
independent auditing firm.

|

Banks and other depository institutions doing business with us are subject to extensive
regulation at the federal ond state levels under laws, regulations and other requirements
specifically applicable to regulo’red financial institutions and are subject to extensive
examination and oversight by federal and state regulatory agencies. As a result, the activities
of our bank clients are subJecT to comprehensive regulation and examination, including
those activities specifically reIGng 1o the sale by or through them of mutual funds and other
investment products. |

Federal regulatory ogendies have promulgated guidelines and other requirements which
apply to depository institutions subject to thelr respective supervisory jurisdiction with respect to
the sale of mutual funds and 'other non-FDIC insured investrment products to retail customers.
These requirements apply to, omong other things, sales of investment products on bank premises
by or through the use of third- -party service providers. These requirements generally require
banking institutions which confract to sell investment products through the use of third-party
service providers to implement appropriate measures to ensure that such activities are being
conducted in accordance with applicable bank and securities regulatory requirements
(including the agencies’ retail sales guidelines), and may in some instances impose certain “due
diligence” obligations on regulated depository institutions with respect to the nature and the
quality of services provided by such third-party service providers, Such regulatory requirements
may increase the extent of oversight which federal regulatory agencies may require our bank
clients to exercise over our activities.

Federal and state banking laws grant state and federal regulatory agencies broad authority
to take administrative enforcement and other adverse supetrvisory actions against banks and
other regulated depository institutions where there is a determination that unsafe and unsound
banking practices, violations' of laws and regulaticns, failures to comply with or breaches of
written agreements, commitments or undertakings entered into by such banks with their
regulatory agencies or breaches of fiduciary and other duties exist. Banks engaged in, among
other things, mutual fund-related activities may be subject to such regulatory enforcement and
ofher adverse actions fo the extent that such activities are determined to be unlawful, unsound
or otherwise actionable.

~ Certain of our operations are subject to regulation by the insurance departments of the
states in which we distribute insurance products. Certain of our employees are required to be
licensed as insurance producers in certain states,

The Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999 and regulations promulgated thereunder
-also impose restrictions on financial institutions with respect to the use and disclosure of non-
public consumer information. Some of our businesses may be covered entities under the Act and
therefore subject to regulations governing privacy of non-public consumer information. In
addition, as o service provider to financial institutions, we are required by our customers to
safeguard non-public consumer information of their customers that comes into our possession.

The privacy, security and fransmission of health information is subject to federal and state
laws and regulations, including the Healthcare Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996 ("HIPAA").and regulations enacted under HIPAA with respect to, among other things, the
privacy of certain individuol;ly identifiable health informatfion, the transmission of protected
health information and standards for the security of electronic health information. Although our
businesses may not be considered covered entities under the Act, some of our businesses are
business associates of coverad entities, which are defined to include insurance companies and
therefore, we are required by some insurance companies to comply with the regulations and
authorization requirements inpposed by HIPAA for all types of insurance policy related requests.

|
|




The USA PATRIOT Act and regulations promulgated thereunder impose certain requirements
on our clients and certain of our businesses to establish anti-money laundering programs. These
programs are required to include processes for verifying the identities of customers, identifying
suspicious transactions and reporting such fransactions to the appropriate governmental
agency, preventing fransactions with individuals in specifically designated countries
and checking certain customer names against published lists of terrorist organizations. We are
subject to similar laws and regulations in each of the foreign jurisdictions in which we act as a
tfransfer agent.

Employees

As of June 30, 2005, we employed approximately 5,300 employees. Approximately 550 of
these employees were part of the Information Services group. As described elsewhere in this
report, we completed the sale of the Information Services group to a subsidiary of Open Solutions
Inc. on March 3, 2006. None of our employees are represented by a union and there have been
no work stoppages, strikes or organization attempts. We believe that our relations with our
employees are good.,

The service nature of our businesses makes our employees an important corporate asset,
Most of our employees are not subject to employment agreements; however, a limited number
of executives of our operating subsidiaries have such agreements that were entered into in
connection with the acquisition of their businesses.

Available Information

We maintain a website with the address www.bisys.com. We are not including the
information contained on our website as part of, orincorporating it by reference into, this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. We make available, free of charge, through our website, our Annual Report
on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to these reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we etectronically file such
material with, or furnish such material to, the SEC.

We have adopted the Code of Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer and senior
financial officers. The Code of Ethics is publicly available on our website, Any waiver or
amendment of the Code of Ethics will be disclosed on our website or as otherwise permitted
under applicable law. In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of
the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee
can also be found at this website. Printed copies of the foregoing are available in print by
writing to:

The BISYS Group, Inc.
Attention: Investor Relations
105 Eisenhower Parkway
Roseland, New Jersey 07068

The NYSE requires that the chief executive officer of each listed company certify annually
to the NYSE that he or she is not aware of any violation by the company of NYSE corporate
governance listing standards as of the date of such certification. In 2004, the Company
submitted the annual certification of its chief executive officer regarding the Company’s,
compliance with the NYSE's corporate governance listing standards. The Company submitted
the certification of its chief executive officer for 2005 with its Annual Written Affirmation to the
NYSE on December 28, 2005, which was qualified to reflect that the Company had not filed its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 or distributed its proxy
materials containing all of the disclosures required under Section 303A of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual. No other violations by the Company of the NYSE corporate governance
listing standards were reported.




The Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer are also required
to, among other things, file certifications with the SEC on a quarterly basis regarding the quality
of the Company’s public disclosures, as required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Such
certifications for the year ended June 30, 2005 have been filed as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K,

Risk Factors

Our business can be signiﬁcdnﬂy affected by direct and indirect governmental regulation,
which reduces our flexibility dnd increases the costs of doing business.

Our business is affected by federal, state and foreign regulations. Noncompliance with these
regulations could result in the suspension or revocation of our licenses or registrations, including
broker-dedler licenses and registrations and insurance producer licenses and registrations.
Regulatory authorities could also impose on us civil fines and criminal penalties for noncompliance.

Some of our subsidiaries are registered with the SEC as broker-dealers. Much of the federal
regulation of broker-dealers has been delegated 1o self-regulatory organizations, principally the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. and the national securities exchanges. Broker-
dealers are subject to regulohons which cover all aspects of their securities business, including,
for example:

¢ sales methods;

e tfrading practices;

e use and sofekeepinq of customers’ funds and securities;

e capital structure; |

+ recordkeeping: and

¢ the conduct of direcf’rors, officers and employees.

The operations of our bréker—deolers and their profitability could be affected by:
e federal and state Ieg?islofion;

¢ changesinrules and regulations of the SEC, banking and other regulatory agencies, and
self-regulatory ogené:ies; and

e changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws, rules and regulations.

Banks and other depository institufions with whom we do business are also subject to
extensive regulation af the federal and state levels under laws and regulations applicable to
regulated financial institutions. They are also subject to extensive examination and oversight by
federal and state regulatory ogencnes Changes in the laws, rules and regulations affecting our
client banks and financial institutions, and the examination of their activities by applicable
regulatory agencies could adversely affect our results of operations.

Some of our subsidiaries, and officers and employees of these subsidiaries, are required to
be licensed as insurance producers in various jurisdictions in which we conduct our insurance
services business. They are subject to regulation under the insurance laws and regulations of
these jurisdictions. Changes in the laws, rules and regulations affecting licensed insurance
producers could adversely q’ﬁ‘ecT our operations.

A portion of our revenues in our Insurance Services group are based on income tax-driven
and estate planning-driven sales of life insurance and annuity products. Changes in laws, rules
and regulations relating to income taxes and estate taxes could adversely affect this portion of
our business. ‘




In addition, the applicability of laws and regulations directly applicable to the businesses of
the clients and companies we represent, particularly in the fields of banking, investing and
insurance, will continue to affect us. The security of information about our clients’ end-users
continues to be an area where a variety of laws and regulations with respect to privacy and
confidentiality are enacted. As our clients implement the protections and prohibifions with
respect to the transmission of end-user data, our customers will look to us to assist them in
remaining in compliance with this evolving area of regulation. In particular the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act contains restrictions with respect to the use and protection of financial records for end-
users whose information may pass through our systems and the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) confains provisions that require the insuronce companies we
represent 1o ensure the confidentiality of their policy holders’ health care information. If we
violate these privacy standards, we may be subject to fines, sanctions and penalties.

Our revenues and earnings are subject to changes, which could negatively impact our
financial results.

A significant portion of our earnings are derived from fees based on the average market
value of the assets we administer for our clients, Changes in interest rates or a substantial decline
in the securities market could influence an investor’s decision whether to invest or maintain an
investment in aninvestment vehicle administered by us. As a result, fluctuations could occur in
the amount of assets which we administer. If investors were to seek alternatives fo those
investment vehicles, it could have a negative impact on our revenues by reducing the amount
of assets we administer, Revenues in our insurance services business are derived from
commissions, which are less predictable than our other revenues. In addition, the cyclical nature
of life and commercial property/casualty premium rates may make the financial results in our
insurance services business volatile and unpredictable.

Material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and disclosure
controls and procedures could adversely impact the reliability of our internal control
over financial reporting.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
as of June 30, 2005, and this assessment identified material weaknesses in ourinternal control over
financial reporting. As a result, cur management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was not effective as of June 30, 2005. For a discussion of these material
weaknesses and our responsive measures, please see “ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures” of this
report. Matferial weaknesses and other control deficiencies in our internal control over financial
reporting and disclosure controls and procedures have led 1o restatements of our consolidated
financial statements. Since the identification of the material weaknesses, we have implemented
and are continuing to implement various initiatives infended to improve our interal control over
financial. reporting and disclosure controls and procedures to address these material
weaknesses. No assurance can be given that we will be able to successfully implement
remediated controls and procedures or that our remediated controls and procedures will be
effective in remedying all identified deficiencies in our intfernal control over financial reporting
and disclosure controls and procedures. There also can be no assurances that these material
weaknesses will be rectified or that additional material weaknesses in our internal controls will not
be identified. The existence of one or more material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting impacts the reliability of our internal control over financial reporting.

We are currently a defendant in securities litigation and may be the target of further actions,
which may be costly and time-consuming to defend.

We are currently subject to legal proceedings and claims, including securities class action
lawsuits and a shareholder derivative lawsuit. In the future, more lawsuits may be filed against
us. See Part |, lfem 3, “Legal Proceedings.” The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot
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presently be determined and may require significant commitment of our financial and
management resources and time, which may harm our business, financial condition and results
of operations. There can be no assurances that any of the claims can be resolved without costly
and protfracted litigation, and the outcome may have a material adverse impact upon our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Defending against existing and potential
fitigation relating to the resToTémenT of our consolidated financial statements, or responding to
other regulafory inquiries or mveshgohons will likely require significant time, attention and
resources of management, WhICh may adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. _1

We are subject to an SEC investigation relating to the restatement of our financial statements.

We notified the SEC in May 2004 that we would restate certain prior period financial
statements, and subsequently, the SEC advised the Company that it was conducting an
investigation into the facts and circumstances related to this restatement. On May 17, 2004, we
announced that we would resToTe our financial results for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003,
2002, and 2001 and for the quorrers ended December 31 and September 30, 2003 (the "2004
restatement”) in order to record adjustments for correction of errors resulting from various
accounting matters in the Llfe Insurance Services division. An amended Annual Report on
Form 10-K forthe ﬂscolyeorended June 30, 2003 was filed with the SEC on August 10, 2004 along
with amended Quarterly Reporfs on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended December 31 and
September 30, 2003 to reflect the restated financial results. In July 2005, the Company
determined that an additional restatement of previously issued financial statements was
necessary and the SEC's mveshgchon has been expanded to include.the 2005 restatement. The
investigation is ongoing. We have cooperated and intend to confinue fo cooperate with the
SEC'sinvestigation, which hasresulted and will likely continue to result in significant expenses. We
cannot predict when the SEC will conclude ifs investigation or the outcome or impact thereof.

We are subject to an SEC invgstigotion related to marketing and distribution arrangements in
our mutual funds business.

We also are responding}‘ro an SEC investigation and requests for information related to
marketing and distribution arrangements in the fund services business. We have cooperated and
intend to continue fo cooperate with the SEC’s investigation. While we have submitted an offer
of seftlement, which has the support of the SEC Staff. the Staff has not yet presented the offer
of settlement to the Commission for approval and no assurance can be give that such approval
will be granted. We have established an estimated liability of $20.9 million at June 30, 2005,
representing expected cmoun’rs to be paid as part of the settlement.

The SEC investigations may negahvely impact the Company.

Our senior. management and Board of Directors have been required to devote significant
time to the SEC investigations and related matters and may in the future be required to continue
to do so. Expenses incurred in connection with these investigations (which include substantial
fees of lawyers and other professional advisors and potential obligations to indemnify officers and
directors who may be partiesito such actions) could adversely affect our cash position. As a result
of the investigations beyond what has been described above in connection with the marketing
and distribution arrangements, we may be required to pay material fines, consent to injunctions
on future conduct or suffer other penalties, each of which could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. Moreover, any further
action by the SEC against us, and potentially members of our management, may cause the
company to be subject to imjunctions, fines and other penatties or sanctions or result in private
civil actions, loss of key personnel or other adverse conseguences and may require us to devote
additional time and resources to these matters. The investigation may adversely affect our ability
to obtain, and/orincrease the cost of obtaining, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and/or
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other types of insurance, which could have a material adverse affect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition. In addition, the SEC investigations and the remedies applied
may affect certain of our busmess relc‘rlonsh|ps and consequently may hc:ve an adverse effect
on our business in the fufure. .

Our acquisition strategy subjects us to risks, inciuding mcreased debt, assumptlon of
unforeseen liabilities and difficulties in integrating operations. -

Since our founding, we have acquired a number of oTher companies. We may make
additional acquisitions. We cannot predict if or when any additional acquisitions will occur or
whether they will be successful.

Acquiring a business involves many risks, including:

* incurrence of unforeseen obligations or liabilities;

o difficulty in integrating the acquired operations and personnel; 4

o difficulty in maintaining uniform conftrols, procedures and policies;

¢ possible impairment of relationships with employees and customers as a resulT of the
integration of new personnsl;

o risk of entering markets in which we have minimal prior experience;

o decrease in earnings as a result of non-cash charges;

o dilution to existing sToékholders from the issuance of our common stock to make or
finance acguisitions; and

¢ incurrence of déb’r.

Our systems may be subject to infiltration by unauthorized persons.

We maintain and process data on behalf of our clients, some of which is crifical to the
business operations of our clients. For example, our Investment Services group maintains transfer
agency records and processes frades for our mutual fund clients, If our systems or facilities were
infiltrated and damaged by unauthorized persons, our clients could experience data loss,
financial loss and significant business inferruption. If that were to occur, it could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Because of the
confidential nature of health information related o insurance policy requests that we store and
transmit, security breaches could also expose us to a risk of regulatory action, litigation, possible
liability and 1oss.

Disruption of our disaster recovery plans and procedures in the event of a catastrophe could
adversely affect our operations.

We have made a significant investment in our infrastructure, and our operations are
dependent on our ability to protect the continuity of our infrastructure against damage from
catastrophe or natural disaster, breach of security, ioss of power, telecommunications failure or
other natural or man-made events. A catastrophic event could have a direct negative impact
on us or an indirect impact on us by adversely affecting our customers, the financial markets or
the overall economy. While we have implemented business continuity and disaster recovery
plans, it is impossible to fully anticipate and protect against all potential catastrophes. If our
business continuity and disaster recovery plans and procedures were disrupted or unsuccessful
in the event of a co’rosTrophe we could experience a material adverse interruption of

our operations.
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We face significant competition from other companies.

Many of our competitors ére well-established companies, and some of them have greater
financial, technical and opero’rlng resources than we do. Competition in our business is based
primarily upon::

e pricing;

e quality of producfs ond services,;
e breadth of produc’rs ond services,
e new product developmen’r, and

o the chbility to provide?‘rechnologicdl solutions.
r
We depend on key management personnel, most of whom do not have long-term
employment agreements.

Our success depends upo‘Jn the continued services of our key senior management personnel,
including our executive officers and the senior managers of our businesses. None of our executive
officershave employment ogr?emen’rs with us and substantially all of our other senior management
personnel do not have employment agreements with us. The loss of any key executive officers or
senior managers could po’renholly impede our ability to execute effectively on our business strategy

and could also potentially hcrm our operating results or business prospects.

We depend on our ability to jaﬁroct and retain skilled personnel.

Our success depends on!our ability fo attract and retain highly skilled personnel in alt areas
of our business. We cannot lassure that we will be able to attract and retain personnel on
acceptable terms in the future. Our inability to attract and retain highly skiled personnel could
have an adverse effect on our business prospects.

We do not intend to pay divijdends.

We have never paid cash dividends to stockholders and do not anficipate paying cash
dividends in the foreseeable fu’rure In addition, our existing credit facility limits our ability to pay
cash dividends.

Our stock price has been aﬁd is likely to continue to be voldtile.

The market price of our common stock is subject to volatility, From July 1, 2004 to March 31,
2006, the last sale price of our common stock ranged from a low of $§12.45 per share fo a high
of $16.63 per share.

Future sales of our common stock may depress our stock price.

Sales of a substantial nufmber of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the
appearance that such shares are available for sale, could adversely affect the market price for
our common stock. As of March 31, 2006, we had 120,460,848 shares of common stock
outstanding. As of March 3] 2006, we also had options to purchase 11,028,639 shares of our
common stock outstanding ‘ond 11,246,431 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance
pursuant to options ovouloble for issuance under our stock option plans and employee stock
purchase plan. f

Anti-takeover effects of cerlam by-law provisions, Delaware law, and our shareholder rights

plan could discourage, del?y or prevent a change in control,

We have a shareholder rights plan. Under the plan, if a person or group were to acquire or
announce the intention to acquire 15% or more of our outstanding shares of common stock, and
insome cases 10%, each right would entifle the holder, other than the acquiring person or group,
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to purchase shares of our common stock at §175, the exercise price of the right, with a value
of twice the exercise price. This plan could have the effect of discouraging, delaying or
preventing persons from attempting to acquire us.

In addition, the Delaware General Corporation Law, to which we are subject, proh;bl‘rs
except under circumstances specified in the statute, a corporation from engaging in any
mergers, significant sales of stock or assets or business combinations with any stockholder or
group of stockholders who own at least 15% of our common stock.

ITEM 2. Properties.

All of our principal properties are leased, with the exception of Melbourne, Florida which we
own. We maintain offices throughout the United States, Western Europe, Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands. As of June 30 2005, our principal data centers and/or operating centers were
located in:

* New York, New York (Corporate Headquarters and Investment Services);
. ¢ Columbus, Ohio (Investment Services);

s Dresher, Pennsylvania (Investment Services);
. & Brainerd, Minnesota (Investment Services);

¢ Roseland, New Jersey (Investment Services);

¢ Boston, Massachusetts (Investment Services and Insurance Services);

s Dublin, Ireland (Investment Services);

¢ Hamilton, Bermuda (Investment Services);

o Cayman Islands, British Virgin islands (Investment Services);

¢ Harrisburg, Pennsylvania (Insurance Services);

¢ Salt Lake City, Utah {nsurance Services),

o Hartford, Connecticut (Insurance Services);

e San Francisco, California (Insurance Services);

¢ Melbourne, Florida (Insurance Services),

¢ Houston, Texas (Information Services),

e Chery Hill, New Jersey (Information Services);

o Lombard, llinois (Information Services); and

e Birmingham, Alabama (Information Services).

The Company relocated its corporoTe heodqudrrers to its Roseland, New Jersey site in
February 2006. In addition, the leases related to the Information Services group were assigned
to Open Solu‘nons Inc. in March 2006, concurrently with the closing of the sole

Leases on our properties expire periodically during the next 12 years,

We believe that our existing facilities, fogether with expansion in the ordinary course of
business, are adequate for our present and foreseeable needs.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

Legal Proceedings

Folliowing the Company’s May 17, 2004 announcement regarding the restatement of its
financial results, seven putative class action and two derivative lawsuits were filed against the
Company and certain of its current and former officers in the United States District Court for the
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Southern District of New York. By order of the Court, all but one of the putative class actions have
been consolidated into a single action, and on October 25, 2004, plaintiffs filed a consolidated
amended complaint. The complom’r purports to be brought on behalf of all shareholders who
purchased the Company’s secun’nes between October 23, 2000 and May 17, 2004 and generally
asserts that the Company, certain of ifs officers, and its independent registered public
accounting firm allegedly viclated the federal securities laws in connection with the purported
issuance of false and misleading information concerning the Company’s financial condition. The
complaint seeks damages in an unspecified amount as well as unspecified equitable/injunctive
relief. On December 23, 2004, the Company, the individual defendants and the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm filed separate motions to dismiss the complaint,
On October 28, 2005, the Court dismissed certain claims under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 as to six of the individual defendants, narrowed cerfain additional claims against the
Company and the individual defendants and dismissed all claims as to the Company's
independent registered public accounting firm. The Court denied the motions to dismiss in all
other respects. The Court granted leave for plaintiffs to file on or before November 14, 2005, an
amended complaint addressing the scienter of the individual defendants and the independent
registered public accountingfirm.

The remaining putative class action purports to be brought on behalf of all persons who
acquired BISYS securities from the Company as part of private equity transactions during the
period October 23, 2000 to Moy 17, 2004. The complaint generally asserts that the Company and
certain of its officers allegedly violated the federal securities laws in connection with the
purported issuance of false and misleading information concerning the Company’s financial
condition, and seeks damages in an unspecified amount, On November 29, 2004, plaintiffs
fled an amended compiaint. By order of the Court, the defendants’ time to answer the
complaint has been extended until resolution of the motion to dismiss the complaint described
in previous paragraph.

The derivative compfoin’rsf purport to be on behalf of the Company and generally assert that
certain officers and directors are liable for alieged breaches of fiduciary duties, abuse of control,
gross mismanagement, waste, and unjust enrichment that purportedly occurred between
October 23, 2000 and the presen’r The derivative complaints seek disgorgement, constructive
trust and damages in an unspecified amount, The Court has ordered that the derivative actions
be consolidated into a single action. On November 24, 2004, plaintiffs fled a consolidated
amended complaint. On January 24, 2005, the Company and the individual defendants filed
separate motions to dismiss The complaint, On October 31, 2005, the Court granted defendants’
motions, dismissing on the mern’rs plaintiffs” claim under Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 on the ground that it does not create a private right of action upon which plaintiffs may
sue. Having so ruled, the Court also dismissed plaintiffs’ state law claims on the ground that it
lacked subject matter jurisdiction over them.

The Company intends to defend itself vigorously against these claims but is unable to
determine the ultimate ou‘rcc?me.

Qur Insurance Services division is involved in litigation with a West Coast-based distributor
of life insurance products, with which we had a former business relationship. The lawsuit, which
is captioned Potomac Group West, Inc., et al, v. The BISYS Group, Inc., et al, was filed in
September 2002 in the Circuit Court for Montgomery County, Maryland. The original compilaint
asserted breach of contract and a number of tort claims against BISYS, several subsidiaries, and
several employees. The Cour‘ﬂ subsequently dismissed all claims against BISYS, its subsidiaries, and
its employees, leaving only one breach of contract claim against one BISYS subsidiary. Plaintiffs
continue to assert that they have not been paid all monies due for covered insurance policies.
The trial is currently scheduled to begin in January 2007. We intfend to continue to vigorously
defend the claims asserted and have asserted a number of counterclaims. We believe that we
have adequate defenses against claims arising in such litigation and that the oufcome of this
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matter will not have a material adverse effect upon our financial position, results of operations
or cash flows,

We are also involved in other litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. We believe
that we have adequate defenses and/or insurance coverage against claims arising in such
litigation and that the outcome of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will not
have a material adverse effect upon our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Regulatory Investigations

We noftified the SEC in May 2004 that we would restate certain prior period financial
statements, and subsequently, the SEC advised the Company that it was conducting an
investigation info the facts and circumstances related to this restatement. On May 17, 2004, we
announced that we would restate our financial results for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003,
2002, and 2001 and for the quarters ended December 31 and September 30, 2003 (the 2004
restatement”) in order to record adjustments for correction of errors resulting from various
accounting matters in the Life Insurance Services division. An amended Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 was filed with the SEC on August 10, 2004 along with
amended Quarterly Repoerts on Form 10-Q for the guarters ended December 31 and
Septemibber 30, 2003 fo reflect the restated financial results. In July 2005, the Company determined
that an additional restatement of previously issued financial statements was necessary and the
SEC’s investigation has been expanded to include the 2005 restatement. The investigation is
ongoing. The Company understands that representatives of the United States Aftorney’s Office
for the Southern District of New York have aftended inferviews that have taken place. We have
cooperated and intfend to continue to cooperate with the SEC’s investigation. We cannot predict
when the SEC will conclude its investigation or the outcome or impact thereof.

As previously announced, the Company is also the subject of an SEC investigation related
to marketing and distribution arrangements in its mutual funds services business. The practices
at issue relate to the structure and accounting for arrangements pursuant to which BISYS Fund
Services (BFS), a subsidiary of the Company, agreed with the advisers of certain U.S. mutual funds
to use a portion of the administration fees paid to BFS by the mutual fund to pay for, among other
things, expenses relating to the marketing and distribution of the fund shares, to make payments
to certain advisers and to pay for certain other expenses. The Company has identified 27 fund
support arrangements to the SEC, all of which were entered into prior to December 2003 and
have been terminated.

BFS has submitted an offer of settlement to the SEC, which has the support of the SEC Staff.
If accepted by the Commission, the proposed settlement would resolve the issues with respect
to all fund support arrangements that the Company has disclosed to the Staff. The offer of
settlement provides for the simultaneous initiation and settlement of an administrative
proceeding through the entry of an administrative order. The order would set forth the SEC’s
findings that BFS aided and abetted violations of Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Investment
Advisers Act, Section 34(b) of the Investment Company Act and SEC Rule 12(b)-1. These rules
and regulations prohibit investment advisers from employing any device, scheme or artifice to
defraud and from engaging in any course of business that would operate as a fraud, prohibit
untrue statements or omissions of material facts in certain documents filed with the SEC, and
regulate the circumstances under which open-end mutual funds may participate in the
distribution of the securities that they issue. Without admitting or denying the SEC’s findings, BFS
would consent to cease and desist from aiding and abetting or causing any violations of the
referenced provisions of the federadl securities laws and related SEC rules. The order would also
require disgorgement and payment of prejudgment interest and a penalty, as well as cerain
undertakings by BFS. The Staff has not yet presented the offer of settlement to the Commission
for approval and no assurance can be given that such approval will be granted. The Company
is continuing to cooperate with the SEC in this matter.
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The Company has es‘fobllshed an estimated liability of $§20.9 million at June 30, 2005,
representing expected amounts to be paid as part of this settlement, which is comprised of an
estimated $9.7 milion disgorgement recognized as a reduction to 2005 revenues, and an
estimated fine of $10 million and prejudgment interest of $1.2 million recognized as an operating
expense in 2005. As previously disclosed, the Company believes that the cost to bring this matter
to resolution, including amounts to be paid as part of a sefflement, legal fees and other related
expenses it expects o mcur ’rhrough the conclusion of this investigation, will not exceed
$25 million.

ITEM 4. Submission of Maﬁer§ to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matter was submitted fTo a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal
year ending June 30, 2005. |
' i .

J PART Il

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

Price Range of Common Stock

Our Common Stock is Troded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "BSG”. The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the low and high closing prices per share for
our Common Stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange.

) ; Low High
Fiscal 2005 |
First Quarter .............. e e $13.10 $14.84
Second Quarter. ......... e 12.45 16.63
Third Quarter ............. T 14.26 16.29
Fourth Quarter ........... bt 1412 15.65
! Low High
Fiscal 2004 {
First Quarter .............. ‘ ........................................... $12.95 $19.98
Second Quarter. ......... f e 13.20 15.27
Third Quarter ............. e 14.09 18.40
FOUrth QUAMEE ..ol R 12.20 17.17

As of April 3, 2006 there were approximately 1,045 holders of record of our Common Stock.
The actual number of our stockholders is greater than this number of holders of record.
Dividend Policy |

We have not paid or de¢lored any cash dividends during our most recent two fiscal years.
We currently intend to retain all future earnings, if any, for use in our business and we do not
anticipate paying any cash {dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future.,

|

i
Issuer Purchases

Effective November 12, 2003 our Board of Directors authorized a stock buy-back program
of up to $100 million with no scheduled date for which the program expires. Purchases have
occurred and will continue to occur from time to time in the open market to offset the possible
dilutive effects of shares issued under employee benefit plans, for possible use in future
acquisitions and for general and other corporate purposes.
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During the three months ended June 30, 2005, the Company purchased 413,350 shares of
its common stock into treasury under the November 2003 repurchase program. A summary of
the shares repurchased by month is as follows:

Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value of
Total : Shares Purchased as Shares that May
Number of Average Part of Publicly Yet be Purchased
: Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Under the Plans or
Period Purchased  Per Share or Program(” Program
April 2005 ... 402,900 $14.95 4,007,703 $40,839,772
May 2005 ... .o 3,662 $15.35 4,011,365 $40,783,560
June 2006 .......... e 6,788 $15.14 4,018,153 $40,680,810

(M Information regarding securities autherized for issuance under equity compensation plans
is incorporated by reference to Part Il, ltem 12 of this Annual Report.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Dctp.

The following information has been restated fo refiect adjustments that are further discussed
in the "Expianatory Note” in the forepart of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in Note 3 to our
Coensolidated Financial Sfo’rem‘enfs included in Part |l, Item 8 of this report,

The following selected hlsfoncol financial data should be read in conjunction with
management’s discussion and onolys«s of financial conditicn and results of operations and the
financial statements, including the notes thereto, included eisewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The notes o the consohdo’fed financial statements contain additional information
about various acquisitions, dlves’rl‘rures ond cenain charges related to restructurings,
impairments, litigation and regulcn‘ory settlements which affect the comparability of the
information presented. [

|
( (in thousands, except per share data)
|

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:( 2004 2003 2002 2001
For Years Ended June 30, ; 2005 As Restated As Restaled As Restated As Restated
Revenues ............. G b, $1,063,055 $994,910 $855,237 $763,875 $564,181
Operating costs and expenses: o S ‘

Service and operafing ... 653,529 608,397 510,845 466,380 336,207

Selling, general and administrative .. 169,703 163,987 133,638 118,640 100,808

Depreciation and amortization ....... 79.016 73,313 61,426 47,006 41,950

Restructuring and impairment

CRAIES 2,340 16,244 10,919 5,800 1,200

Litigation and regulatory settlements 32,269 8,604 — — . —
Total operating costs and expenses ... 936,857 860,645 716,828 637,826 480,165
Operating eamnings .......c.coooiiin, 126,198 134,365 138,400 126,049 84,016
Interest income ... 2,604 1,345 1,472 3,592 5,490
Interest expense . ....ooiviii i (12.451) (19.201) (18.804) (16.162) (11,951
investment gains (losses) and other ... 13,052 394 (1,585 . (942) 465
Income from continuing operations ‘

before income faxes ................... 122,403 116,903 119,492 112,537 78,020
INCOME tAXES .ovvviiviiiiie e 44,803 44,602 43,916 43,906 31,973
Income from continuing cperations ... 77,600 72,301 75,676 68,631 46,047
Incorne (loss) from discontinued

operations, netof tax .................. (71,493  (2,170) 1,708 3.814 3,695
Nefincome ...........ooven e $ 6,107 $ 70,131 § 77284 § 72,445 $ 49,742
Basic earnings (loss) per share: .

Continuing operations ................. $ 065 § 060 S 063 S 058 $§ 040

Disconfinued operations ............... (0.60) (0.02) 0.01 0.03 0.03

Total basic earnings (loss) per share ... $§ 005 § 059 S 065 § 061 § 043

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations ................. S 065 § 060 § 062 § 055 § 038
Discontinued operations ............... (0.59 (0.02) 0.01 0.03 0.03

Total diluted earnings (loss) per share .. $ 005 § 058 § 063 $§ 0588 S 044
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(in thousands, except per share data)

BALANCE SHEET DATA: 2004 2003 2002 2001
June 30, 2005 As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated
Total assets ..o $1,540,460 $1,625,755 $1,466,636 $1,208,888 $995,381
Short-term borrowings .................... — 66,000 172,000 23,000 —
Long-term debt, including \

current maturities ... o 410,255 418,748 314,206 317,486 314,766
Total stockholders” equity ................ 690,010 713,537 637,933 570,029 458,776

(1 Includes amortization of goodwill, net of tax, of $6.0 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, in 2001,
prior Yo the Company’s adoption of FAS No. 142 in fiscal 2002 whereby goodwill is no
longer amortized. S . :

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations. |

You should read the following discussion of our results of operations and financial condition
in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion contfains forward-looking statements based on
current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of certain
events may differ significantly from those projected in such forward-looking statements due o
anumber of factors, including those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Parfl, Item 1
in this report,

The following discussion and analysis gives effect to the restatement described in
“Explanatory Note” in the forepart of this Annudl Report on Form 10-K and in Note 3 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, item 8 of this report. Accordingly, some of
the data set forth in this section is not comparable to discussions and data in our previously filed
annual and quarterly reports for the corresponding periods.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We provide outsourcing solutions that enable investment firms, insurance companies,
and banks to more efficiently serve their customers, grow their businesses, and respond 1o
evolving regulatory requirements. We support more than 1,000 clients in the financial services
industry through three business segments; Investment Services, Insurance Services, and
Information Services.

Our segments are separately managed strategic business units that offer different products
and services. The I[nvestment Services segment provides outsourcing services, Including
administration and distribution, to domestic and offshore mutual fund complexes, hedge funds
and private equity funds and retirement plan services fo small to mid-size retirement plans. The
Insurance Services segment provides distribution solutions for commercial property and casualty,
annuities, life, long-term care, disability and special risk insurance products. The information
Services segment provides information processing, imaging, and corporate financial solutions to
banks, insurance companies and corporate clients.

- QOur objectives are o increase our client base and to expand the services we offer o our
clients, We seek to be the premier full-service oufsourcing business partner focused on
enhancing our clients” growth, profits and performance. We seek to build value for. our
shareholders by increasing both revenues and earnings per share, through a combination of
organic growth from existing clients, cross sales fo existing clients, sales to new clienfts and
strategic acguisitions,
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In April 2005, we completed the sale of our Education Services business. In accordance with
FAS No. 144 ("FAS 144"), “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the
financial results of our Education Services business are reported as discontinued operations for
all periods presented. Accordingly. historical amounts are reflected exclusive of discontinued
operations. See Note 4 — “Acquisitions and Dispositions” for further description.

The following table presents the percentage of revenues represented by each item in our
consolidated income statements for the periods indicated. ‘

2004 2003
For Years Ended June 30, 2005 As Restated As Restated
REVENUES .ttt e en s 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Operating costs and expenses:

Service and operating ... ..o 615 61.1 59.7

Selling. general and administrative ..................... 16.0 15.5 15.6

Depreciation and amortization ... 7.4 7.4 7.2

Restructuring and impairment charges ................. 0.2 1.6 1.3

Litigation and regulatory settlements ................... 3.0 0.9 L —
Total operating costs and exXpPenses .............o.vvvv.ns. 88.1 86.5 83.8
Operating earnings ... 1.9 13.5 16.2
INTErest INCOME ... v e i 0.2 0.1 0.2
Interest eXpense ... NI e (1.8) (1.9 2.2)
Investment gains (losses) and other ... 1.2 0.1 0.2
Income from continuing operations before

INCOME TAXES ... 11.5 11.8 14.0
Income taxes ................ e 4.2 4.5 5.1
Income from continuing operations ....................... 7. 7.3 8.9
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax ... _(6.7) 0.2 0.2
Nt INCOME ... e 0.6% 7.1% 2.1%

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenues increased $68.1 million in 2005 and $139.7 million in 2004, representing increases
of 7% and 16%, respectively. Revenues in 2005 have been reduced by $9.7 million pertaining to
the disgorgement portion of an estimated regulatory seftlement (see Litigation and Regulatory
Settlements under this Item 7). Growth in 2005 and 2004 was derived from existing client growth,
cross-sales to existing clients, sales 1o new clients, and revenues from acquired businesses,
parfially offset by lost business. Revenue growth from acquired businesses approximated
$21.2 million in 2006 and $56.5 million in 2004. Our internal revenue growth (excluding acquisitions
and divestitures) approximated 6% in 2005 (excluding the impact of the disgorgement portion
of the estimated regulatory settlement) and 10% in 2004 and is expected to be flat in 2006.

Service and operating expenses increased $45.1 million in 2005 and $97.6 million in 2004,
representing increases of 7% and 19%, respectively. Service and operating expenses increased
as a percentage of revenues in 2005 by 0.4% o 61.5% and increased in 2004 by 1.4% to 61.1%.
The dollar increases in 2005 and 2004 primarily resulted from additional costs associated with
greafer revenues. The 2005 increase as a percentage of revenues primarily resulted from lower
margins in the Information Services segment and a $9.7 milion reduction to revenue for the
disgorgement portion of an estimated regulatory settlement recorded in 2005, The 2004

increase as a percentage of revenues primarily resulted from lower margins in the Insurance
Services segment.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $15.7 million, or 10%, and increased
as a percentage of revenues by 0.5% to 16.0% in 2005 and increased $20.3 million, or 15%, and
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decreased as a percentage of revenues by 0.1% to 15.5% in 2004. The doliar increases in 2005
and 2004 resuited from additional costs associated with greater revenues for both years and
additional legal and accounting costs incurred in 2005 of approximately $4 million due to the
restatement of our financial statements.

Depreciation and amortization was $79.0 million in 2005, compared to $73.3 million in 2004
and $61.4 million in 2003, The increases in 2005 and 2004 were due to additions of capitalized
software and a higher level of acquired intfangible assets associated with recently acquired
businesses and customer contracts.

Operating margins were 11.9%, 13.5% and 16.2% in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Operating earnings decreased by $8.2 million to $126.2 million in 2005 and decreased as d
percentage of revenues from 13.5% to 11.9%. The dollar and percentage decreases were
primarily due to additional charges for litigation and regulatory settlements, offset by
lower restructuring and impairment charges. Operating earnings decreased by $4.0 million to
$134.4 million in 2004, primarily due to greater restructuring and impairment charges along with
a significant margin decline in the Insurance Services segment.

Operating margins, excluding restructuring and impairment charges and litigation and
reguilatory setflements, were 15.1%, 16.0% and 17.5% for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
margin decrease in 2005 was primarily due to additional legal and accounting costs associated
with the restatement of our financial statements and a margin decline in the Information Services
segment due to loss of a mgjor customer in the latter half of fiscal 2004. The margin decrease
in 2004 was primarily due to a significant margin decline in the Insurance Services segment as
a result of a decline in internal revenue and additional investments in sales support, customer
service and training.

Interest income was $2.6 million in 2005 compared to $1.3 million in 2004 and $1.5 million in
fiscal 2003. The increase in 2005 of $1.3 milion was due to higher interest rates and increased
levels of interest-bearing assets.

Interest expense was $19.5 million in 2005 compared to $19.2 million in 2004 and $18.8 million
in 2003. Our weighted average interest rate approximated 3.9%, 3.3% and 3.4% for 2005, 2004
and 2008, respectively. The increase in 2005 was primarily due 1o higher interest rates offset by
a decline in average borrowings. The increase in 2004 was due to intferest cosfs associated erh
additional borrowings for acquisitions under our revolving credit facility.

The provision for income taxes reflects an effective tax rate of 36.6%. 38.2% and 36.8% for
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In 2005, the effective tax rate was impacted by the
$10.0 million nondeductible portion of an estimated SEC sefflement that was recognized in 2005.
Excluding the impact of this settlement, the effective tax rate in 2005 was 33.3%. The increase
in the effective tax rate in 2004 is primarily due fo the write-off of $3.2 million of net deferred tax
assets associated with taxioss carryforwards and goodwill arising from the European mutual fund
services operations that were not expected to be redlized. Excluding the impact of this
restructuring-related charge, the effective tax rate in 2004 was 35.4%. Excluding the impact of
restructuring charges and regulatory settlements, the effective tax rate has frended downward
from 2003 primarily due to the increase in foreign earnings that are taxed at lower rates. Our
effective tax rate in fiscal 2006 is expected to approximate 36.5% and will be negatively
impacted by an estimated $1.8 million of fax charges associated with the repatriation of earnings
in 2006 under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (see Note 7 — “Income Taxes”).

The Company does not believe inflation has had a material impact on sales or operomng
results during periods covered in this discussion.,

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the third quarter of 2005, we approved a plan to sell our wholly owned subsidiary BISYS
Education Services, Inc. Accordingly, results of operations of the Education Services business
have been reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented. In connection with the

22




approval of the plan to sell the Education Services business, we determined that circumstances
warranted that a recoverability assessment also be conducted of the tangible and intangible
assets of the Education Services business. We performed an impairment analysis and calculated
the estimated fair value of the Education Services business using a combingation of discounted
cash flows and market-based information, including the range of expected values of the
business in a sale fransaction. Based on that assessment, we determined that the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeded ifs estimated fair value and recorded a pretax impairment
charge to goodwill in the third quarter of 2005 of $86.5 million. See Note 4 — “Acquisitions and
Dispositions,” for summary financial information of the Education Services business.

RESTRUCTURING AND IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, we recorded pretax restructuring and impairment charges of
$2.3 million, $16.2 million and $10.9 million, respectively, as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003
2005  As Restated As Restated
Restructuring Charges ........ooovv i $1.315 $§10,695  $10,919
Impairment charges ... v 1,025 5,549 —

$2,340 $16,244  $10.919

See Note 8 — “Restructuring and Impairment Charges” for a complete summary of
restructuring activities and remaining accrual balances. ‘

Fiscal 2005

Restructuring charges of $1.3 million during 2005 were related to the completion of the
restructuring of the European mutual fund services operations and were comprised of severance
totaling $0.2 million and lease termination costs of $1.2 million, offset by reversals and currency
translation gains of $0.1 million.

In addition to the impairment charge associated with our Education Services business, we
recorded assef impairment charges of $1.0 million during 2005 related to other than temporary
declines in the value of membership in the New York and Boston Stock exchanges.

Fiscal 2004

In 2004, we recorded pre-tax restructuring and impairment charges of $16.2 million. The
charges consist of restructuring charges of $10.7 million that relate to the integration,
consolidation, and reorganization of certain business operations, particularly in our European
Fund Services division and the Insurance Services group and impairment charges of $5.5 million.
Restructuring charges of $10.7 milion during 2004 were comprised of severance totaling
$8.5 million and lease termination and other costs of $2.2 million. Severance charges resulted
from the termination or planned termination of approximately 350 employees representing all
levels of staffing: The objectives of the 2004 restructuring plan were to close down or consclidate
certain European Fund Services processing platforms located in Luxembourg, London and
Guernsey, reduce costs by downsizing certain product development, marketing and sales
support services in various business units; and relocate a call center in the Retirement Services
division. Annualized pretax cost savings as a result of these restructuring activities were expected
to approximate $26 million to $31 million.

We recorded asset impairment charges of $56.5 million during 2004, consisting primarily of the
following items: .

e a $3.9 milion charge in the Investment Services segment for the impairment of a
customer-related intangible asset and other long-lived assets as a result of our plan to
restructure our European mutual fund services operations and to exit certain European
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locations during the calendar year 2004 following the acquisition of two of our significant
customers in those European locations by acquirers with existing fund services
capabilities; and

s a$1.2 million charge in the Insurance Services segment for impairment of a customer-
related intangible asset deemed to be no longer recoverable from reiated future
cash flows. ‘

We also wrote off $3.2 million of net deferred tax assets associated with tax loss carryforwards
and goodwill arising from the European mutual fund services operations as we determined the
deferred tax amounts will not be realized. This write-off was recorded as additional income tax
expense in 2004.

Fiscal 2003

We recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of $10.9 million in 2003, relating to the
integration, consolidation and relocation of certain business operations, primarily as a result of
acquisition activity and the downsizing of certain arecs in the investment, insurance and check
imaging businesses. The restructuring charge includes a provision of $6.2 million for severance-
related costs for approximately 250 employees, representing all levels of employees, and
$4.7 million for facility closure and related costs. The objective of the 2003 restructuring plan was
to reduce costs by consolidating, relocating, and downsizing certain operations in the
investment, insurance and check imaging businesses. Reductions in force affected business
operations such as data processing, software development, marketing, and various support
services, and facility space reduction or closure occurred in several locations including
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and Columbus, Ohic. Annudlized pretax cost savings as a result of
these restructuring activities were expected to approximate $14 milion to $16 million.

LITIGATION AND REGULATORY SETTLEMENTS

Litigation
We are currently subject to legal proceedings and claims, including securities class action

lawsuits and a shareholder derivative lawsuit, and regulatory investigations. See Part |, item 3,
“Legal Proceedings,” and Note 9 — “Litigation and Regulatory Investigations.”

We expensed the following amounts related to estimated seftiement costs and legal fees
in connection with the aforementioned litigation and investigatory matters for 2005 and 2004
(in thousands):

2004
2005 As Restated
Litigation matters ... $21,028  $8,604
Regulatory seftlement (520,940 net of disgorgement ]
portion of $9,699) ........... T 11,241 —

$32,269  $8,604

In February 2006, we reached an agreement regarding coverage with our insurance carriers
that resulted in an insurance recoverable of approximately $8 million for certain legal expenses
incurred by the Company through June 30, 2005 in connection with the aforementioned
litigation and investigatory matters, Amounts recoverable under the agreement will be
recognized as areduction to legal expensesin the quarter ended March 31, 2006. We anticipate
that legal expenses for these matters in 2006 will approximate $2 million to $4 million, net of
insurance recoverables.

Legal fees and related -costs for litigation arising in the ordinary course of business,
and exclusive of the specific aforementioned litigation and investigatory matters, are included
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in the caption, “Selling., general and administrative” in the accompanying consolidated

statements of income.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following tables set forth revenue, operating earnings and operating margin by business
segment for 20056, 2004 and 2003. Measures used o assess segment performance include
revenues and operating earnings, exclusive of restructuring and impairment charges and
fitigation and regulatory seftiements. Segment operating earnings exclude restructuring and
impairment charges and litigation and regulatory settlements since they are not allocated to the
segments for internal evaluation purposes. While these items are identifiable to the business
segments, they are not included in the measurement of segment operating earnings provided
to the chief operating decision maker for purposes of assessing segment performance and
decision making with respect to resource allocation.

Revenues

investment Services ........
Insurance Services ..........
information Services ........

Less: Disgorgement portion
of estimated regulatory
seftlement reflected as

a reduction fo revenues ..
Total consolidated revenues ..

Operating earnings

Investment Services ........
Insurance Services ..........
Information Services ........
Corporate ........oviviiun

Reconciling items:
Restructuring and

impairment charges .....

Litigation and regulatory

settlements ...............

Disgorgement portion of
estimated regulcatory

setflement ................

Total consolidated

Qperating eamings .......

Operating Margin

Investment Services ........
Insurance Services ..........
Information Services ........

(in thousands)

Years Ended June 30,

Dollar Change Change

Percentage

2005 2004 2005 2004
2004 2003 VS. Vs, VS. VS§.
2005 As Restated  As Resiated 2004 2003 2004 2003
$ 619,479  $565,660 $487,747 §53,819 $77.913 2.5% 16.0%
241,497 208,779 165,504 32,718 43,275 15.7% 26.1%
211,778 220,471 201,986 (8,693 18,485 @BN% 92%
1,072,754 994,910 855,237 77,844 139,673 7.8% 16.3%
(2.699) — — (9,699 — — —
$1,063,055  $994.910 $855,237 568,145 $139.673 6.8% 16.3%
$ 86,362 § 70,990 $ 61,575 $15,372 $ 9415 21.7% 15.3%
62,665 49,289 52,044 13,376 (2.755) 27.1% (B.3)%
49,865 63,537 54,709 (13,672) 8,828 (21.5% 16.1%
(28,386) (24,603) (19.000) (3.783) (5.603) (5.4)%(29.5%
170,506 169,213 149,328 11,293 9,885 71%  6.6%
(2,340) (16,244) (10,919 13,904 (56,325) — —
(32,269) (8,604) -— (23,665) (8,604) — —
©.699 — — (9,699 — — —_
$126,198  $134,365 $138,409  $(8,167) $(4,044) (b6.1D)% (2.9%
13.9% 12.5% 12.6%
25.9% 23.6% 31.4%
23.5% 28.8% 27.1%

Internal revenue growth (excluding acquisitions and divestitures) in 2005 for Investment
Services, Insurance Services and Information Services approximated 7%, 11% and (4)%,
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respectively. A substantial portion of our revenues, especiadlly in the investment Services and
Information Services business segments, are recurring in nature.

Revenue in the Investment Services business segment increased $53.8 million in 2005 and
$77.9 million in 2004, representing increases of 10% and 16%, respectively. Revenues in 2005
exclude the $9.7 milion impact of the disgorgement portion of an estimated regulatory
seftlement stated separately above. The revenue increase in 2005 was due tc the acquisition
of RK Consulting in January 2005 and internal growth of 7% including the acquisition of several
new clients, primarily in the 401(k) plan record keeping business. The revenue increase in 2004
was due to increased sales to new clients by all divisions in this segment and increased assets
under administration. Operating earnings in the Investment Services business segment increased
$15.4 million in 2005 and $9.4 million in 2004, resulting in margins of 13.9%, 12.5% and 12.6% in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The margin expansion in 2005 was primarily due to faster growth in
the higher margin Hedge Fund and Private Equity businesses. For fiscal 2006, margins are
expected to contract modestly and infernal revenue is expected to decline modestly as a result
of the previously disclosed loss of a significant Fund Services client in the second half of fiscal 2005
due to merger and the loss of another Fund Services client in 2006 due to their decision fo exit
the mutual fund business.

Revenue in the Insurance Services business segment increased $32.7 million in 2005 and
$43.3 million in 2004, representing increases of 16% and 26%, respectively. Revenue growth in
fiscal 2005 was due to acquisitions completed in 2004 and internal growth of 11%. Revenue
growth in 2004 was due to acquisitions, offset by a decline in internal revenue of 8%. Operating
earnings in the Insurance Services business segment increased $13.4 milion in 2005 and
decreased $2.8 million in 2004, resuiting in margins of 25.9%, 23.6% and 31.4% in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Margins increased in 2005 primarily due to higher volumes and changes in
business mix. Margins declined in 2004 primarily due to the decline in infernal revenue and
additional investments in sales support and customer service. Margins are expected to expand
modestly in fiscal 2006, and internal revenue growth also is expected to be moderately positive.

Revenue in the Information Services business segment decreased $8.7 million, or 4%, in 2005
and increased $18.5 million, or 9%, in fiscal 2004, The revenue decrease in 2005 was primarily due
to the loss of a major customer that was acquired by another company and deconverted in the
Iatter half of 2004. The revenue increase in 2004 was due to existing client growth, cross sales of
anciillary. products and services to existing clients, sales t¢ new clients and a large early
termination fee associated with the deconversion of an acquired major customer, Operating
earnings in the Information Services business segment decreased $13.7 million in 2005 and
increased $8.8 million in 2004, resulting in operating margins of 23.5%, 28.8% and 27.1% for 2005,
2004 and 20083, respectively. The 2005 margin decrease was primarily due to the decline in
revenue and ongoing investments in the growth of several new products. During fiscal 2006,
BISYS enfered intfo a definitive agreement to sell the Information Services business to Open
Solutions Inc. for approximately $470 million in cash. The transaction closed on March 3, 2006,
and net proceeds affer fransaction costs and applicable income taxes are expected to
approximate $300 million. We expect to recognize a gain of approximately $200 million from
this sale in our quarter ended March 31, 2006, which will be included with income from
discontinued operations.

Corporate operations represent charges for our executive, human resources, legal,
accounting and finance functions, and various other unallocated overhead charges.
Corporate expenses increased $3.8 million in 2005 and $5.6 million in 2004, representing increases
of 15% and 29%, respectively, The increase in 2005 was primarily due fo legal and accounting
fees incurred relating to the restatement of our financial statements. The increase in 2004 was
primarily due fo increased compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards,
incentive and severance arrangements, and 2004 restatement expenses. Corporafe expenses
are expected to be substantially higher in fiscal 2006 primarily due to legal and accounting fees
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associated with the restatement, severance costs, and stock option expenses as a result of the
adoption of FAS 123R.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

At June 30, 2005 and 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of $173 million and
$143 million, respectively. Cash and cash equivalents held outside the U.S. at June 30, 2005 and
2004 amounted to $61 million and $51 million, respectively. Total assets decreased from
$1.6 bilion at June 30, 2004 to $1.5 bilion at June 30, 2005 primarily due to the sale of the
Education Services business. Stockholders’ equity decreased from $714 million at June 30, 2004
fo $690 million at June 30, 2005 primarily due fo repurchases of our common stock tofaling
$46 million. : '

In January 2005, we purchased the assets of RK Consulting for cash consideration of
approximately $83 million. The acquisition of RK Consulting complements and expands our
existing hedge fund and private equity business. In April 2005, we completed the sale of our
Education Services business and received cash consideration of approximately $51 million.

Capital expenditures, including capitalized software costs, were $59 million, $65 million and
$66 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Excluding the Information Services business which
was sold in March 2006, capital expenditures are expected to be in the range of $20 million to
$25 million in fiscal 2006. '

The following provides a summary of confractual obligations as of June 30, 2005
(in thousands):

Payments by Period
Less than More than

Contractual obligations _ 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years Total

Long-term debt™ ... e $399,904 $ 8,661 $ 1,690 $ — 8410255
Operating leases® ..........ocoocvivii, 33,223 61,231 49,852 103,687 247,893
Purchase obligations® ................... 40,034 53,068 2,450 — 95,552
Total . §473,161 §122,960 §53,992 $103,587 §753.700

(1) These amounts are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheetfs. See Note 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about debt and related matters.

(2) Included in these amounts are various facilities and equipment operating leases, and
software license agreements. We enterinto operating leases in the normal course of business
relating to facilities and equipment. The majority of iease agreements have fixed payment
terms based on the passage of time. Certain leases require payment of maintenance and
real estate taxes and contain escalation provisions based on future adjustments in price
indices. Future operating lease obligations could change if we exit certain contracts or enter
into additional operating lease agreements.

(3) Purchase obligations primarily relate to maintenance agreements on software, equipment
and other assets.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

In March 2004, we entered into a four-year senior unsecured credit facility with a syndicate
of lenders. The 2004 facility was created to support working capital requirements, repurchases
of our common stock, and the funding of acquisitions and initially contained a $300 million
revolving line of credit facility and a $100 million term loan. Outstanding borrowings under the
credit facility bore interest at prime or, at our option, LIBOR plus a margin. The credit agreement
required us to pay an annual facility fee of 0.30% on the fotal revolving credit commitment. The
facility was guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of The BISYS Group, Inc.
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AY June 30, 2005, we had outstanding borrowings of $93.75 million against the ferm loan
portion of the facility, which was repaid in full in December 2005, Our debt ratio (total debt/total
debt plus equity) was 0.37 at June 30, 2005, and the Company’s maximum debt ratio was not
to exceed 0.50 under the terms of the revolving credit facility. At June 30, 2005, the weighted
average interest rate of the 2004 credit facility borrowings was 4.38%.

The credit agreement required us to maintain certain financial covenants and limited our
ability to incur future indebtedness and to pay dividends. As of June 30, 2005, no amounts were
permitted for the payment of cash dividends. As of June 30, 2005, a default existed under the
2004 facility resulting from our failure to timely file our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
guarter ended March 31, 2005 and our failure o deliver the related compliance certificate for
such fiscal quarter. On June 14, 2005, we obtained a consent and waiver from the lenders under
the 2004 facility, which extended the cure period arising from these defaults to August 1, 2005.
After obtaining additional consents and waivers from the lenders subsequent to June 30, 2006,
the 2004 facility was eventually terminated by us in January 2006 and replaced with a new interim
credit facility (see Note 6 — “Establishment of New Credit Facility”). As a condition of the
waivers, additional borrowings under the revolving line of credit were not permitted until the
default was cured,

In January 2006, we entered into a Credit Agreement with a'syndicate of lenders, providing
for () an interim revolving credit facility in an aggregate amount of up to $100 million (the
"Revolver”) and (i) an interim term loan in an aggregate amount of up to $300 miillion (the “Term
Loan, “ together with the Revolver, the “Interim Facility”). The maturity date of the Interim Facility
is January 2, 2007. The proceeds of the Revolver may be used for working capital and other
corporate purposes. The Term Loan commitment was subsequently cancelled since the
proceeds were no longer reguired to repay the $300 million of Notes.

Borrowings at June 30, 2005 also included $300 million of 4% convertible subordinated notes
due March 2006. in March 2006, we used the net proceeds from the sale of the Information
Services segment for the repayment of these notes (see Note 4 — “Acquisitions
and Dispositions™).

We manage our debt structure and interest rate risk through the use of fixed- and floating-
rate debt. While changes in the interest rates could decrease our interest income or increase
our interest expense, we do not believe that we have a material exposure to changes in interest
rates based on the relative size of our interest bearing assets and liabilities. We do not undertake
any specific actions concerning exposure to interest rate risk, and we are not party to any interest
rate derivative transactions. We utllize foreign currency forward contracts to manage our foreign
exchange risk. These instruments are designated as cash flow hedges and are recognized as
earnings in the same period as the items that they generally offset.

Our strategy includes the acquisition of complementary businesses financed by a
combination of internally generated funds, borrowings from the revolving credit facility, long-
term debt, and common stock. Our policy is to retain earnings to support future business
opportunities, rather than pay dividends. We have historically used a significant portion of our
cash flow from operations to fund acquisitions and capital expenditures with any remainder used
to reduce outstanding borrowings under the credit facility or repurchase our own common stock.
We believe that our cash flow from operations together with available borrowings under the
$100 million revolving credit facility will be adequate to meet our funding requirements. In the
event that we make significant future acquisitions, we may raise funds through additional
borrowings or the issuance of securities.

Accounts receivable represented 44 and 40 days sales outstanding (DSO) at June 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively, based-on quarterly revenues. The calculation of DSO for accounts
receivable excludes insurance premiums and commissions receivable arising from our
insurance-related business. DSO is less relevant for this type of receivable because it includes
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premiums that are ultimately remitted to the insurer and not recognized as revenue. Additionally,
certain life insurance commissions due from insurance carriers have customary collection terms
of up to twelve months. We perform credit evaluations of our customers in conjunction with our
new business development processes, The customers are assessed for credit worthiness based
on their financial position, and payment terms are generally negotiated at the time contracts
are signed. We regularly evaluate our accounts receivable position relative to our revenues and
rmonitor our accounts receivable aging as part of managing our receivable portfolio. Credit risk
is generally mitigated by reasonably short payment terms, the nature of our customers (.e.,
commercial banks, mutual funds, and insurance carriers) and our large and diverse customer
base. We generally do not require collateral for accounts receivable and maintain an allowance
for doubtful accounts of $3.4 milion and $3.0 million at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

For 2005, operating activities provided cash of $204 million, primarily as a result of income
from continuing operations of $78 million, depreciation and amortization of $79 million and an
increase in accrued liabilities and other of $48 million. Investing activities used cash of $65 miliion,
primarily for the acquisition of the RK Consulting business of $83 million and capital expenditures
of $50 million, offset by proceeds from divestitures of $52 million and proceeds from sale
of investments of $15 million. Financing activities used cash of $110 million, primarily - for
net payments on short-term borrowings of $66 million and repurchases of common stock of
$46 million.

For 2004 and 2003, operating activities provided cash of $228 miillion and $186 million,
respectively. Investing activities used cash of §109 million and $232 million in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Financing activities used cash of $58 million in 2004 and provided cash of $51 million
in 2003.

Repurchases of our common stock have occurred and are expected to continue to occur
from fime to time in the open market to offset the possible dilutive effect of shares issued under
employee benefits plans, for possible use in future acquisitions, and for general and other
corporate purposes. The following table presents stock repurchase activity during the last three
fiscal years under programs authorized by the Board of Directors between 1999 and 2005,
disclosing total shares repurchased under each program and the associated cost.
Upon authorization of each new stock repurchase program, the former program is superseded
and replaced.

: {in thousands)
Year Ended June 30, 2005 2004 2003

Shares Cost Shares Cost Shares Cost
Share repurchase programs: :
$100 million, authorized January 1999 .. C— S — — 8§ — 1,150 $28,626
$100 million, authorized August 2002 ... — — 3,158 46,153 301 4,793
$100 million, authorized
November 2003 ............cocoovinn, 3.149 45755 869 13,565 — —
Total stock repurchases ................... 3,149 $45,755 4,027 $59,718 1,451 §$33.419

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As of June 30, 2005, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in
tem 303(a)(4)(ii) of SEC Reguiation S-K, other than outstanding letters of credit totaling
$3.1 million. :

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant judgments
and uncertainties and may result in materially different results under different assumptions and
conditions. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
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accounting principles requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reportfed amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period.

We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates in the near term.

Centain accounting policies that require significant management estimate and are deemed
critical to our results of operations or financial position are discussed below.

Goodwill — We have recorded goodwill that was initially recognized as a result of business
combinations. In accordance with FAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we
periodically evaluate goodwill for impairment no less than annually by comparing the carrying
value of each reporting unit to its fair value using a two-step impairment test, If the carrying
amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair vatue of that goodwill, an impairment
is recognized in an amount equal to that excess, Our process for estimating a reporting unit’s
fair value requires the use of assumptions and estimates regarding the reporting unit’s future cash
flows, growth rates and weighted average cost of capital, Assumed growth rates generally
ranged from 4% to 8% and varied by reporting unit based upon near and medium term growth
opportunities. The assumed weighted average cost of capital approximated 12% in the most
recent analyses. Any significant adverse changes in key assumptions about these businesses and
their prospects or an adverse change in market conditions may cause a change in the estimate
of fair value and could result in an impairment charge. We have approximately $752 million of
goodwill as of June 30, 2005, none of which is considered impaired, based onimpairment testing.
Given the significance of goodwill, an adverse change to the estimated fair value could result
in an impairment charge that could be material to the financial statements.

Acquired intangible Assets — We have recorded intfangible assets that were initially
recognized as a result of business combinations or acquired customer relationships. The
intfangible assets are amortized on either a pattern of consumption or a straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives. We assess the likelihood of recovering the cost of acquired intangible
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
asset may not be recoverable. We evaluate, for impairment, the carrying value of acquired
intangible assets by comparing the carrying value 1o the anticipated future undiscounted cash
flows expected to be generated from the use of the intangible asset. If an intangible asset is
impaired, the asset is written down to fair value. Intangible assets resulting from acquired
customer relationships are evaluated in light of actual customer aftrition rates and related cash
flows to ensure that the carrying value of these intangibles assets is recoverable. Significant
changes in these customer relationships could result in an impairment charge. We have
approximately $145.2 milion of acquired intangible assets as of June 30, 2005. Given the
significance of intangibles, adverse changes to these relationships could result in animpairment
charge that could be material to the financial statements,

Income taxes — We account for income taxes in accordance with FAS 109, “Accounting
forincome Taxes, ” which establishes financial accounting and reporting standards for the effect
of income taxes. The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount
of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the
future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax
returns. Judgment is required in addressing the future tax consequences of events that have
been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. Fluctuations in the actual outcome
of these future tax consequences could materially impact the financial statements.

We also record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that
is more likely than not to be realized. We have considered future taxable income and ongoing
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prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance.
In the event we were to determine that we would be able to readlize our deferred tax assets in
the future in excess of our net recorded amount, an adjustment fo the deferred tax asset would
increase income in the period such determinction was made. Likewise, should we determine
that we would not be able to redlize all or part of our net deferred tax asset in the future, an
adjustment to the deferred fax asset would be charged to income in the period such
determination was made.

Legal and regulatory contingencies — We are subject to various legal proceedings and
claims, including securities class action lawsuits, a shareholder derivative lawsuit, and reguiatory
investigations, GAAP requires that liabilities for contingencies be recorded when it is probable
that a liability has been incurred before the balance sheet date and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Significant management judgment is required to comply with this
guidance. We analyze our litigation exposure and determine estimates for anticipated
regulafory setflements based on available information, including consultation with outside
counsel handling the defense of these matters, o assess probable liability.

Revenue recognition — Except as noted for soffware and related revenues descrived
below, we recognize revenue in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements”
("SAB 104"). SAB 104, which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation and disclosure
of revenue in financicl statements, is supplemented by the specific guidance provided for the
specidlized revenue recognition types addressed below.

Our principal sources of service revenues include information processing and software
services, administration and distribution of mutual funds, hedge funds and private equity funds,
brokerage and consulting services, administration and record keeping of retirement plans, and
commissions from insurance brokerage and distribution activities. Revenues from these services
are recognized in the periods in which the services are performed or over the life of the customer
contract. We recognize revenues from certain services on either a gross or net basis based upon
consideration of various factors or indicators as setf forth in EITF 99-19, "Reporting Revenue Gross
as a Principal versus Net as an Agent” ("EITF 99-19).

Cash received by us in advance of the performance of services or the revenue being
recognized is deferred. We defer recognition of up-front implementation and conversion fees
that are not the culmination of a separate earnings process and recognize them ratably over
the estimated customer life, generally between five and eight years.

Data processing revenues: Revenues are recognized in accordance with SAB 104 and
EITF No. 00-21, "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” Data center information
processing revenues are recognized based on monthly contractual minimum amounts or actual
monthly usage by the customer. Implementation fees for ancillary products are generally
recognized over six years, consistent with the amortization of related purchased software
licenses. In connection with our cufsourcing arrangements, we often perform implementations,
including the installation and customization of our proprietary software or third-party software in
our centers. Under these arrangements, a client does not take possession of the software nor
have the right to take possession of the software without incurring a significant penalty. We
recognize all internal and contracted costs associated with information processing.
implementatfion and conversion revenues as incurred. Termination fees are charged when
customers cancel their outsourcing confract and are recognized ratably as revenue over the
period from customer notification to the deconversion date.

We have agreements with third party vendors fo resell the services of those third party
vendors to our customers. We are obligated 1o provide these services to certain of our customers,
which include Internet banking. telecommunication and other resold services, and we are
considered the primary obligor. In addition, we price these services independent of the arnounts
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billed by the third party vendors, and we bear all coliection risk for the amounts billed to our
customers. In accordance with EITF No. 99-19, amounts earned from the resale of these services
are recorded as revenue on a gross basis and the costs incurred from the third party service
providers are recorded as service and operating costs in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income.

Administration, distribution and record keeping revenues: Revenues earned from
administration and distribution of mutual funds, hedge funds and private equity funds are, in
some cases, based on the average net asset value or invested capital of the fund, subject 1o
minimum charges, and in some cases consist of or include account-based fees and other fixed
charges. Revenues earned from record keeping services for retirement plans are generally
based upon the number of eligible employees or participants in a plon subject to certain
minimums, as well as fees based on assets held in the retirement plans, and fransaction fees.
Revenues from these services are recognized in the periods in which the services are performed.

insurance commission revenues: Commission revenue from insurance distribution
operations s recognized when all placement services have been provided, protection is
afforded under the insurance policy, and the premium is known or can be reasonably estimated
and is billable; or when the policy renews or when incentive-based targets are achieved.
Commission revenue is recorded net of an allowance for estimated commission adjustments due
to fapses, policy cancellations, and revisions in coverage.

In the Life Insurance division, insurance commissions earned from cartiers are recorded nef
of amounts due to agents. Commission revenue from carriers and commissions payable 1o
agents are generally recognized based on a percentage of the premium that the policyholder
pays to the insurance carrier, First year commissions are calculated based on a contractual
percentage of the first year’s premium. Renewal commissions relate to the periods following the
first year and are paid af a contractual rate if the policy remains in force. Bonus commissions are
paid by the insurance carrier in situations in which certain volume, persistency or profitability
targets are met.

Software and related revenues: We recognize revenues in accordance with the provisions
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA”) Statement of Position
("SOP™) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended, as well as Technical Practice Aids
issued from time to time by the AICPA. Revenue is recognized when a non-cancelable license
agreement has been executed, fees are fixed or determinable, the soffware has been delivered
and installed, accepted by the customer if acceptance is required by the contract and is other
than perfunctory, and collection is considered probable. We seli software licenses in conjunction
with hardware and professional services for installation and maintenance. We aliocate the fotal
arrangement fee among each deliverable using the fair value of each of the deliverables
determined using vendor-specific objective evidence ("VSOE"). VSOE of fair value is determined
using the price charged when that element is sold separately. In soffware arrangements in which
we have fair value of all undelivered elements but not of a delivered element, the residual
method is used to record revenue. Under the residual method, the fair value of the undelivered
elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement fee is allocated to the
delivered element(s) and is recognized as revenue. In software arrangements in which we do
not have VSOE of fair value of all undelivered elements, revenue is deferred until fair value is
determined, or until all elements for which we do not have VSCE of fair value have been
delivered. Our software license agreements do not require significant modification or
customization of the underlying soffware, and accordingly, installation and training services are
not considered essential to functionality. However, we do not have VSOE for our installation
services so all hardware and software revenues are deferred until instaliation is complete.
Revenues from training and other services are recognized as services are performed.

Maintenance revenue consists of fees generated by providing software maintenance,
unspecified upgrades and support 1o custformers, such as telephone support and new releases
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of soffware and updated user documentation on a when-and-if-available basis. A customer
typically prepays maintenance and support fees for an initial period, and the relafed revenue
is deferred and recognized ratably cver the term of such initial period. Maintenance isrenewable
by the customer, and mainfenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the related
support period, generally twelve months,

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) issued FAS 123R,
"Share-Based Payment.” FAS 123R establishes standards for accounting for tfransactions in which
an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. FAS 123R focuses primarily on
accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based
payment transactions, FAS 123R requires that the fair value of such equity instruments be
recognized as expense in the financial statements as services are performed. Prior to FAS 123R,
only the pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. FAS 123R is effective for our first quarter
of 2006. We intend to adopt FAS 123R effective July 1, 2005 ufilizing the modified prospective
application transition method and the Black-Scholes option pricing mode! that are permitted
under the new standard. The estimated impact of adopting FAS 123R on results of operations for
2006, based on options outstanding at June 30, 2005, is approximately $2.2 million, after tax.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 153, "Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — An
Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29" ("FAS 153"). FAS 153 amends Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 29, "Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” ("APB 29”). The amendments made
by FAS 153 are based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assetfs should be
measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. Further, the amendments eliminate
the narrow exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replace it
with a broader exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have “commercial
substance.” Previously, APB 29 required that the accounting for an exchange of a productive
asset for a similar productive asset, or an equivalent interest in the same or similar productive
asset, should be based on the recorded amount of the asset relinquished. The provisions of
SFAS 153 will be effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning
after June 15, 2005, and there is no expected impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued FAS No. 184, “Accounting for Changes and Error Corrections —
A Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3" ("FAS 1564). FAS 154 requiires
retrospective application to prior period financial statements of changes in accounting
principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the
cumulative effect of the change. This statement is effective for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005 (the Company’s
fiscal 2007).

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We do not have material exposure to market risk from derivative or non-derivative financial
instruments. We do not utilize such instfruments to manage market risk exposures or for trading or
speculative purposes. We do, however, invest available cash and cash equivalents in highly
liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or less. As of June 30, 2005, we
had approximately $173 million of cash and cash equivalents invested in highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less, including $16.2 million of
overnight repurchase agreements. We believe that potential near-term losses in future earnings,
fair values and cash flows from reasonably possible near-term changes in the market rates for
such instruments are not material to us. We manage our debt structure and interest rate risk
through the use of fixed- and floating-rate debt. While changes in interest rates could decrease
our interest income or increase our interest expense, we do not believe that we have a material
exposure to changes in interest rates based on the relative size of our interest bearing assets and
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liabilities. We do not undertake any specific actions concerning exposure to interest rate risk and
we are not party to any interest rate derivative transactions.

- We conduct a portion of our business internationally exposing earnings, cash flows and
financial position to foreign currency risks. The majerity of these risks are associated with
fransactions denorminated in currencies other than our functional currency. Our policy on foreign
currency risk is to minimize these risks whenever possible, supplemented with foreign currency
forward contracts, During 2005, the Company entered into foreign currency forward contracts
to manage risks associated with fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates related to
specifically identified operating expenses. The confracts, totaling $4.2 million in notional value,
require the Company fo purchase currencies at specified rates over the next seven months (§2.7
million outstanding at June 30, 2005). The instruments are accounted for as foreign currency cash
flow hedges of specifically identified euro-denominated operating expenses.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As described in “Explanatory Note” in the forepart of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we
have restated the consolidated financial statements for prior periods and related notes
presented in this index.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of The BISYS Group, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of The BISYS Group, Inc.’s 2005 consolidated
financial statements and of its infernal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2005 and
audits of its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our
audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related
consolidated statements of income, of shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of The BISYS Group, Inc. at June 30, 2005 and 2004,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audifs of these statements in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 3 fo the consolidated financial stafements, The BISYS Group, Inc. has
restated its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under ltem A, that The BISYS Group, Inc.
did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2005 because
of the effect of mafterial weaknesses relating to (1) the control environment, (2) controls over
revenue recognifion, (3) confrols over accounting for business combinations and divestitures,
(4) controls over vendor rebates and legal and contractual setflements, (5) controls over leases,
and (6) controls over insurance commissions payable based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrafted Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective infernal confrol over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal confrol over financial reporting. Cur responsibility is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of infernal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective infernal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An
audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reperting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that () pertain fo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and (i) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The following material weaknesses have
been identified and included in management’s assessment.

1. Conftrolenvironment. The Company did not maintain an effective control environment,
Specifically, the Company (i) failed to establish adequate controls over the selection,
application and documentation of its accountfing policies to ensure all accounting
policies were made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(i) failed to adequately train its personnel in the application of generally accepted
accounting principles commensurate with its financial reporting requirements; (iii) failed
to effectively train its personnel on compliance with its Code of Conduct and (iv) failed
to maintain an effective whistleblower program. Additionally, the control environment
allowed certain individuals who were part of the Company’s former management to
permit ineffective controls that falled to detect certain accounting errors and failed to
prevent the improper override of controls in certain other instances, which allowed
inappropriate accounting under their supervision.

A control environment sets the tone of an organization, influences the control
consciousness of its people, and is the foundation of ail other components of internal
control over financial reporting. This control environment material weakness contributed
to the material weaknesses described in 2 through 6 below.

2. Confrols over revenue recognition. The Company did not maintain effective controls
over revenue. Specifically, effective controls, including effective reconciliations, were
" not designed and in place o ensure the completeness, accuracy and appropriate
timing of revenue recognition related to new customer contracts, software sales and
service bureau hosting arrangements, and the presentation of gross versus net revenue
recognition for certain distribution and marketing activities within the fund services
division. This control deficiency resulted in the restatement of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, for each
of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all guarters in fiscal 2004 and adjustments to the
third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to correct revenue and deferred revenue.
Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a misstatement of the
aforementioned accounts that would result in a material misstatement to the
Company’s annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be
prevented or defected.
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Conftrols over accounting for business combinations and divestitures, The Company did
not maintain effective controls over the accuracy and completeness of its accounting
for business combinations and divestitures. Specifically, effective controls were not
designed and in place to prevent or detect errors refated fo (i) the capitalization of
certain acquisition costs; (i) the recording of charges to merger and divestiture related
accruals; (i) the recognition of certain merger related cash flows as revenue; (iv) the
recognition of divestiture gains and operating expenses and (V) the amonization of
customer related intangible assets. This control deficiency resulted in the restatement of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004
and 2003, for each of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all guarters in fiscal 2004 and
adjustments to the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to correct merger and
divestiture related accruals and expenses, goodwill and intangible assets. Additionally,
this control deficiency could result in a misstatement of the aforementioned accounts
that would result in a material misstatement to the Company’s annual or interim
consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.

Controls over vendor rebates and legal and contractual settlements. The Company did
not maintain effective conirols over the completeness, accuracy and validity of its
accounting for vendor rebates and expenses incurred in connection with legal and
contractual settlements. Specifically, effective controls were not designed and in place
relative to the identification, communication and review of financial data used in
accounting for vendor rebates and expenses incurred in connection with legal and
contractual seftflements. This control deficiency resulted in the restatement of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and
2003, for ecch of the first two guarters in fiscal 2005, all quarters in fiscal 2004 and
adjustments to the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to correct vendor rebates, legal
and confractual setflement expenses, and the relafed accruals, Additionally, this
control deficiency could result in a misstatement of the aforementioned accounts that
would result in a material misstatement to the Company’s annual or interim
consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.

Controls over leases: The Company did not maintain effective controls over the
completeness and accuracy of its accounting for lease related assets, liabilities and
expenses. Specifically, effective controls were not designed and in place over the
selection, application and monitoring of our accounting policies related to (i) the
recognition of escalating lease payments, (i) the recognition of lease incentives and
(ii) the capitalization of equipment lease obligations 1o ensure that such transactions
were accounted for in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This
control deficiency resulted in the restatement of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, for each of the first two quarters
in fiscal 2005, all guarters in fiscal 2004 and adjustments to the third and fourth quarters
of fiscal 2005 to correct equipment, deferred rent, rent expense, amortization expense
and lease obligations. Additionaily. this control deficiency could resultin a misstaterment
of the aforementioned accounts that would result in a material misstatement to the
Company’s annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be
prevented or detected.

Controls over insurance commissions payable: The Company did not maintain effective
controls over the completenass and accuracy of its accounting for commissions
payable in the life insurance services division. Specifically, effective controls, including
effective reconciliations, were not designed and in place to appropriately record sales
commissions payable to the Company’s retail agents. This control deficiency resulted
in the restatement of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the years
ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, for each of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all quarters
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in fiscal 2004 and adjustments to the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to correct
accrued commissions payable. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a
misstatement of the aforementioned accounts that would result in a material
misstatement to the Company’s annual or interim consolidated financial statements
"that would not be prevented or detected.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the June 30, 2005 consolidated financial statements, and
our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that The BISYS Group, Inc. did not maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on criferia established in Infernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
COSO. Also, in our opinion, because of the effects of the material weaknesses described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, The BISYS Group. Inc. has not
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2005, based on
criteria established in Intfernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York
April 25, 2006
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share data)

2004 2003

For Years Ended June 30, 2005 As Restated As Restated
REVENUES 1.\ttt ittt e e e $1.063,055 $994,910 $855,237
Operating costs and expenses:

Service and operating ....ociiic 653,629 608,397 510,845

Selling, general and administrative ... 169,703 183,987 133,638

Depreciation and amortization ..........occccviiiiio 79.016 73,313 61,426

Restructuring and impairment charges .........cvovvvienin, 2,340 16,244 10,919

Litigation and reguiatory seftlements ................oooe. 32,269 8,604 —
Total operating Ccosts and expenses ... 936,857 860,545 716,828
OpPerating ©AIMINGS .ttt 126,198 134,365 138,409
INterest INCOME ... i e 2,604 1,345 1.472
IMterest EXPeNSE i i (19.451) (19,201) (18,804)
Investment gains (losses) and other ... 13,052 394 (1,585
Income from confinuing operations before iIncome faxes .. 122,403 116,903 119,492
Income taxes ........... e 44,803 44,602 43,916
Income from continuing operations ..........ccoceieiiininnn 77.600 72,301 75,576
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tfax ..... (71,493) 2,170) 1,708
NETINCOME .. $§ 6107 $ 70131 §$ 77,284
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

ContinuiNg OPerations ... vvvrv i S 065 $§ 060 $§ 063

Discontinued operations ......c.coviiiiii i (0.60) (0.02) 0.01
Total basic earnings (10ss) pershare ...........cocoivvviiinnnnns $ 005 § 059 § 065
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Continuing operations ........coveviiriie S 065 § 060 S 062

Discontinued operations .........ociiviiiii i (0.59 (0.02 0.01
Total diluted earnings (I0sS) PEr sNAre ........ovovivvviinvnein, $ 005 § 058 § 063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

June 30,

ASSETS

Current assefts:
Cash and cash equivalents ...
Restricted COsh ...
Accountsreceivable, net ...
Insurance premiums and commissions receivable ...............
Deferred tax QsSet i
Other cument assets ...
Current assets of discontinued operations ................ PO

Total CUIMENT GSSETS L. i e s
Property and equipment, nef ...
GoOAWIll i
INntangible assets, Net . .
(@1 7= e 1T I
Noncurrent assets of discontinued operations ...........oviieis

o] (ol e 7= 1T U

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt ...
Short-term bormowings ..o e
ACCOUNTtS PAYAIE L.
Insurance premiums and commissions payable .................
Other current liabilifies ... e
Current liabilities of discontinued operations ...........o.ooeeven.

Total current liabilifies ... ..o
Long-term debt ..o
Deferred tax fiabllify ...
Defermred reVENUBS ...\ it
Other Iabilifies ... oo
Noncurrent liabilities of discontinued operations ...................

Total iabilities ...

Commitments and contingencies (see Notes 6, 9, 10 and 11)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $.02 par value; 320,000,000 shares authorized;
121,232,132 and 120,836,315 shares issued ....oovvvvviviiiinnn,

Additional paid-in capital ...
Retained earmnings ...oooo oo e
Notes receivable from stockholders ...
Employee benefit trust, 409,180 and 342,613 shares ...............
Deferred compensation ... .. v
Unearned compensation — restricted stock ..o,
Accumulated other comprehensive income ..o s,
Treasury stock at cost, 2,196,760 and 158,559 shares ..............

Total stockholders” equity ... cci i
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity .....o..vvvvviviviiereivenenn,

2004
2005 As Restated
S 172,953 S 142,726
42,314 67,125
102,678 91,065
88,548 80,285
36,838 29,213
19,393 35,871
— 11,931
461,724 458,216
55,993 60,751
752,415 692,941
247,063 243,776
23,265 30,845
— 139,226
$1,540.460 $1,625,755
S 399,904 S 12476
— 66,000
22,991 16,502
113,395 129,269
212,792 187.283
— 8,743
749,082 420,273
10,351 406,272
41,695 32,405
42,702 43,625
6,620 4,560
— 5,083
850,450 912,218
2,425 2,417
395,900 389,484
335,345 332,293
@R.718) (8,116)
(6,458) (56.507)
6,598 5,292
(7.798) 6,199
136 6,337
(32,420) (2.464)
690,010 713,537
$1,540,460 $1,625,755

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

2004 2003

For Years Ended June 30, 2005 As Restated As Restotec!
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET MG OMIE ot e e S 6107 § 70131 § 77,284
Adjustment for (income) loss from discontinued operations, net of fax ........... 71,493 2170 (1,708)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ... ... oo o 79.016 73.313 61,426

Deferred income tax provision (benefit) ........ ... o i 8,492 35,884 (5.147)

Investment (gains) iosses and other ... o e (13,052) (394) 1.685

Other non-Cash items, Net ... i 4,494 3,140 —
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and divestitures:

Restricted Cash ... . 24,811 (20,547) (8.570)

ACCOoUNTS TeCeivable, NeT .. . (11,943 (1,833) 3,469

insurance premiums and commissions receivable ... oo (8.263) 15,406 (10,521)

Other current and non-cument assets .. ... i i i e 4,041 2,087 3.067

ACCOUNTS PAYADIE . 6,489 2151 3,852

Insurance premiums and commissions payable ... oo (15,006) 9,918 26,533

Deferrad reVENUSS .. .t e (923) 11,467 9157

Accrued figbilifies and other ... . o o 48,176 29,603 20,928

Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations ....... 290 238 4,577
Net cash provided by operating activities ..........o.. o oo 204,222 228,432 185,932
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired . ...........o oo (82,638) (52,917) (145779
Payments related to businesses previously acquired .........coovv v (843) (4.600) (4.306)
Proceeds from business divestitures . ... o 52,323 — 235
Capital expenditures for property and equipment ... oo (9.844) (9,302) (14,200)
Capitalized sOffware COStS . . v e (39.950)  (41,273) (44,181)
Proceeds from sale of investments ... . . 16,233 765 -—
Acquired intangible assets ... (1.040) (300) (8119
10107 S P 3,214 1,343 CAle7))
Net cash used in investing activities from discontinued operations ............... (1,684) (3.076) (2.666)
Net cash used in investing activifies ... ... o i i s (65229) (109.360) (232119
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short-term BorowINgs, NET ... (66,000) (106.,000) 79,000
Proceeds from long-ferm debt .. ... i i — 100,000 —
Payment of long-term delt ... .. o e (13.614) (7.393) (6,492)
Exercise of StOCK OPHONS .. o 7,022 7,842 9,646
Issuance of COMMON STOCK . .ttt 4,659 5,021 4,581
Repurchases of COMMON STOCK ..o oo e (45,755)  (59.718) (33,419
O BT e 3,528 2,283 (2.487)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . ... o (110.160)  (67,965) 50,829
Change in cash and cash equIValents ... oo i e 28,833 61,107 4,642
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (includes cash of discontinued

operations of $1,394 in 2005, $4,232 in 2004 and $2.3211In2003) ............... 144,120 83.013 78,371
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (includes cash of discontfinued

operations of $1,394in 2004 and $4,232in2003) ... ..o §172953 $144,120 § 83,013
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for:

T ==Y S I $ 17,368 § 17,104 $ 16,334

IMCOMIE TEAXES o vt v s vt ettt it e e et e e $ 19595 § 20,027 § 42,277
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Capital lease obligations INCUIEd ... .o e $ 8250 § 14662 § 7566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

For Years ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005

Common $tock

(in thousands)

Additional
Paid-in

Shares

Amount Capital

Retained
Earnings

Notes

Receivable

from

Stockholders

Employee Benefit Trust

Shares

Amount

Balance, June 30, 2002, as previously
reported

Adjustments (see Note 3) .................
Balance, June 30, 2002, as restated .. ... ..

Netincome, gsrestated ..................
Foreign currency transiation adjustment . ..
Comprehensive income, as restated .. .. ..
Exercise of stock options . .................
Tax benefit of stock options exercised .. ...
lssuance of common stock ...............
Repurchases of common stock ...........
Employee benefitfrust ................ ..
Deferred compensation ..................

Balance, June 30, 2003, as restated ... .. ..

Netincome, asrestated ..................
Foreign currency translation adjustment . ..
Unredlized gain on investments, net of tax

Comprehensive income, as restated ... ...
Collections on notes receivable ..........
Exercise of sfock optfions ................ ..
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . . ...
Issuance of common stock ... ...
Common stock issued in acguisition ... ..
Repurchases of common stock ...........
Employee benefit frust ............ .. ...
Deferred compensation ..................
Compensation expense-resfricted stock ...

Balance, June 30, 2004, as restated .. .. . ..

Netincome ..o e,
Foreign currency translation adjustment ...
Unrealized gain on hedging activities .. ...
Unrealized gain on investments, net of tax

Reclassification adjustments for investment
gains, netoftax ..................... .

Comprehensive income (0ss) ............
Collections on notes receivable ..........
Exercise of stock options ..................
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . .. .,
Issuance of common stock ...
Repurchases of common stock ...........
Employee benefit trust . ......... ... 0L
Deferred compensation ..................
Compensation expense-restricted stock . ,

Balance, June 30,2005 ...................

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the consolidated financial statements,

119,880

$2,398 $370,854

$265,238
(57,037)

$(10.776)

119,880

2,398 370,854

208,201

10,776

77.284

(10.532)

(4.548)

2,405 378,986

270,405

(10,776

70,131

(56.833)
(805)
(1,60%)

332,293

6,107

(2.580)

(476)

1

$2,425 $395,900

$ (3.718)
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$335,345
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(in thousands)

For Years ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005

Balance, June 30, 2002, as previously reported
Adjustments (see Note 3)

Balance, June 30, 2002, as restated

Net income, asrestated ........... ...
Foreign currency transiation adjustment

Comprehensive income, as restated

Exercise of stock options ... ...
Tax benefit of stock opticns exercised
Issuance of common STOCK v
Repurchases of commaon stock
Employee benefit frust

Deferred compensation

Balance, June 30, 2003, as restated

Net income, asrestated ...
Foreign currency franslation adjustment
Unredlized gain on investments, net of tax

Comprehensive income, as restated

Collections on notes receivable ................ ... ..
Exercise of stock options ................. oo
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Issuance of commonstock ........ ..
Common stock issued in acquisition
Repurchases of common sfock
Employee benefit trust
Deferred compensation . ........... oo,
Compensation expense-restricted stock ...............

Balance, June 30, 2004, as restated

NetinCOME . . .
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized gain on hedging activities .................
Unrealized gain on investments, net of tax

Reclassification adjustments for investment gains,
net of tax

Comprehensive income (10ss)

Collections on notesreceivable ......................
Exercise of stock options .. ...........o oo
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
lssuance of common stock
Repurchases of common stock
Employee benefit trust
Deferred compensation ...........oo i
Compensation expense-restricted sfock ...............

Balance, June 30, 2005

Accumulated
Unearned Other
Compensation Comprehensive Comprehensive

Deferred ~ Restricted Income Income __Treasury Stock

Compensation Stock (Loss) (Loss) Shares Amount

§ - S — § (648) — 8 —

— — (648) — —

— — §77.284 — — —

— — 308 308 — —
$77,692

— — — (625} 15,762

29) — — (339 9,129

— — — 1,451 (33.419)

— — — (346) 5,705

5,781 — — — —

5,752 — (340) 141 (2.823)

— — §70,131 — — —

— — 884 884 — —

— — 5,793 5,793 — -
$76,808

— — — 769) 13,205

(786) (8.291) — 397) 5,837

— — — (2.798) 40,428

— — 4,027 (89.718)

_ — — (45) 607

326 — — — —

— 2,092 : — — —

5,292 6.199 6,337 159 (2,464)

— — $ 6,107 — — —

— — 89 (8% — -

— — (156) (156) — —

— — @n @hH — —_

— — (6.825) (56,825 — —
)

— — — 670) 9,602

— (5,290) — (368) 5134

— — — 3,146 (45,785)

14 — — 73 1,063

1,420 — — — —

— 3,691 — — —

$6,598 $(7.798) $ 136 2,197  $(32,420)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

43




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Throughout these notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, all referenced amounts
for prior periods and prior periocd comparisons reflect the balances and amounts on a restated
basis. For information on the restatement, see Note 3 — “Prior Period Restatement.” Also, in
April 2005, the Company completed the sale of its Education Services business. In accordance
with FAS No. 144 ("FAS 144"), “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, ”
the financial results of the Company’s Education Services business is reported as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. Accordingly, the notes to the consolidated financial
statements reflect historical amounts exclusive of discontinued operations. See Note 4 —
“Acquisitions and Dispositions,” for further description.

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

The BISYS Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) provides outsourcing solutions
to the financial services sector. The Investment Services group provides administration and
distribution services for mutual funds, hedge funds, private equity funds, retirement plans, -
and other investment products. The Insurance Services group provides independent
wholesale distribution of life insurance and commercial property/casualty insurance, long-
term care, disability, and annuity products. The Information Services group provides
information processing, imaging, and back-office services to banks, insurance companies
and corporate clients.

Basis of Presentation

The consclidated financial statementsinclude the accounts of The BISYS Group, Inc. and
its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have . been
eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassification

Certain amounts reported in 2004 and 2003 have been reclassified to conform 1o the
2005 presentation. Capitalized software costs, previously included in property and
equipment, have been reclassified to intangible assets. Additionally, depreciation and
amortization expense, previously included with selling, general and administrative expenses,
has been combined with amortization of intangibles and presented as a separate caption
on the accompanying consolidated statements of income for all periods presented.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year is from July 1 to June 30. Unless otherwise stated, references
to the years 2005, 2004 and 2003 relate to the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. References to future years also relate to the fiscal year ended June 30.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid debt instruments purchased with
original maturities of three months or less, including $16.2 million and $26.0 million of overnight
repurchase agreements at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company maintains
cash deposits in banks which from time to fime exceed the amount of deposit insurance
available. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the institutions and
believes that any potential credit loss is minimal.
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Restricted Cash

Unremitted insurance premiums are held in a fiduciary capacity and approximated
$42.3 million and $67.1 million at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The period for which
the Company holds such funds is dependent upon the date the agent or broker remits the:
payment of the premium to the Company and the date the Company is required to forward
such payment to the insurer.

Receivables

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at invoiced amounts and do not bear interest.
A magjeority iof the Company’s receivables are from banks, investment firms, insurance
companies and retail insurance brokers which approximated $33.6 million, $54.3 million,
$26.6 million, and $63.1 million, respectively, at June 30, 2005. Although the Company’s
receivables are concentrated in the financial services mdusfry bad debt expense historically
has not been significant.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
inherent in its accounts receivable portfolio. In establishing the required allowance,
management considers historical losses, current receivable agings and existing economic
conditions. Bad debt expense for 2005, 2004 and 2003 approximated $1.7 million, $1.6 million
and $4.5 million, respectively. Write-offs for 2005, 2004 and 2003 approximated $1.3 million,
$2.6 million and $6.7 million, respectively. At June 30, 2005 and 2004, the Company'’s
allowance: for doubtful accounts was approximately $3.4 milion and $3.0 million,
respectively. The Company aiso maintains an allowance for probable revenue concessions
and adjustments arising in the normal course of business with customers. At June 30, 2005
and 2004, the Company’s allowance for such adjustments was approximately $0.9 millicn
and $0.8 million, respectively. Historically, the Company has not encountered significant
concessions or adjustments,

The Company has separafely reflected receivables and payables arising from ifs
insurance-related businesses on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The
captions “insurance premiums and cormmissions receivable” and “insurance premiums and
commissions payable” include insurance premiums and commissions in the Company’s
commercial insurance services division and net commissions receivabie in the Company’'s
life insurance brokerage division. In its capacity as a commercial property and casualty
wholesale distributor, the Company collects premiums from other agents and brokers and.,
after deducting its commissions, remits the premiums to the respective insurers.

Commission revenue in the life insurance brokerage and commercial insurance services
divisions is recorded net of an allowance for commission adjustments due to lapses, policy
cancellations and revisions in coverage. At June 30, 2005 and 2004, the aliowance for
commission adjustments approximated $5.2 million and $6.8 million, respectively, and is
netted against insurance premiums and comm|33|ons receivable on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit
risk are limited to accounts receivable. No individual customer accounted for 10% or more
of total revenues for 2005, 2004 and 2003. As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, no customer
accounted for 10% or more of the total accounts receivable balance. The Company
maintains allowances for probable credit risks and otherwise controls this risk through
monitoring procedures.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company conducts a portion of its business internationally exposing earnings. cash
flows and financial position to foreign currency risks. The majority of these risks are associated
with transactions denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency.
The Company's policy on foreign currency risk is to minimize these risks whenever possible,
supplemented with foreign currency forward contracts,

During 2005, the Company entered into foreign currency forward contracts to manage
risks associated with fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates related o specifically
identified operating expenses. The contfracts, totaling $4.2 million in notional value., require
the Company to purchase currencies at specified rates over the next seven months
($2.7 million outstanding af June 30, 2005). The instruments are accounted for as foreign
currency cash flow hedges of specifically identified euro-denominated operating expenses.
Changes in the fairvalue of these instfruments are carried in octher comprehensive income
and are reclassified to service and operating expenses when the underlying hedged
operating expenses are recognized.

Investments

Management determines the appropriate clossification of investments in equity
securities af the time of purchase. Marketable equity securities available for sale, included
in other current assets, are carried at market based upon guoted market prices. Unrealized
gains or losses on available for sale securities are recorded in other comprehensive income
as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity, net of reloted deferred income taxes. Realized
gains or losses are computed based on specific identification of the securities sold. Proceeds
from securities sold during 2005 approximated $15.2 million, and realized gains of $9.9 million
were recognized.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization
are computed using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
- Qs follows:

Estimated
Useful Lives
_(years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements ................... 8 - 40
Data processing equipment and systems ................ 3-7
Furniture and fixtures ... 3-10
Leased equipment under capital leases ................. 3-7

Depreciation and amorization expense for the assets included within property and
equipment for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $20.6 million, $20.7 million and $20.0 million,
respectively. Accumulated depreciation and amortization includes $10.7 million and
$12.1 million of accumulated amortization for leased property under capital leases at
June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Expenditures for major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while minor
replacements, maintenance and repairs which do not improve or extend the life of such
assets are charged to expense as incurred. Disposals are removed at cost less accumuiated
depreciation with the resulfing gain or ioss being reflected in operations.

Leasehold improvements in connection with operating leases of real property are
amortized over the shorter of their economic lives or the lease term.
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Leases

The Company leases facilities and equipment used in its operations, some of which are
required to be capitdlized in accordance with FAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases”
("FAS 13"). FAS 13 requires the capitalization of leases meeting cerfain criteria, with the
related asset being recorded in property, plant and equipment subject to amortization and
an offsetting amount recorded as a liability.

Rental payments, including rent escalations, rent holidays, rent concessions and
leasehold improvement incentives in connection with operating leases of real property, are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Goodwill and Acquired intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net amounts
assigned to tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The
Company periodically evaluates goodwill for impairment no less than annually by
comparing the carrying value of each reporting unit to its fair value using a two-step
impairment test set forth in FAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” if the carrying
amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwil, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal fo that excess.

Intangible assets are amortized on either a pattern of consumption or a straight-line tasis
over their estimated useful lives, The Company evalugtes, forimpairment, the carrying value
of acquired infangible assets by comparing the carrying value fo the anticipated future
undiscounted cash flows expected 1o be generated from the use of the intangible asset.
If an infangible asset is impaired, the asset is written down to estimated fair value. Intangible
assets resulting from acquired customer relationships are evaluated in light of actual
customer aftrition rates and related cash flows to ensure that the carrying value of these
intangible assefs is recoverable.

Additiona! information pertaining to goodwill and intfangible assets is presented in
Note 5.

Capitalized Software Costs

The Company capiftalizes purchased soffware and certain software development costs
incurred to develop new software or enhance existing software which is either utilized by the
Company to process customer transactions or marketed externally. The majority of such
activities relate to soffware used to process customer transactions. The Company charges
to operations routine maintenance of software, design costs and development costs
incurred prior to the application development stage or establisnment of a product’s
technological feasibility. Costs incurred subsequent to the preliminary project stage or
establisnment of a product’s technological feasibility are capitalized and amortized over the
expected useful life of the related product.

The Company capitalizes the costs of computer software developed or obtained for
infernal use in accordance with Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use” ("SOP 98-17). Capitalized
computer. soffware costs consist of purchased software licenses, implementation costs,
consulting costs and payroll-related costs for certain projects that qualify for capitalization.
The Company also capitalizes certain costs incurred to develop new software or enhance
existing soffware which is marketed externally or utilized by the Company to process
customer transactions in accordance with FAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed” ("FAS 86™).

Costs capitalized under SOP 98-1 are amortized over their estimated useful lives,
generally five years, and ranging from three to six years. Costs capitalized under FAS 86 are
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amortized using the greater of (@) the amount determined by the ratio of the product’s
current revenue 1o fotal expected future revenue or (B) the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the product. During all periods presented, the straight-line method
was used to amortize the capitalized costs as this method resuited in greater amortization.
Software amortization, included in depreciation and amortization, for 2005, 2004 and 2003
approximated $34.1 million, $31.2 million and $26.7 million, respectively, resulting in a net
increase in capitalized software costs of $6.3 million, $10.1 million and $17.5 million for 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the likelihood of recovering the cost of long-lived ossets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount for an
asset may not be recoverable. The Company considers estimates of undiscounted cash
flows, along with management’s plans with respect to the operations, in assessing the
recoverability of capitalized software costs, property, equipment and other long-lived
assefts. If it is determined that an impairment has occurred, an impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value.

Revenue Recognition

Except as noted for software and related revenues described below, the Company
recognizes revenue in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bullefin No. 104, "Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements” ("SAB 104”). SAB 104, which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation
and disclosure of revenue in financial statements, is supplemented by the specific guidance
provided for the specialized revenue recognition types addressed below.

The Company’s principal sources of service revenues include information processing
and software services, administration and distribution of mutuatl funds, hedge funds and
private equity funds, brokerage and consulting services, administration and record keeping
of retirement plans, and commissions from insurance brokerage and distribution activities.
Revenues from these services are recognized in the periods in which the services are
performed or over the life of the customer contract. The Company recognizes revenues from
certain services on either a gross or net basis based upon consideration of various factors
or indicators as set forth in EITF 99-19, "Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Net as
an Agent” ("EITF 99-197).

Cash received by the Company in advance of the performance of services or the
revenue being recognized is deferred. The Company defers recognition of up-front
implementation and conversion fees that are not the culmination of a separate earnings
process and recognizes them ratably over the estimated customer life, generaily between
five and eight years. ‘

Data processing revenues: Revenues are recognized in accordance with SAB 104 and
EiTF No. 00-21, "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” Data cenfer information
processing revenues are recognized based on monthly confractual minimum amounts or
actual monthly usage by the customer. Implementation fees for ancillary products are
generdlly recognized over six years, consistent with the amortization of related purchased
software licenses. In connection with the Company’s outsourcing arrangements, the
Company often performs implementations, including the installation and customization of
its proprietary soffware or third-party software in its centers. Under these arrangements, a
client does not take possession of the software nor has the right to take possession of the
software without incurring a significant penalty. The Company recognizes all internal and
contracted costs associated with information processing, implementation and conversion
revenues as incurred. Termination fees are charged when customers cancel their
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outsourcing confract and are recognized ratably as revenue over the period from customer
notification fo the deconversion date.

The Company has agreements with third party vendors to resell the services of those third
party vendors to its customers. The Company is obligated to provide these services to certain
of its customers, which include Internet banking, telecommunication and other resold
services, and is considered the primary obligor. In addition, the Company prices these
services independent of the amounts billed by the third party vendors, and the Company
bears all collection risk for the amounts billed fo its customers, In accordance with
EITF No. 99-19, amounts earned from the resale of these services are recorded as revenue
on a gross basis and the costs incurred from the third party service providers are recorded
Qs service and operating costs in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Administration, distribution and record keeping revenues: Revenues earned from
administration and distribution of mutual funds, hedge funds and private equity funds are,
insome cases, based on the average net asset value or invested capital of the fund, subject
to minimum charges, and in some cases consist of or include account-based fees and other
fixed charges. Revenues earned from record keeping services for retirement plans are
generally based upon the number of eligible employees or participants in a plan subject to -
certain minimums, as well as fees based on assets held in the retirement plans, and
fransaction fees. Revenues from these services are recognized in the periods in which the
services are performed.

Insurance commission revenues: Commission revenue from insurance distribution
operations is recognized when all placement services have been provided, protection is
agfforded under the insurance policy, and the premium is known or can be reasonably
estimated andis billable. Commission revenue is recorded net of an allowance for estimated
commission adjustments due to lapses, policy cancellations, and revisions in coverage.

In the Life Insurance division, insurance commissions earned from carriers are recorded
net of amounts due to agents. Commission revenue from carriers and commissions payable
to agents are generally recognized based on a percentage of the premium that the
policyholder pays to the insurance carrier. First year commissions are caiculated based on
a confractual percentage of the first year’'s premium. Renewal commissions relate to the
period following the first year and are paid at a contractual rate if the policy remainsin force.
Bonus commissions are paid by the insurance carrier in situations in which certain volume,
persistency or profitability targets are met.

Software and related revenues: The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with
the provisions of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*AICPA") Statement
of Position ("SOP") 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition, ” as amended, as well as Technical
Practice Aids issued from fime to time by the AICPA. Revenue is recognized when a non-
cancelable license agreement has been executed, fees are fixed or determinable, the
software has been delivered and installed, accepted by the customer if acceptance is
required by the confract and is other than perfunctory, and collection is considered
probable. The Company sells software licenses in conjunction with hardware and
professional services for installation and maintenance. The Company allocates the total
arrangement fee among each deliverable using the fair value of each of the deliverables
determined using vendor-specific objective evidence (*VSOE”). VSOE of fair value is
determined using the price charged when that element is sold separately. In software
arrangements in which the Company has fair value of all undelivered elements but not of
a delivered element, the residual method is used o record revenue. Under the residual
method, the fair value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion
of the arrangement fee is allocated fo the delivered element(s) and is recognized as
revenue. In software arrangements in which the Company does not have VSOE of fair value

of all undelivered elements, revenue is deferred until fair value is determined, or until all
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elements for which the Company does not have VSOE of fair value have been delivered.
The Company’s soffware license agreements do not require significont modification or
customization of the underlying software, and accordingly, installation and fraining services
are not considered essential fo functionality. However, the Company does not have VSOE
foritsinstaliation services so allhardware and software revenues are deferred until installation
is complete. Revenues from training and other services are recognized as services
are performed.

Maintenance revenue consists of fees generated by providing software maintenance,
“unspecified. upgrades and support to customers, such as telephone support and new
releases of soffware and-updated user documentation on a when-and-if-available basis. A
customer typically prepays maintenance and support fees for an initial period, and the
related revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the term of such initial period.
Maintenance is renewable by the customer, and maintenance revenue is recognized
ratably over the term of the related support period, generally twelve months.

Per Share Data

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common
““shares outstanding during each year presented. Diluted earnings per share is computed
using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares
outstanding during each year presented. Common equivalent shares consist of stock
. options and restricted stock and are computed using the treasury stock method. The effect
. of the assumed conversion of the convertible notes info common stock would be anti-
dilutive and therefore is excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Amounts utilized in per share computations are as follows (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
- Weighted average common shares outstanding ... 119,358 119,872 119,597
Assumed conversion of common shares issuable
under stock-based compensation plans ............ 920 1,293 2,124
Weighted average common and common
equivalent shares oufstanding ........................ 120,278 121,165 121,721

Options to purchase 8.6 million shares of common stock at various prices ranging from
$15.13 fo $35.30 were outstanding at June 30, 2005, but were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because the options’ exercise -prices were
greater than the average market price of common shares,

Foreign Currency Translation

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all company businesses except operations
in England, Guernsey, Ireland and Luxembourg. Foreign currency denominated assets and
liabilities for these units are translated info U.S. doliars based on exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each year, and revenues, expenses and cash flows are translated at average
exchange rates during the year. Transiation adjustments are included as a Componen‘r of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company. accounts for its stock option and restricted stock purchase plans under
the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 26, “Accounting for Stock
Issued fo Employees.” Under the applicable provision of APB 25, compensation expense has
been recorded for restricted stock awards, and no expense has been recorded for the
Company’s other stock-based compensation plans. The following table presents the effect
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on net income and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (in thousands, except per share data). See Note 17,

2004 2003
2005 As Restated  As Restated
Net income, asreporfed ..., $ 6,107 $70,131 §$77,284

Add: Stock-based employee compensation

expense included in reported net income,

net of related tax effects .................. ol 2,342 1,313 —
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense deftermined under fair value based

method for all awards, net of related tax effects ... (22,160) (15,516) (17.944)

Pro forma netincome ..o, $(13,701) $ 55,928 § 59,340
Earnings per share:
Basic, asreported ... § 005 § 059 § 065
Basic, pro forma ..o § (0.1 § 047 § 0.50
Diluted, asreported ..o § 005 $ 058 S 063
Diluted, pro forma oo e § (012 § 047 § 050

On June 20, 2005, the Company approved the acceleration of vesting of certain
unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock options with exercise prices equal to or greater than
$15.18 per share previously awarded to its employees, including its executive officers, and
its directors under the Company’s equity compensation plans.

The table below summarizes the outstanding options subject to accelerated vesting
(options in thousands).

Aggregate number Weighted average

of shares subject exercise price

to acceleration per share
Executive officers ... vvii 768 $20.42
All other employees ... 2,009 $22.00
DI CTOrS o 70 §17.73
e ] (e | S 2,847 $§21.47

The accelerated options represented approximately 22% of the Company’s
outstanding stock options as of June 20, 2005. The primary purpose of the acceleration was
to enable the Company to avoid recognizing compensation expense associated with these
options in future periods in its consolidated statements of income, following the Company’s
adoption of FAS123R in July 2005. It is estimated that the maximum future pre-tax
compensafion expense that will be avoided as aresult of the acceleration of vesting of these
options is approximately $21 million (including $11 million in 2006 and $6.5 million in 2007).

Income Taxes

The asset and liability method is used in accounting for income taxes whereby deferred
tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting
and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and
laws. A valuation allowance is provided when the Company determines that it is more likely
than not that a portion of the deferred tax asset balances will not be realized.
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Service and Operating Costs

Service and operating costs reflected on the accompanying consolidated statements
of income include direct costs and expenses applicable to revenues earned, such as
compensation, data processing costs, data communication costs, equipment rentals, and
other direct operating expenses. Service and operating costs exclude depreciation and
amortization expenses which are presented as a separate caption in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income.

Legal Costs

The Company expenses legal costs in the period such costs are actually incurred, net
of contractual insurance recoveries.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. The most significant estimates are related to
goodwill, acquired intangible assets, income taxes, legal and regulatory contingencies, and
revenue recognition. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates,

Disclosure Regarding Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable, and
accrued expenses approximate their carnying values due to the short period of fime to
maturity. The fair value of investments is determined based upon quoted market prices. The
fair values of convertible subordinated notes and capital lease obligations are estimated
using discounted cash flows based on market rates of interest. The fair values of credit facility
borrowings approximate their carrying values as actual interest rates used approximate
market rates of interest.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) issued FAS 123R,
“Share-Based Payment.” FAS 123R establishes standards for accounting for transactions in
which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. FAS 123R focuses
primarily on accounting for fransactions in which an entity obtains employee services in
share-based payment transactions. FAS 123R requires that the fair value of such equity
instruments be recognized as expense in the financial statements as services are performed.
Prior to FAS 123R, only the pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. FAS 123R is
effective for the Company’s first quarter of 2006. The Company intends to adopt FAS 123R
effective July 1, 2005 utilizing the modified prospective application transition method and
the Black-Scholes option pricing model that are permitted under the new standard. The
estimated impact of adopting FAS 123R on resuits of operations for 2006, based on options
outstanding at June 30, 2005, is an increase to compensation expense of approximately $2.2
million, after tax,
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In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 183, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets —
An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29" ("FAS 153"). FAS 163 amends Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” ("APB 29). The
amendments made by FAS 153 are based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary
assets should be measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. Further, the
amendments eliminate the narrow exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar
productive assets and replace it with a broader exception for exchanges of nonmonetary
assets that do not have “commercial substance.” Previously, APB 29 required thatf the
accounting for an exchange of a productive asset for a similar productive asset, or an
equivalent interest in the same or similar productive asset, should be based on the recorded
amount of the asset relinquished. The provisions of SFAS 153 will be effective for nonmonetary
asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005, and there is no
expected impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued FAS No. 154, “Accounting for Changes and Error
Corrections — A Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3" ("FAS 154”).
FAS 154 requires retrospective application to prior period financial statements of changes
in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific
effects or the cumulative effect of the change. This statement is effective for accounting
changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005
(the Company’s fiscal 2007).

Detail of Certain Financial Statement Accounts
(in thousands)

2004
2005 As Restated
Other current assets:
PIEPAITS vt $ 17,332 $ 19,355
Other .......ooooviviinn, S 2,061 16,516
$ 19,393 $ 36,871
Property and equipment, neft:
[ ] Y S 893 S 893
Buildings and leasehold improvements ........... 26,121 24,563
Data processing equipment and systems ........ 55,785 54,923
Furniture and fixtures ... 34,643 34,052
Leased equipment under capital leases ......... 26,895 30,562
144,337 144,993
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization ... (88,344 (84,242)
$ 55,993 $ 60,751
Other current liabilities:
CompPensatoN . ..vovvi i $ 53,518 $ 43,534
Deferred revenues ......ccovvv i 46,404 46,229
Accrued expensesand other ...l 112,870 97.520
$212,792 $187,283
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Prior Period Restatement

Prior to the issuance of the March 31, 2005 interim financial statements, the Company
determined that it was necessary to restate previously issued financial statements to record
adjustrents for correction of errors resulfing from various. accounting matters described
below. The restatement arose from an internalinvestigation initiated by the Audit Committee
of the Company’s Board of Directors in April 2005 to gain a full understanding of the facts
and circumstances surrounding certain arrangements between the Company and advisers
of certain U.S. mutual funds. As the investigation evolved, the Audit Committee, with the
assistance of independent counsel and forensic accountants, broadened the focus of ifs
review fo include accounting transactions across all lines of business as well as the facts
giving rise fo the restatement described herein and the Company’s accounting policies and
procedures related thereto. The investigation included an extensive review of the
Company’s accountfing policies, accounfing records, supporting documentation and
e-mail communications, as well as inferviews with numerous current and former employees.
As a result of this investigation, various matters were identified that required the restatement
of prior year financial statements. Certain of the restatement adjustments related to entries
which the Company believed were prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), but which were subsequently determined to be errors. In
addition, as aresult of the investigation and the restatement of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, control deficiencies in the Company's internal control over financial
reporting were identified. The investigation indicated that certain individuals who were part
of the Company’s former management failed to set an effective tone to communicate
appropriate ethical standards and financial reporting integrity, which contributed to
ineffective controls, that failed to detect certain accounting errors and failed 1o prevent the
improper override of controls in cerfain other instances, which allowed inappropriate
accounting under their supervision. While the investigation concluded that current
management has established an effective culture and tone necessary to support its control
environment, this deficiency was a significant contributing factor to the restatement,

The Company has restated its financial results for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004
and 2003, each of the first two gquarters in fiscal 2005 and alt guarfers in fiscal 2004, The
adjustments generally fall into the following six categories: adjustments in connection with
(1) revenue recognition issues, including recognition of revenue and deferred revenue from
newly acguired customer confracts, service bureau hosting arrangements, soffware sales
and the presentation of gross versus net revenue recognition for cerfain fund services
activities; (2) accounting for business combinations and divestitures, including capitalization
of certain acquisition costs, charges to merger and divestiture related accruals, recognition
of certain merger related cash flows as revenue, recognition of divestiture related gains and
operating expenses, and amortization costs for acquired intangible assets; (3) accounting
for vendor rebates and other non-routine transactions, including expenses incurred in
connection with legal and contractual settlements and with certain fund services marketing
arrangements; (4 accounting for leases, including the recognition of escalating lease
payments, the recognition of lease incentives, and the capitalization of eguipment lease
obligations; (&) accounting for insurance commissions payable; and (6) other miscellaneous
errors. Additionally, adjustments were also recorded for the tax effects of the restatement
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adjustments and miscellaneous tax related errors. The net impact of the restatement on net
income for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 is setf forth below (in thousands):

2004 __ 2003

Net income, as previously reported ................. $63.580 $ 98,243
Pretax restatement adjustments;

Revenue recognition issues ........ovvveiiiiinnnn 7,753 (18.918)

Business combinations and divestitures ........... (5,765) 6,636)

Vendor rebates and other

non-routine fransactions ... 4,728 ' (4,299)

LSS it . .(1,872) (1.019)

Insurance commissions payable ................... (2,641) (489)

Other miscellaneous ......ooovvviiiiiiicicii, 3,453 (1,285
Total pretax restatement adjustments ............... 5,756 (32,646)
Tax effect of restatement adjustments .............. 2,361 (11,687)
Restatement adjustments for tax matters ........... G.156) —
Effect of net restatement adjustments ....... e 6,551 (20,959
Net income, asrestated ............coocveviiiiiiinn., §70,131 $77.284

The restatement also affected periods prior to the year ended June 30, 2003. The net
impact of the restatement on such prior pericds has been reflected as o reduction to
beginning stockholders’ equity as of July 1, 2002 in the amount of $57.0 million, net of a tax
benefit of $31.8 million. The restatement of the consolidated financial statements principally
consists of adjustments reiating to the items set forth below.

1. Revenue recognition issues

Revenues were incorrectly recognized for certain up front fees, primarily conversion-
related fees, received in connection with newly acquired customer contracts and
relationships, and up front fees charged in connection with service bureau hosting
arrangements. Additionally, soffware sales were incorrectly recognized upon
delivery and the revenue on certain distribution and marketing activities within the
fund services division were incorrectly recognized on a gross versus net of related
expense basis.

Adjustments were made to recognize such up front fees either as a reduction in
purchase price or to defer such fees over the estimated life of the related
agreement or customer, depending on the nature of the transaction, or delay
recognition of the undelivered elements of software sales until the fair value of
the undelivered element is determined or ultimately delivered. Additionally,
adjustments were made to correctly recognize revenue and expense on a gross
basis for certain fund services activities in which the Company was determined to
be the principal and on a net basis when the Company was determined to be
acting as agent.

)

2. Accounting for business combinations and divestitures

Certain costs associated with business acquisitions were incorrectly capitalized in
periods in which they should have been expensed, certain costs not related to these
fransactions were incorrectly charged to merger and divestiture related accruals,
and certain costs for acquired intangible assets were incorrectly amortized on a
straight line basis. In addition, certain cash flows that were received subsequent to
the acquisition should have been recognized as receivables in connection with the
acquisition and were incorrectly recognized as revenue by the Company in
subsequent periods.
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e Adjustments were made to expense certain costs associated with these business
combinations as operating expenses in the period in which they were incurred,
to record certain receivables associated with revenues of the acquired businesses
as part of the purchase accounting, to include certain costs associated
with divestitures as operating expenses in the period in which they were incurred,
and to correctly amortize certain acquired intfangibles based upon pattern
of consumption.

3. Accounting for vendor rebates and other non-routine transactions

o Certainrebates received from vendors were incorrectly recognized as a reduction
in vendor expense in the period in which the rebate was received. Certain expenses
incurred in connection with legal and contractual settiements were incorrectly
deferred and recognized in later periods. In addition, certain expenses related to
marketing arrangements within the fund services division were incorrectly deferred
to subsequent periods,

s Adjustments were made fo recognize vendor rebates as a reduction in expense
over the life of the related new agreement and to recognize expenses relating to
legal and contractual settlements and marketing arrangements in the appropriate
period based on the terms of the contracts, setflements or arrangements,

4, Accounting for leases

« The Company did not correctly account for the effects of escolating lease
payments, or lease incentives over the respective lease term. Escalafing lease
payments and lease incentives were incorrectly recognized in the period paid or
received rather than on a straight line basis as a component of lease expense.
Additionally, certain equipment leases were incorrectly accounted for as operating
leases, rather than as capital leases.

e Adjustments were made to recognize the lease incentives and the effects of
scheduled rent increases on a straight-line basis over the lease ferm and to properly
capitalize certain equipment leases, resulting in the recognition of amortization and
interest expense, rather than rent expense.

5. Accounting for insurance commissions payable

* Insurance commissions payable to retail agents were not accurately recorded in
the period the related policy placement services were provided. Placement of the
policy gives rise to the recognition of both the Company’s commission revenue and
related commission expense.

¢ Adjustments were made to recognize the proper amount of insurance commissions
payable in the period of policy placement, consistent with the period of recognition
for the related commission revenue.

6. Other miscellaneous

. Adjusffnen’rs were made to recognize the effects of other miscelianeous errors
corrected as part of the restatement.

Adjustments were also made to recognize the tax impact of restatement adjustments
and miscellaneous tax related errors corrected as part of the restatement.

56




The following table sets forth the effects of the restatement adjustments as discussed
above, and of the classification of the Education Services business as discontinued
operations, on the Consolidated Statements of Income for 2004 and 2003, The Company’s
restatement of its financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 resuited
in an increase tfo net income of $6.6 million for 2004 and a decrease to net income of
$21.0 million for 2003.

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2004 June 30, 2003
As Restated As Restated
with with
As Previously Discontinued As Previously Discontinued
Reported As Restated Operations Reported As Restated Operations
REVENUSS v\ttt ittt i $1.037,302 $1.034,215 $994,910 $933,6390  $898,340  $855,237
Operating costs and expenses:
Service and operating ... ..o 657,981 631,043 608,397 554,351 531,302 510,845
Selling, general and administrative ..., 197,346 165,552 163,987 176,728 145,786 133,638
Depreciatfion and amortization ......... 26,978 80,305 73,313 18,822 68,136 61,426
Restructuring and impairment charges . . 29,099 17,299 16,244 12,079 11,860 10,919
Litigation and regulatory settlements .. ., — 8,604 8,604 — — —
Total operating costs ond expenses ... .. ) 911,404 902,803 860,545 761,980 757,084 716,828
Operating earnings .............oovvien, 125,898 131,412 134,365 171,659 141,256 138,409
Interestincome ......... oo 1,345 1.345 1.345 1.475 1,475 1,472
Interest expense .............. oo (19.049) (19.201) (19.201) (18,146) (18,804) (18,804)
investrment gains (losses) and other ....... — 394 394 — (1,585) (1.585
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes .................. 108,194 113,950 116,903 154,988 122,342 119,492
INCOMETaxXes ... ..o 44,614 43,819 44,602 56,745 45,058 43,916
Income from continuing operations ....... 63,580 70,131 72,301 98,243 77,284 75,676
Income (Joss) from discontinued
operations, netoftax .................. — — (2.170) — — 1,708
NetinCome ... i $§ 63,680 $§ 70131 $ 70131 $ 98243 § 77,284 S 77,284
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations .................. $ 053 $ 059 $§ 060 $ 082 $ 0656 § 063
Discontinued operations ................ — — (0.02) — — 0.01
Total basic earmings (loss) per share . ...... $ 0.53 § 059 § 059 § 082 § 065 § 065
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: ‘
Continuing operations .................. $ 053 $§ 058 $§ 0.0 $ 08 $ 063 § 062
Discontinued operations ................ — — 0.02) — — 0.01
Total diluted earnings (loss) per share . .... S 053 § 058 § 0.58 $ 081 § 063 § 063
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. Thefollowing table sets forth the effects of the restatement adjustments discussed above
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2004 and of the classification of the
Education Services business as discontinued operations (in thousands):

June 30, 2004

As Restated

with
As Previously Discontinued
Reported As Restated Operations
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ...........coovviii, $ 139,872 § 144120 §$ 142,726
Restricted cash ... 67,125 67,125 67,125
Accountsreceivable, net ... o G6,385 96,278 91,065
Insurance premiums and commissions receivable, net 87,154 80,285 80,285
Deferred tax asset ..o 13,484 29,559 29,213
Other cument assels ... 49,747 40,849 35,871
Current assets of discontinued operations ............... — — 11.931
Total current assets ... 453,767 458,216 458,216
Property and equipment, net ... 112,074 68,470 60,751
GOOAWIIl L e T 802,178 782,478 692,941
Intangible assets, net ... 211,298 284,372 243,776
Other assets ..ou oo e 32,623 32,219 30,845
Noncurrent assets of discontinued operations .......... — — 139,226
Total ASSEts v it $1,612,240 §1,625,755 $1,625,755

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current mafturities of long-term debt ..................... § 6250 $§ 12476 S 12476
Short-term DOrmroWINGS ..o 66,000 66,000 66,000
Accounts payable ... . 17,397 17,397 16,502
Insurance premiums and commissions payable ........ 126,173 129,269 129,269
Other current ligbilifies ............ccooiiii i o, 158,459 195,131 187,283
Current liabilities of discontinued operations ............ — — 8,743
Total current ligkilifies ... 374,279 420,273 420,273
Long-term debt ..o 393,750 406,272 406,272
Deferred tax lability ..........coocii i 54,669 37.488 32,405
Deferred reVeNUES ... ..oviv i e — 43,625 43,625
Other liabilifies .o oo 4,560 4,560 4,560
Noncurrent liabilities of discontinued operations ......., — — 5,083
Total liabilifies .. ..o 827,258 912,218 212,218
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.02 par vaiue, 320,000,000 shares
authorized, 120,836,315 shares issued .................. 2,417 2,417 2,417
Additional paid-in capital ... 389,484 389,484 389,484
Retained eamings ... 403,738 332,293 332,293
Notes receivable from s‘rockho!ders ...................... (8,116) 8.116) =~ (8116)
Employee benefit frust, 342,613 shares ................... (6.607) (6,507) (5,507)
Deferred compensation ..o 5,292 5,292 5,292
Unearned compensation — restricted stock ............ (6,199 (6.199) (6.199)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ............ 6,337 6,337 6,337
Treasury stock at cost, 158,659 shares .................... (2,464) (2,464) (2.464)
Total stockholders” equity ..... P P 784,982 713,537 713,537
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity ................ §1,612,240 $1,625,755 $1,625,755
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The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30,
2004 and 2003 were also restated for the adjustments discussed above. The following table
presents the major subtotals in the Company’s 2004 and 2003 consolidated statements of
cash flows and the related impact of the restatement adjustiments discussed above
(in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended

June 30, 2004 June 30, 2003
As As
Previously Previously

Reported As Restated Reported As Restated

Net cash flows provided (used) by:

Operating activities ................... $204,349 $ 228,432 $171,240 $ 185,932

Investing activities . ..., (92,720) (109.360) (229,608) (232.119)

Financing activities ................... (61,315 (67.965) 59,555 50,829
Net change in cash and

cash equivalents ...................... 60,314 61,107 1,187 4,642
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year ..................... 79,558 83.013 78,371 78,371
Cash and cash equivalents at

endofyear ..........ooiiiiiiinn, $139.872 $144120 S 79.858 § 83,013

Cash and cash equivalents were adjusted by $4.2 million at June 30, 2004 and $3.5 million
at June 30, 2003 in order to reflect bank overdrafts as a liability instead of as a reduction to
cash and cash equivalents,

Acquisitions and Dispositions

Fiscal 2005 Acquisitions

OnJanuary 7, 2005, the Company acquired RK Consulting, aNew Jersey-based provider
of investment fund administration services to hedge funds and private equity funds. The
acquisition of RK Consulting complements and expands the Company’s existing hedge fund
and private equity businesses. The Company purchased the assets of RK Consulting for cash
consideration of approximately $83 million, Proforma information has not been presented
due to the lack of materiality. The operations of the acquired company are included in the
consolidated financial statements since the date of acguisition.

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including fransaction fees and
expenses, for RK Consulting was as follows (in thousands):

GOOAWIll vt $60,545
Intangible assets ... 21,039
Other assels oo 1,560
Ligbilifies assumed ... ..o e (506)
Net cash paid ... $82,638

The acquired intangible assets of $21.0 million have a weighted average useful life of
approximately 9.4 years and include customer-related intangibles of $18.5 million (10-year
weighted average useful life), non-compete agreements of $1.7 million (5-year weighted
average usefullife), and capitalized software of $0.8 million (5-year weighted average useful
life). Of the total amount of goodwill assigned of $60.5 million, approximately $58.0 million
is expected o be deductible for tax purposes.
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Fiscal 2004 Acquisitions

Business Date Acquired * Nature of Business Consideration

Uhlemeyer January 2004 Workers” compensation Cash for stock
Services, Inc. insurance distribution

USA Insurance November 2003 Commercial property and Cash and stock
Group, Inc. ' casualty insurance distribution  for stock

Lifesource October 2003 Life insurance distribution Cash for stock

In November 2003, the Company acquired USA Insurance Group, Inc. ("USAIG"), a
Florida-based managing general agency ("MGA™) serving the commercial property and
casualty insurance marketplace. The acquisition of USAIG broadens the product and
geographic reach of the Company’s commercial property and casuaity line of business,
and complements and significantly expands its MGA platform. The Company completed
its acquisition of USAIG through the exchange of approximately 2.8 million shares of BISYS
common stock held in treasury and cash of $40.8 million, net of cash acquired, for all of the
equity interests of USAIG.

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including transaction fees and
expenses, for fiscal 2004 acquisitions were as follows (in thousands):
USA Insurance

Group All Others Total
As Restated As Restated As Restated

Goodwill ........ ST S $ 60,901 $ 7,123 §$ 68,024
Infangible assets .......... e 29,109 4,993 34,102
Other Assets ... 38,094 3,010 41,104
Issuance of stock in acquisition ................. (38,823) —  (38,823)
Liabilities assumed ........ciiiiiccii (48,529 (2,961 (51,490)
Net cash paid ..o § 40,752 $12,165 §$ 52917

The acquired intangible assets of $33.7 million have a weighted average useful life of
approximately 9 years. The infangible assets that make up that amount include customer-
related intangibles of $30.1 million (10-year weighted average useful life), non-compete
ogreements of $3.6 million (6-year weighted average useful life) and capitalized software
of $0.4 million (1.5-year weighted average useful life). Of the total amount of goodwill
assigned of $68.0 million, approximately $8.5 million is expected to be deductible for fax
PUrposes. : -

The following unaudited proforma consolidated results of operations have been
prepared as if the acquisitions of all the companies set forth above had occurred af the
beginning of fiscal 2004 and 2003 (in thousands, except per share dato):

2004 2003
' As Restated As Restated
REVEINUEBS o\t e $1.008,920 $892,206
NEt INCOME .. e § 71,381 § 81,873
Diluted earnings per share ............ccoovivieinne. $ 0.58 S 066

Discontinued Operations

On April 21, 2005, the Company completed the sale of its Education Services business
to Kaplan Professional, a division of Kaplan, Inc. (*Kaplan™). Kaplan acquired all of the
outstanding shares of BISYS Education Services Inc., a subsidiary of The BISYS Group. Inc.
(previously included in the Insurance Services segment), for approximately $51 million in
cash, an amount that approximated the subsidiary’s adjusted net book value affter the
goodwill impairment charge discussed below.
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The assets and liabilities, results of operations and cash flows of the Education Services
business have been accounted for as discontinued operations for all periods presented in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Financial information for discontinued operations is summarized below (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
REVENUES 1 ittt i e $ 34,407 339,305 $43,103
Income (loss) before income taxes ..................... (87,794  (2,953) 2,850
Applicable income faxes .......oovvviiiiiiiiiinn (16,30 (783) 1,142
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
NEt Of TaX oo §(71.493) §(2,170) $ 1,708

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $71.5 million for 2005 includes a pretax
non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $86.5 million based upon completion of an
impairment analysis conducted by the Company in connection with the adoption of a
formal plan of disposition of the Education Services business by the Board of Directors in
March 2005.

Major classes of assets and liabilities of the Education Services business accounted for
as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at June 30,
2004 were as follows (in thousands):

O8N S 1.394
Accountsreceivable ... 5213
Other current assets oo ciii i e 5,324

Total current assets ... 11,931
Property and equipment ... 2,101
Goodwill and intangible assets ........................ 135,751
Other assets .o oo 1,374

Total assetfs of discontinued operations ........... $151,157
Current idbilifies ... i § 8,743
Other liabilities ...t 5,083

Total liabilities of discontinued operations ......... $ 13.826

Subsequent Events

On September 15, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its Information
Services segment, which includes its Banking Solutions and Document Solutions divisions, to
Open Solutions Inc. ("OSI”) for approximately $470 million in cash, subject to final working
capital and other adjustments. The fransaction closed on March 3, 2006, and net proceeds
after transaction costs and the payment of taxes are expected to approximate $300 miilion,
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Major classes of assets and liabllities of the Information Services segment included in the
accompanying consclidated balance sheets at June 30 were as follows (in thousands):

2005 . __2004
Assets of the Information Services segment:

Accountsreceivable ... $ 28,573 S 28,152
Deferred tax asset .......oiiiiiiiiii i 10,803 11,259
Other currentasset ..o 4,080 _ 3,963
Total current assets ..o, 43,156 43,374
Property and eguipment ..., 12,929 18,029
Intangible assets and goodwill .................... 116,280 109,846
Other Assets ... 4,987 7,394
TOtal o $177,352 $178,643

Liabilities of the Information Services segment:;
Current maturities of long-term debt ............. S 4,461 S 4,958
Other current liabilities ..o 49,266 _ 51,933
Total current liabilities ..., 53,727 56,891
Long-termdebt ... ... 5,992 9,929
Deferred tax liability ..o, 10,610 10,425
Deferred revenue ..o 34,651 34,641
Total $104,980 $111.886

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill by business segment for the years
ended June 30, 2004 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

Investment Insurance Information
Services Services Services Total
Balance, June 30, 2003, as restated .. $302,195  $287,182 834,946  $624,323
2004 Acquisitions ... — 68,024 — 68,024
Adjustments fo previous acaquisitions . (175 769 — 594
Balance, June 30, 2004, as restated .. $302,020 $355,975 $34,946 $692,941
2005 Acauisitions ... 60,545 — — 60,545
2005 Dispositions ......ovvvviiiiin, (502) amw - — 621
Adjustments 1o previous acquisitions — (450) — (450)
Balance, June 30, 2005 ................. $362,.063  $355,406 $34,946 $§752,415

The adjustments to previous acquisitions primarily relate to differences in amounts
recorded for deferred taxes as compared to amounts originally estimated at fime
of acquisition.
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. Intangible Assets - .

At June 30,',.-2005 and 2004, intangible assets were comprised of the following
© (in thousands): ‘

Estimated Gross

. : . Useful Lives  Carrying  Accumulated  Net Book
2005 ' ‘ o : (Years) Amount Amortization Value
Capitalized software .................... _ 3-6 $208,891  $§(107,020) $101.871
Customerrelated ... . 5-15 189,127 (67,887) 131,540
No‘ncom‘pe’re agreements ........ e 5-15 24,299 (14,674) 9,625
Other ... 5-15 9,095 (5.068) 4,027

$431,412  $(184,349)  $247,063

2004, as restated - L . : ,
Capitalized software .................... 3-6 $§180,067 - $ (84.815) § 95,252

Customer related ...... e FETTTRROY : 5-30 172,839 (41,343) 131,496
Noncompete -agreements ...... e 5-15 22,560 (10,645 - 11,915
Ofher . - 515 9,095 (3.982) 5113

$384,561  $(140,785) $243,776

Allof the Company’s intangible assets are subject to amortization. Amortization expense
for intangible assets was approximately $58.4 million, $52.7 million and $41.4 million for 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Estimated amortization expense for the succeeding five years
is $57.3 million in 2006, $50.3 million in 2007, $43.4 million in 2008, $34.3 million in 2009, and
$25.2 million in 2010. : :

In connection with the Company’s plan to reorganize its Life Insurance division and
restructure its European fund services operations by exiting certain Europecn locations
during calendar year 2004, impairment losses of $2.0 million were recognized during the year
ended June 30, 2004 for customer-related intangibles. The amount of the impairment losses
represented the remaining net book value of the intangibles.

Borrowings

In March 2004, the Company entered into a four-year senior unsecured credit facility
with a syndicate of lenders (the “2004 facility”). The 2004 facility initially contained a
$300 million revolving line of credit facility and a $100 million term loan that was created o
support working capital requirements, repurchases of the Company’s common stock,
and the funding of acquisitions. The revolving facility was reduced to $150 million in
September 2005 and & portion of the $100 million term loan was prepaid pursuant to an
‘agreement with the lenders. The balance of the term loan was repaid in full in
‘December 2005. o

‘ Outstanding borrowings under the 2004 facility bore interest at prime or, at the

Company'’s option, LIBOR plus a margin. The credit agreement required the Company o
pay an annual facility fee of 0.30% on the total revolving credit commitment. The facility was
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of The BISYS Group. Inc. The Company could borrow
“under the revolving credit facility through March 2008 up to $300 million, reduced by any
- outstanding letters of credit (§3.1 million at June 30, 2005). The $100 million term loan had
quarterly principal payments commencing on June 30, 2005 with a final maturity of March 31,
© 2008. Interest was payable’ quarterly for prime rate borrowings or at maturity for LBOR
borrowings; which range from 30-to 180 days. At June 30, 2005, the weighted average
inferest rate of the credit facility borrowings was 4.38%.

The credit agreement required the Company to maintain certain financial covenants
and limits the Company’s ability to incur future indebtedness and to pay dividends. As of
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June 30, 2005, no amounts were permitted for the payment of cash dividends.. As of June 30,
2008, a default existed under the 2004 facility resulting from the Company’s failure o timely
file its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 and its failure
to deliver the related compliance certificate for such fiscal guarter. On June 14, 2005, the
Company obtained a consent and wdiiver from the lenders under the 2004 facility, which
extended the cure period arising from these defaults to August 1, 2006. As a condition of the
waiver, additional borrowings under the revolving line of credit were not permitted until the
default was cured. After obtaining additional consents and waivers from the lenders
subsequent to June 30, 2005, the 2004 facility was eventuadlly terminated by the Company
in January 2006 and replaced with a'new interim credit facility (see “Establishment of New
Credit Faciiity” below). ‘

In March 2001, the Company issued $300 million of convertible suberdinated notes (the
"Notes”) due March 15, 2006. The Notes bore interest at 4% and required semi- annual interest
payments. The Notes were convertible at any fime at the option of the holder into shares
of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of $33.39 per share, subject to
adjustment under certain conditions, In March 2006, the Company used the net
proceeds from the sale of the Information Services segment for the repayment of the Notes
(see Note 3)

~ Debt ouTs’rondmg at June 30 2005 and 2004 is as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 2005 o June 30, 2004
Carrying Estimated .~  Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Senior credit facility, term
loan, at a rate of 4.375% )
and 2.625%, respectively ............. $ 93,750  $ 93,750 $100,000  $100,000
Senior credit facility, revolving line '
of credit, at a rate of 2.275% ........ = — 66,000 66,000
Convertible subordinated 4% notes .. 300,000 299,000 300,000 307,000
Capital lease obligations ............... 16,505 15,930 18,748 18,540
410,255  $408,680 484,748  $491,540
Less amounts due within one year ..., 399,904 .. 78,476
Long-term debt .................. IR -$ 10,351 $406,272

‘Establishment of New Credit Facility

In January 2006, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement with a syndicate of
lenders, providing for (i) an interim revolving credit faciiity in an aggregate amount of up to
$100 million (the “Revolver”) and (i) an interim term loan in an aggregate amount of up to
$300 million (the “Term Loan”; together with the Revolver, the “Interim Facility ). The maturity
date of the Interim Facility is January 2, 2007. The proceeds of the Revolver may be used
for working capital and other corporate purposes. The Term Loan commitment was
subseqguently cancelled since the proceeds were no longer required to repay the

$300 million of Notes.

The Interim Facility bears interest at (i) a base ra’re equal to the higher of the bank’s prime
lending rate or the applicable federal funds rate plus 0.5%, or (i) at an applicable margin
above the Eurodollar rate. The amount of the applicable margin is 1.25%, and the
commitment fee on the unborrowed funds available under the Revolver is 0.25%.

The loans under the Inferim Facility are guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
significant subsidiaries. As of March 31, 2006, there were no balances outstanding on the
Revolver and the Term Loan commitment has been terminated. The Credit Agreement
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contains various representations, warranties and covenants generclly consistent with the
2004 credit facility. Financial covenants require the Company to meet certain financial tests
on an on-going basis, including minimum net worth, minimum fixed charge coverage ratio,
and total leverage ratio, based upon its consolidated financial results.

In connection with the executfion of the Interim Facility, on January 4, 2006, the
Company terminated its 2004 credit facility. Pursuant to the 2004 credit facility, the March 31, -
2008 maturity date had been set to accelerate to January 31, 2006 in the event that the
convertible notes were not repaid by such date, The term loan portion of the 2004 credit
facility was repaid in full in Decemiber 2005 and no borrowings were outstanding under such
facility at the time of termination. The Company did not incur any prepayment penalties in
connection with the termination of the facility.

Income Taxes

The significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets and Iloblllhes as
of June 30, 2005 and 2004 are cs follows (in thousands):

2004
‘ 2005 v As Restated
Deferred tax assets related to: .
Accrued liabilities ... i $21,367 . $19,890
Deferred inCOmMe ..o 28,334 27.441
Recelvables ..ot 3,567 6,016
Tax Camyforwards ..o 14,255 17,514
Other 1,319 719
Deferred tax assets ............... e . 68,842 71,580
Less valuation allowance ... vvviv i, . - (80) (50)
Net deferred tfax assetfs ...........coooviiiiiiinnn, 68,792 71,530
Deferred tax liabilities related to:
Property and equipment ..., 814 674
INVeSTMENtS ..o — 3,426
Infangible assets ......... o 41,376 40,864
GooaWIll L. 32,459 29,440
(6 11 1= — 318
Deferred tax liabilifies «.......coovviiiciiiiniiicnnn, 74,649 74,722
Net deferred tax liability ..., $(5.857) $3.192)

The Company periodically evaluates deferred tax assets and adjusts the related
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets to an amount which is more likely than not to
be realized through future taxable income.

A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets associated with certain loss carryforwards
has been established as the Company currently believes that-a portion of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized. At June 30, 2005, the Company had $12.1 million of federal net
operating loss carryforwards expiring in years after 2016, $62.0 million of state net operating
losses of which $57.8 million expire in years after 2011, and copl’rol loss corryforwords of
$13.1 million expiring in years oﬂer 2010. :
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 The components of moome from conhnumg operations before income taxes are as
follows (in Thousonds)

‘ 2004 2003
: : - 2005 As Restated  As Restated
Domestic ....... e T ST ... $106,329 $107,013 $112,878
Foreign ...........oons e i S - 16,074 9,890 6,614

© Income from-continuing operohons before
mcome TAXES vt e 3122 403 -$116,903 Sl 19,492

. The componem‘s of fhe income Tox prowslon for 2005 2004 ond 2003 are as follows
(in thousands): :

2004 2003
2005 As Restated  As Restated
. Deferred federal tax expense (benefit) ................ S 8,692 $32,708 $(3.725)
Deferred state tax expense (benefit) ............. e (262) 1,768 (607)
Deferred foreign tax expense (benefit) ................ 52 1,408 Q15
Deferred tax expense subtotal ....................... 8,492 35,884 (5,147
Current federal tax eXpense .....c.cocviiiiiii i, 20,467 6,099 38,135
Current state fax expense .......c.cocviiiiiiiiiiiiiin 6,154 2,477 10,620
Current foreign fax expense .........ccovviiiiinnn, 690 - 142 308
‘Current tax expense subfotal ..., 36,311 8,718 49,063

$44,803  $44,602 $43,916

A reconciliation of the Company’s income tax provision and the amount computed by
applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income before income taxes for 2005, 2004
and 2003 is as follows (in thousands): .

. 2004 2003

2005 As Restated  As Restated
Federal income tax at statutory rate ................... $42,841 $40,916  $41,822
Change in reserve for contingent tax liabilities ....... (143) 1,917 73D
Change in valuation gllowance ........................ — (1,050) 497
SECpenalty (Note @) ... 4,051 — ‘ —
SHATE TAXES .\ttt 3,837 3,492 6,181
FOreign taxes .. 4.884)y (1,909 (2.922)
Tax credits ... (716) (519) (528)
Other NET L. (183 1,751 (403)

$44,803 $44,602  $43916

Deferred income taxes of $9.8 million af June 30, 2005 have not been provided on the
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as such earnings are expected to be reinvested
in the foreseeable future. :

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Act”) was
signed info law. Under the Jobs Act, the Company may elect an 85% dividends-received
deduction for repatriating eligible dividends from its foreign subsidiaries in either the year
ended June 30; 2005 or 2006. Certain criteria must be met to qualify for the deduction,
including the establishment of a domestic reinvestment plan by the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, and the approval of the plan by the Company’s Board of Directors,
whereby the repatriated earnings must be reinvested in the United States.

In November 2005, the Company completed its evaluation of the repatriation provisions
of the Jobs Act and repatriated approximately $§22.7 million from certain of its foreign
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subsidiaries under the Jobs Act provisions. The Company recorded a tax charge for this
repatriation in November 2005 of approximately $1.3 milion in accordance with tax laws
existing at the fime. An estimated additional $8.0 million of earnings existing at June 30, 2005
may be repatriated during fiscal 2006 at an estimated additional tax expense of $0.5 million.

The $22.7 million repatriated under the Jobs Act was deemed to be distributed entirely
from foreign earnings that had been previously treated as indefinitely reinvested. However,
this distribution from previously indefinitely reinvested earnings does not change the
Company’s position going forward that future earnings of certain of its foreign subsidiaries
will be indefinitely reinvested. ’

Restructuring and Impairment Charges

During 2005, 2004 .and 2003, the Company recorded pretox restructuring and
impairment charges of $2.3 million, $16.2 milion and $10.9 million, respectively, as follows
(in thousands):

2004 2003

o 2005  AsRestated  As Restated
Restructuring charges ........... PR $1,315  $10,695 $10,919
IMpairment ChArges ...vvvviiieiiiit e 1,025 5,549 —

$2,340 $16,244 $10,919

The following summarizes activity with respect to the Company’s restructuring activities
for 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

2004 - 2003
2005 As Restated  As Restated

Expense provision:

Employee severance ..o $ 229 §$8473 $ 6,220
Facility closure and other ... 1,086 2,222 4,699

TOMAl Lo 1,315 10,695 10,919

Cash payments and other:

2005 .. 580 2,959 414
2004 .. — 7.478 1,352
2003 Lo — e 8,936

Total o 580 10,437 10,702

Remaining accrual at June 30, 2005: ‘
Employee severance ......ooovcoiiiiiiin oo — — —

Facility closure and other ........cocvviirinineinn, 765 258 217
L] e | $ 765 § 258 § 217
Fiscal 2005

Restructuring charges of $1.3 million during 2005 were related to the completion of the
restructuring of the European mutual fund services operations and were comprised of
severance totaling $0.2 million and lease termination costs of $1.2 million, offset by reversals
and currency translation gains of $0.1 million. At June 30, 2005, the remaining accrual of
$0.8 million relates to lease costs for facility closures.

The Company recorded asset impairment charges of $1.0 million during 2005 related to
other than temporary declines in the value of membership in the New York and Boston
Stock exchanges.
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Fiscal 2004

In 2004, the Company recorded pre-tax restructuring and impairment charges of
$16.2 million. The charges consist of restructuring charges of $10.7 million that relate to the
integration, consolidation, and reorganization of certain business operations, particularly in
our European Fund Services division and the Insurance Services group, and impairment
charges of $56.5 million. Restructuring charges of $10.7 million during 2004 were comprised
of severance totaling $8.5 milion and lease termination and other costs of $2.2 million.
Severance charges resulted from the termination or planned termination of approximately
350 employees representing all levels of staffing. At June 30, 2005, the remaining accrual
amounts to $0.3 million and relates to lease costs for facility closures. The objectives of the
2004 restructuring plan were to close down or consolidate certain European Fund Services
processing platforms located in Luxembbourg, London and Guernsey; reduce costs by
downsizing certain product development, marketing and sales support services in various
business units; and relocate a call center in the Retirement Services division.

The Company recorded asset impairment charges of $5.5 million during 2004, c:onsis’ring
primarily of the following items:

e a $3.9 milion charge in the Investment Services segment comprised of a $0.8 million
charge for the impairment of a customer-related intangible asset and a $3.1 million
charge for the impairment of other long-lived assets as a result of the Company’s plan
to restructure its European mutual fund services operations and to exit certain European
locations during the calendar year 2004 foliowing the acquisition of two of the
Company’s significant customers in those European locations by acquirers with existing
fund services capabilities; and ’

e a$1.2 milion charge in the Insurance Services segment for impairment of a customer-
related infangible asset deemed 1o be no longer recoverable from related future
cash flows.

The Company also wrote off $3.2 million of net deferred tax assets associated with tax
loss carryforwards and goodwill arising from the European mutual fund services operations
as the Company determined the deferred fax amounts will not be realized. The write-off was
recorded as additional income tax expense in 2004.

Fiscal 2003

The Company recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of $10.9 million in 2003, relating
to the integration, consolidation and relocation of cerfain business operations, primarily as
a result of acquisition activity and the downsizing of certain areas in the investment,
insurance and check imaging businesses. The restructuring charge includes a provision of
$6.2 million for severance-related costs for approximately 250 employees, representing all
levels of employees, and $4.7 million for facllity closure and related costs. At June 30, 2005,
the remaining accrual amounts to $0.2 million and relates to lease costs for facility closures.
The objective of the 2003 restructuring plan was to reduce costs by consolidating, relocating,
and downsizing certain operations in the investment, insurance, education, and check
imaging businesses. Reductions in force affected business operations such as dota
processing, software development, marketing, and various support services, and facility
space reduction or closure occurred in several locations including Philadelphia,
"Pennsylvania and Columbus, Ohio.

Litigation and Regulatory Investigations -
Litigation

Following the Company’s May 17, 2004 announcement regarding the restatement of
its financial results for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and for the quarters
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endedDecember 31 and September 30, 2003 (the “2004 restatement”), seven putative class
action and two derivative lawsuits were filed against the Company and certain of its current
and former officers in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York.
By order of the Court, ali but one of the putative class actions have been consolidated into
asingle action, and on October 25, 2004, plaintiffs fled a consolidated amended complaint.
The complaint purports to be brought on behalf of all shareholders who purchased the
Company’s securities between October 23, 2000 and May 17, 2004 and generally asserts
that the Company, certain of its officers and its independent registered accounting firm
allegedly violated the federal securities laws in connection with the purported issuance of
false and misleading information concerning the Company’s financial condition. The
complaint seeks damages in an unspecified amount as well as unspecified equitable/
injunctive relief. On December 23, 2004, the Company, the individual defendants and the
~ Company’s independent registered accounting firm filed separate motions to dismiss the
complaint. On October 28, 2005, the Court dismissed cerfain claims under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 as to six of the individual defendants, narrowed certain additional
claims against the Company and the individual defendants, and dismissed all claims as to
the Company’s independent registered accounting firm. The Court denied the motions to
dismiss in all other respects. The Court granted leave for plaintiffs to file on or before
November 14, 2005, an amended complaint addressing the scienfer of the individual
defendants and the independent registered accounting firm.

~ The remaining putative class action purports to be brought on behalf of all persons who
acquired non-publicly fraded BISYS securities from the Company as part of private equity
fransactions during the period October 23, 2000 to May 17, 2004. The complaint generally
asserts that the Company and certain of its officers allegedly violated the federal securities
laws in connection with the purported issuance of false and misleading information
concerning the Company’s financial condition, and seeks damages in an unspecified
amount, On November 29, 2004, plaintiffs fled an amended complaint. By order of the Court,
the defendants’ time to answer the complaint has been extended until resolution of the
motion fo dismiss the complaint described in the previous paragraph.

The- derivative complaints purport to be brought on behalf of the Company and
generally assert that certain officers and directors are liable for alleged breaches of fiduciary
duties, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste, and unjust enrichment that
purportedly occurred between October 23, 2000 and the present, The derivative complaints
seek disgorgement, constructive trust, and damages in an unspecified amount. The Court
has ordered that the derivative actions be consolidated into a single action. On
November 24, 2004, plaintiffs filed a consolidated amended compilaint. On January 24, 2005,
the Company and the individual defendants filed separate motions to dismiss the complaint.
On October 31, 2005, the Court granted defendants’ motions, dismissing on the merits
plaintiffs’ claim under Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 on the grounds that it
does not create a private right of action upon which plaintiffs may sue. Having so ruled, the
Court also dismissed plaintiffs” state law claims on the ground that it lacked subject matter
jurisdiction over them.

The Company infends to defend itself vigorously ogomsT ’rhese claims but is unable to
deTermlne the ultimate outcome,

The Life Insurance division is involved in litigation with a West Coast-based distributor of
life insurance products, with which the Company had a former business relationship. The
Company intends to continue o vigorously defend the claims asserted and has asserfed @
number of counterclaims. The Company believes that it has adeguate defenses against
claims arising in such litigation and that the outcome of this matter will not have a material
adverse effect upon the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Additionally, during 2004, the Company recorded a charge of $4.0 million in the Life
Insurance division related to an anticipated resolution with certain third parties arising from
contractual disputes over the obligations of the parties.

- Regulatory Investigations

The Company notified the SEC in May 2004 that it would restate certain pricr period
financial statements, and subsequently, the SEC advised the Company that it was
conducting an investigation into the facts and circumstances related to this restatement.
On May 17, 2004, the Company announced that it would restate its financial results for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001 and for the guarters ended December 31
and September 30, 2003 (the “2004 restatement”) in order to record adjustments for
correction of errors resulting from various accounting matters in the Life Insurance Services
division. An amended Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003
was filed with the SEC on August 10, 2004 along with amended Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q for the quarters ended December 31 and September 30, 2003 to reflect the restated
financial results. In July 2005, the Company determined that an additional restatement of
previously issued financial statements was necessary, and the SEC’s investigation has been
expanded to include the 2006 restatement. The investigation is ongoing. The Company
understands that representatives of the United States Aftorney’s Office for the Southern
District of New York have aftended interviews that have taken place. The Company has
cooperated and intends to contfinue to cooperate with the SEC’s investigation, which has
resulted and will likely continue 1o result in significant expenses. The Company cannot predict
when the SEC will conclude its investigation or the outcome or impact thereof.

As previously announced, the Company is also the subject of an SEC investigation
related to marketing and distribution arrangements in its mutual funds services business. The
practices atissue relate to the structure and accounting for arrangements pursuant to which
BISYS Fund Services (BFS), a subsidiary of the Company, agreed with the advisers of certain
U.S. mutual funds to use a portion of the administration fees paid to BFS by the mutual fund
to pay for, among other things, expenses relating to the marketing and distribution of the
fund shares, to make payments to certain advisers and to pay for certain other expenses.
The Company has identified 27 fund support arrangements to the SEC, all of which were
entered into prior to December 2003 and have been terminated.

BFS has submitted an offer of settlement to the SEC, which has the support of the SEC
Staff. If accepted by the Commission, the proposed settlement would resolve the issues with
respect to all fund support arrangements that the Company has disclosed to the Staff, The
offer  of settlement provides for the simultaneous initiation and setflement of an
administrative proceeding through the entry of an administrative order, The order would set
forth the SEC’s findings that BFS aided and abetted violations of Sections 206(1) and 206(2)
of the Investment Advisers Act, Section 34(b) of the Investment Company Act and SEC
Rule 12(b)-1. These rules and regulations prohibit investment advisers from employing any
device, scheme or artifice to defraud and from engaging in any course of business that
would operate as a fraud, prohibit untrue statements or omissions of material facts in certain
documents filed with the SEC, and regulate the circumstances under which open-end
mutual funds may participate in the distribution of the securities that they issue. Without
admitting or denying the SEC’s findings, BFS would consent to cease and desist from aiding
and abetting or causing any violations of the referenced provisions of the federal securities
~ laws and related SEC rules. The order would also require disgorgement and payment of

prejudgment interest and a penalty, as well as certain undertakings by BFS, The Staff has not
yet presented the offer of settlement to the Commission for approval and no assurance can
be given that such approval will be granted. The Company is continuing to cooperate with
the SEC in this matter.
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10.

The Company has established an estimated liability of $20.9 million at June 30, 2005,
representing expected amounts to be paid as part of this settflement, which is comprised of
an estimated $9.7 million disgorgement recognized as a reduction to 2005 revenues, and
an estimated fine of $10 milion and prejudgment interest of $1.2 million recognized as an
operating expense in 2006.

The Company expensed the following amounts related to estimated seftlement costs
and legal fees in connection with the aforementioned litigation and investigatory matters
for 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

2004
_.2005 As Restated
Litigation matters ..o $21,028 $8,604
Regulatory seftlement (520,940 net of
disgorgement portion of $2,699) ................. .. 11,241 —
$32,269 $8,604

In February 2006, the Company reached an agreement regarding coverage with its
insurance carriers that will result in an insurance recoverable of approximately $8 million for
certain legal expenses incurred by the Company through June 30, 2005 in connection with
the aforementioned litigation and investigatory matters. Amounts recoverable under the
agreement will be recognized as a reduction to legal expenses in the quarter ended
March 31, 2006.

The Company clso is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business,
Management believes that the Company has adequate defenses and/or insurance
coverage against such litigation and that the outcome of these matters, individuaily or in
the aggregate, will not have a maferial adverse effect upon the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. Legal fees and related costs for litigation arising
from the ordinary course of business, and exclusive of the specific aforementioned litigation
and investigatory matiers, are included in the caption “Selling. general and administrative”
in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Leases

The Company leases office space under noncancellable operating leases with
remaining terms of up to twelve years. The Company also leases certain office and
computer equipment and software under both capital leases and operating leases expiring
through 2011, Rental expense associated with these operating leases for 2005, 2004 and 2003
totaled $34.0 million, $33.8 million and $30.7 million, respectively.
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1.

12,

The future minimum rental payments under capital leases and noncancellable
operating leases for the years ending after June 30, 2005 are gs follows (in thousands):

‘ o Capital Operating
Fiscal year ' : lecses leases v
2000 i § 6,653 $ 33,223
2007 ...... e 6,113 31,487
2008 L e e 2,973 29,744
2009 ....oiiln. T P P 1,426 25,896
2000 312 23,956
Thereafter ... — 103,587
@] (o | 17,477 $247,893
Less imputed interest costs ..o 972
Present value of capital lease obligations .......... 16,505
Lesscurrentportion ... 6,154
Long-term capital lease obligations ................. $10,351

Other Commitments

The Company’s broker-dealer subsidiaries are subject to the Uniform Net Caopital Rule
of the Securities and Exchange Commission. At June 30, 2005, the aggregate net capital of
such subsidiaries was $16.1 million, exceeding the net capital requirement by $15.1 million.

On September 30, 2003, the Company’s Banking Solufions division entered into a
software license agreement with Open Solutions Inc. (*OSI”) and became an outsourcing
reseiler of OSI's Total Client Server software as well as OSl's complementary products and
services to banks and thrifts using the Total Client Server product. The agreement had an
initial ferm of five years, with an option to renew for another five years by mutual consent
or at the Company’s option. At June 30, 2005, the Company had an outstanding purchase
commitment through August 2008 to acquire an additional $44.7 million of software licenses
related to Total Client Server core and ancillary products. The Company sold the Banking
Solutions and Document Solutions divisions to OSt in March 2006 (see Note 4). As a result of
the sale, the Company’s remaining payments to OS| under the terms of the agreement
subsequent to June 30, 2005 amounted to $10.2 million for license fees and $2.6 million for
maintenance on purchased licenses.

Itis not the Company s business practice to enter into off-balance sheet arrangements.
However, in the normal course of business, the Company does enter intfo contracts in which
it makes representations and warranties that guarantee the performance of the Company’s
products and services as well as other indemnifications entered into in the normal course
of business. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, there were no material losses related to such
guarantees and indemnifications.

Business Segment Information

The Company provides business outsourcing solutions to financial institutions and other
financial organizations. The Company’s operations have been classified into three business
segments. Investment Services, Insurance Services, and Information Services.

The Company’s reportable segments are separately managed strategic business units
that offer different products and services, and are based on the Company’s method of
internal reporting. The businesses that comprise the Investment Services segment are Fund
Services, Retirement Services and Alternative Investment Services. The Investment Services
segment provides business process outsourcing services, including administration and
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distribution, to domestic and offshore mutual fund complexes, hedge funds and private
equity funds and retirement plan services to small to mid-size 401(k) plans. The Insurance
Services segment, comprised of the Life Insurance Services and Commercial Insurance
Services businesses, provides distribution solufions for commercial property and casualty,
annuifies, life, long-term care, and disability and special risk insurance products. The
Information Services segment, comprised of the Banking Solutions and Document Solutions
businesses, provides information processing and check imaging solutions to financial
services companies, asset refention solutions to insurance companies, and corporate
banking services to support corporate-sponsored cash management programs.
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Summarized financial information by business segment and for corporate operations for
2006, 2004 and 2003 is presented below (in thousands). Measures used to assess segment
performance include revenues and operating earnings, exclusive of restructuring and
impairment charges and litigation and regulatory settflements. Segment operating earnings
exclude restructuring and impairment charges and litigation and regulatory settlements for
specific matters described in Note @ since they are not allocated to the segments for internal
evaluation purposes. While these items are identifiable to the business segments, they are
not included in the measurement of segment operating earnings provided to the chief
operating decision maker for purposes of assessing segment performance and decision
making with respect to resource allocation. Legal expenses for other litigation matters arising.
in the normal course of business are included with operating earnings of the reportable
segments and corporate.

(in thousands)

2004 2003
2005 As Restated  As Restated
Revenues: ,
INVESTMENT SBIVICES vt $ 619,479 S 565,660 $ 487,747
INSUNANCE SEIVICES .. vvv it s 241,497 208,779 165,504
INformMation SEIVICES ..o v v e 211,778 220,471 201,986
Total o 1,072,754 994,910 855,237
Less: Disgorgement portion of estimated
regulatory settlement reflected as a reduction ‘
TOTEVENUE ..o vt e (9,699 — —
Total consolidated revenues .......oovvvviviiinn., $1,063,055 § 994,910 § 855,237
Operating earnings for reportable segments:
Investment SemnviCes ... § 86362 S 70990 S 61,575
INSUIAINCE SBIVICES .« vvi i e 62,665 49,289 52,044
Information ServiCes ........cvii i 49,865 63,537 54,709
Total o $ 198,892 S 183,816 § 168,328
Assets;
Investment Senices ... i S 661,951 § 584,797 § 572,251
INSUIANCE SEIVICES i e 587,750 607,968 472,687
INfOrmMation SeniCes ... 177,352 178,643 177.813
Discontinued operdfions .........c.coivieivineniecnin, — 151,157 156,444
Ololgolol o] 1= . 113,407 103,190 87.441
TOtal o $1,540,460 $1,625,755 $1,466,636
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Investment Services ......oooiiii S 27331 § 26912 § 24212
INSUrANCE SEIVICES oo\ e 17,222 14,292 8,166
INfOrmation ServiCes ....ov.ivi v 33,648 31,095 28,031
CorPOratE . 815 1,014 1,017
TOtal S 79016 § 73313 § 61,426
Capital expenditures:
INvestment ServiCes . ... $§ 14206 $ 16801 S 21,810
INSUrANCE SEIVICES o v 6,007 4,169 3,385
Information Services ... 38,165 43,889 39,640
COMROIATE oo 218 422 1.208
TO Al § 58596 § 65281 S 66,043
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13.

The following is a reconciliation of operafing earnings to the Company’s consolidated
total (in thousands):

2004 2003
2005  AsRestated As Restated

Total operating earnings for reportable segments ... $198,892 $183,816 $168,328
COMDOIATE o (28,386) (24,603) (19.000)

Less: Disgorgement portion of estimated regulatory
settlement reflected as a reduction to revenue in

INvestment Services ... 9,699 — —
Restructuring and impairment charges:

Investment ServiCes .. ..o 2,371 9,275 5,159

INSUrANCE SEIVICES oot v e — 5,618 1,890

Information SErviCes ..o it 26) 448 1,631 -

COotPOIate ..o e 5 903 2,239
Total restructuring and impairment charges .......... 2,340 16,244 10,919
Litigation and regulatory seftlements:

INnvestment ServiCes ... 11,241 — —

INSUIGNCE SEIVICES ... it e (713) 4,000 —

COIPOIa e i 21,741 4,604 —
Total litigation and regulatory setflements ............. 32,269 8,604 —
Total consolidated operating earmings ................. $126,198 $134,365 $138,409

Information concerning principal geographic areas is as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003
2005 As Restated As Restated

Revenues
United States .........co oo i § 976,455 $913,197 $789,874
Infernational ... 86,600 81,713 65,363
[ 1 | $1,063,055 $994,910 $855,237
Long-lived assets
United States ..... e e e $ 938,372 5$880,863 $781,539
Infernational ... 117,099 116,605 123,635
o 3 I $1,055,471 $§997,468 $905,174

Related Party Transactions

A Director of the Company owns indirectly in excess of ten percent of the outstanding
equity interests in Matrix Settlement & Clearing Services LLC (“Matrix”). Matrix provides
settiement and clearing services for frades made by participants in certain retirement plans
for which BISYS Retirement Services is the record keeper. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, the
Company incurred expenses of approximately $5.4 milion, $4.7 million and $3.1 million,
respectively, for such services, These amounts represent in excess of five percent of Matrix’s
consolidated gross revenues for each of its last three fiscal years.

A Director of the Company is an officer and director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc. ("Bear
Stearns™), a financial services firm that is the Company ‘s primary investment banking advisor.
The Company has engaged Bear Stearns to provide financial advisory services in 2005 and
2006 and may continue to do so in the future. Fees for financial advisory services provided
by Bear Stearns in 2005 approximated $1.0 million.
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14. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

15.

16.

17.

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded a reduction to taxes currently payable
related to tax benefits associated with stock options of approximately $1.1 million, $1.7 million
and $3.7 million, respectively, with a corresponding increase to additional paid-in capital,

Net cash paid for acquisition of businesses was comprised of the following for 2005, 2004
and 2003 (in thousands):

2004 2003
‘ 2005 As Restated  As Restated
Fair value of assets acquired, nef of cash ............. $83,987 $147,830  $224,029
Less: issuance of common stock and stock options - ‘
pursuant 1o acquisifions ... — (38,823) —
Liabilities assumed ... oo (6506 (561,490) (73,944
Net cash paid oo, $83.481 § 57,5617 $150,085

Retirement Savings Plans

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries maintain retirement savings plans that cover
substantially all employees. These plans generally provide for tax-deferred amounts for each
participant and matching Company contributions, subject fo certain limitations. The
aggregate amounts charged to expense for contributions to these plans were $5.6 million,
$5.9 million and $5.4 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Deferred Compensation

The Company has a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan”) whereby certain
compensation earned by a participant can be deferred and placed in an employee benefit
trust, also known as a “rabbi trust.” Under the Plan, the participant may choose from several
investment designations, including shares of common stock of the Company. During the first
quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company amended the Plan to make all participant deferrals that
are designated in common stock of the Company irrevocable and to require that all future
distributions of such designations be setfiled in shares of Company common stock.
Accordingly, the Company has applied the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force
C'EITF) 97-14, "Accounting for Deferred Compensation Arrangements Where Amounts
Earned are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested.” The EITF requires that employer stock held
by the rabbifrust be classified as equity similar to the manner of accounting for freasury stock.
Additionally, the EITF requires that the portion of the deferred compensation obligation that
is required 1o be settled by the delivery of shares of employer stock be classified in equity.
At June 30, 2005, there are 409,180 shares, valued at $6.5 million, held by the employee
benefit trust and presented in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a contra-
equity account. Additionally, $6.6 million has been classified as equity in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet and represents the deferred compensation obligation under
the Plan that is designated in shares of Company common stock. Under the EITF, changes
in the fair value-of both the employer stock held in the rabbi trust and the deferred
compensation obligation, representing amounts designated in shares of Company
common stock, are not recognized.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company has stock option, restricted stock, and stock purchase plans which
provide for granting of options and/or restricted stock to certain employees and outside
directfors. Stock opfion grants have exercise prices equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant. The stock options vest primarily over a five-
year period at each anniversary date of the grant and expire following termination of
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employment or within ten years of the date of the grant, whichever comes first. Af June 30,
2005, options to purchase approximately 10.6 million shares are available for grant under

the plans.

Pursuant to the 1999 Equity Participation Plan, the Company provides for awards of
restricted shares of the Company’s common stock to key management employees.
Restricted shares awarded under the plan are subject to certain fransfer and forfeiture
restrictions that lapse over a four-year vesting period. Awards for 398,500 and 486,364
restricted shares were granted, net of forfeitures, during 2005 and 2004, respectively, at fair
values ranging from $13.15 to §18.71 per share. Unearned compensation expense related
to the issuance of restricted shares is reported as a reduction of stockholders’ equity on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and compensation expense is recorded
ratably over the four-year vesting period, during which the shares are subject to transfer and
forfeiture restrictions, based on the fair value on the award date. Compensation expense
related fo the issuance of restricted snares approximated $3.7 million and $2.0 million in 2005
and 2004, respectively. .

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions for grants in 2005, 2004 and 2003;
1) expected dividend yields of 0%, 2) risk-free inferest rafes ranging from 2.10% to 4.48%,
3) expected volatility of 40-45% in 2005 and 40% in 2004 and 2003, and 4) an expected option
life of 5.3 years, 5.0 years and 4.8 years in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, For the purpose
of pro forma disclosures (see Note 1), the estimated fair value of the opfions is amortized o
expense over the options’ vesting period of five years for employees. Using these
assumptions, the weighted average fair value per option at date of grant for options granted
during 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $6.18, $6.52 and $8.07, respectively.

The following is @ summory of stock op‘non activity for 2005, 2004 and 2003 (options
in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
- Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding at beginning of year ...... 13,402 $19.48 13,772 $19.70 13,403 $§18.87
Opfionsgranted ..o, 1,113 13.75 2,080 16.32 2,111 20.65
Options exercised ........ooovciiiin. (680) 10.49 (853) . 938 (1,128 11.06
Optionscancelled ........................ (1,184 21.29 (1,897 22.39 (614) - 22,08
Outstanding at end of year ............. 12,651 §19.27 13,402 $1948 13,772 §19.70
Exercisable at end of year ............... 11,165 851998 7,307 §19.00° 6,238 §18.42

The following summarizes information about the Company’s stock options ouTs‘rOndlng

at June 30, 2005 (options in ‘rhousonds)

Weighted Weighted

Weighted Average Average

Average Remaining Exercise

Options Exercise Life Price of

Qutstanding Price (inyears) Exercisable Exercisable

$001-810.00 ........ovvvven 682 $ 877 1.8 682 S 8.77
$10.01-820.00 .......cvvisiiinn 7,568 156.10 54 6,084 15.41
$20.01-830.00 ......ocvvviiiiinn 3,794 27.15 43 3,782 27.15
$30.01-840.00 .......ccvvvinns 617 33.40 4.3 617 33.40
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18. Notes Receivable from Stockholders

The Board of Directors approved and the Company made loans in fiscal 2000 to certain
executive officers to assist them in exercising non-qualified stock options, retaining the
underlying shares and paying the applicable taxes resulting from such exercises. These loans
bore interest at 2.48% as of June 30, 2005, were full recourse, and were secured by a pledge
of certain shares of the Company’s Common Stock acquired pursuant to the exercise of the

- options. As of June 30, 2005, the pledged shares represented approximately 122% of the

outstanding loan balances. The principal was repayable the later of five years from the date
of the loan or the expiration date of the options exercised using such loan proceeds. The
principal was also repayable within one year of the employee’s death or fermination of
employment due to disability and within .30 days of voluntary. resignation. Interest was

- payable annually on the anniversary date of each loan. In August 2005, the two remaining

loans that-were outstanding at June 30, 2005 were repaid in full. .

The notes receivable of $3.7 milion and $8.1 million at June 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, are reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance sheetfs as a

- reduction in stockholders’ equity.

19.

Shareholder R|ghts Plan

The Company has adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan and declared a dividend
distribution at the rate of one Right for each share of common stock held of record as of the
close of business on May 16, 1997 and for each share of common s‘rock issued thereafter up
to the distribution date (defined below).

Each Right entitles holders of common stock to buy shares of common stock of the
Company at an exercise price of $175, The Rights would be exercisable, and would detach
from the common stock (the *Distribution Date”) only if a person or group (i) were to acquire
16 percent or more of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company; (i) were
to announce a tender or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in a person or
group beneficially owning 15 percent or more of the outstanding shares of common stock

- of the Company; or (i) were declared by the Board to be an Adverse Person (as defined
in the Plan) if such person or group beneficially owns 10 percent or more of the outstanding

shares of common stock in the Company. In the event of any occurrence triggering the
Distribution Date, each right would entitle the holder (other than such an acquiring person
or group) to purchase the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company (or, in

certain circumstances, common stock of the acquiring person) with a value of twice the

exercise price of the Rights upon payment of the exercise price. The Company will be
entitled to redeem the Rights at $.000625 per Right at any time. The Rights will expire at the
close of business on May 16, 2012,
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20. Share Repurchase Programs

Repurchases of the Company’s common stock have occurred and are expected to
confinue o occur from time o time in the open market 1o offset the possible dilutive effect
of shares issued under employee benefit plans, for possible use in future acquisitions, and for
general and other corporate purposes. The following table presents stock repurchase
activity during the last three fiscal years under programs authorized by the Board of Directors
between fiscal 1999 and fiscal 2005, disclosing total shares repurchased under each
program and the associated cost. Upon authorization of each new stock repurchase
program, the former program is superseded and replaced.

' . _ (in thousands)
2005 2004 2003

Shares Cost Shares Cost Shares Cost

Share Repurchase Programs: ’
$100 million, authorized January 1999 ., - $ - — § — 1,150 $28,626
$100 million, authorized August 2002 ... — — 3,168  46,153.. 30 4,793
$100 million, authorized

November 2003 ...............ocoeene. 3,149 45,755 869 13,5665 — —
Total Stock Repurchases .......o.vvvvvnes, 3,149 §45,755 4,027 $59.718 1,451 $33.419
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21. Consolidated Quarterly Results
(unaudited, in thousands, except per share data)

The following presents a summary of the unaudited quarterly data for 2005 and 2004, restated to give
effect to the adjustments described in Note 3.

. . Fiscal 2005
Quarter Ended . . : . : September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30
. As Restated . : - As Restated
As - with As with
Previously As Discontinued Previously As Discontinued
. - Reported  Restated Operations Reported  Restated Operations
REVENUEBS ..\ vt $268,129 $269,607  $259,405  $276,338 $280,271 $269,275  $266,056 $268,319
Operating earnings ................. e 34,672 36,782 37,198 33,748 37.072 37,322 17,454 34,224
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes .................. 34,494 36,719 37,135 34,179 38.984 39.234 13,149 32,885
Income from continuihg operations ....... 21,731 23,019 23,264 21,875 25,108 25,355 4,230 24,751
Loss from disconfinued operations,
netoftax .........oovii o — — (245) — — 247) (70,621) (380
Netincome Joss) ...ovvvv i $ 21,731 § 23019 823019 § 21,875 $ 25108 S 25108  $(66.391) $§ 24,371
Basic earnings (loss) per share ) o
Continuing operations .................. $ 018 § .019 $ 019 § 018 § 021 § o $ 004 $§ 027
Discontinued operations ................ — — — — — — (0.59) —
Total basic earnings (loss) per share ....... $§ 018 § 019 $ 019 § 018 $§ 021 § 021 $§ (056 $ Q.21
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Continuing operations . ................. $ 018 § 019 §$ 019 § 018 § 027 § 021 $§ o004 § o
Discontinued operctions ................ — — — — — — (0.59) —
Total diluted earnings (loss) per share .. ... § 018§ 019 § 019 § 018 § 0; § 021 $ (055 § 020
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Quarter Ended

Revenues ... ...
Operating earings . ............0s

Income from continuing opero‘rlons
before income faxes ... ... ..

Income from conhnumg operoﬂons
Loss from discontinued opero’nons

netoftax ~.....................
Netincome ................

Basic earnings (oss) per shore

Contfinuing operations: . ... ...
Discontinued operations . ........ .z

Total basic earnings (loss) per share

Diluted earnings (10ss) _pér share

Continuing operations ...........
Discontinued operations . .'.......

Total diluted earnings (loss) per share ... ..

Y

Quarter Ended

Revenues .......... S S
Operating eamings ...............

Income from continuing operations

before income taxes ........... ‘

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations,

netoffax ......................
Netincome ................ R

Basic earnings (loss) per share

Continuing operations ...........
Discontinued operafions . ./, ......

Totai basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per sharé

Continuing operations ...........
Discontinued operations . ... ......

Total diluted earnings (loss) per share ... ..

Fiscal 2004

September 30 December 31
As Restated As Restated
As with As with

Previously As Discontinued Previously As Discontinued
Reported Restated Operations Reported Restated Operations
$236,434 $235,629 $226,184 $261,381 $259,955 $249,573
21,956 21,739 22,558 36,826 37.471 38,142
17.617 17.933 18,752 32,373 33,033 33,704
5,843 7,434 7.895 20,314 21,319 21,715

— — (461) — — (3%96)

v S 5,843 § 7434 § 7.434 $ 20,314 $ 21,319 $ 21,319
$ 005 S 006 $ 007 $. 017 $ 018 $ 0.18
- § 005 $ 006 $ 006 $ 017 $§ 018 $ 0.18
$ 005 $ 006 $ 0.06 S 017 $ 018 § 0.8
$ -0.05 $ 006 § 006 $ 017 $ 018 $ 0.18

Fiscal 2004
'March 31 ’ June 30
_As Restated As Restated
As with ' As with

Previously ‘As i Discontinued Previously As Discontinued
_Reported Restated - Operations Reported . Restated Operations
-+ §272,332 $267,967 $258,310 $267,185 $270,664 $260,843
33,823 33,905 34,469 33,293 38,297 39,196
29,473 29,412 29,976 28,731 . 33,572 34,471
19,394 19,729 20,062 .- 18,029 21,649 22,629

— — (333) — — (980)

$ 19,394 $ 19,729 $ 19,729 $ 18,020 7§ 21,649 $ 21,649
$ 016 $ 016 $ 017 $ 015 $ 018 $ 019
L= — — — = 0.01

$ 0.16 $§ 016 $§ 016 § 015 . $§ 08 $§ 018
S‘ - 016 $ 016 $ 037 $ 015 $ 038 $ 0.19
- — - : — — (0.07)

$ .16 $ . Q16 $§ 016 $ 0156 $§ 018
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.
TEM 9A. Controls ond Procedures

Audit Committee Inveshgahon cnd Restatement

On July 25, 2005, the Company announced that its previously issued consolidated financial
statements would be required to be restated and should ne longer be relied upon. The Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors, with the assistance of independent counsel and forensic
accountants engaged by independent counsel, undertook a comprehensive internal review of
the facts giving rise to the restatement described in Note 3 1o the consolidoted financial
statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The investigation included an extensive
review of our accounting policies, accounting records, supporting documentation and e-mail
communications, as well as interviews with numerous current and former employees. As a result
of this investigation, various matters were identified that required the restatement of prior year
financial statements. Certain of the restatement adjustments related to entries which the
Company believed were prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP), but which were subsequently determined to be errors, In addition, as a result
of the investigation and the restatement of our consolidated financial statements, control
deficiencies in the Company’s infernal control over financial reporting were identified. The
investigation indicated that certain individuals who were pdrt of the Company’s former
management failed to set an effective tone to communicate appropriate ethical standards and
financial reporting integrity, which contributed to ineffective controls, that failed to detect certain
accounting errors and faited to prevent the improper override of controlsin certain otherinstances,
which allowed inappropriate -accounting under their supervision. While the investigation
concluded that current management has established an effective culture and tone necessary
- 1o support its control environmént, this deficiency was a 5|gn|ﬁcom* contributing factor to the
restatement described above.

Management has reviewed its control deficiencies with the Audit Committee, has discussed
them with ourindependent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. and
has advised the Audit Committee that the control deficiencies, described below, constitute
material weaknesses in our internal confrol over financial reporting.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit pursuant to the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods. specified
in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and that such information is.
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding .
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognizes disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives,
and in reaching a reasonable level of assurance, management necessarily is required to apply
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of ous
management, including our CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFC concluded our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of June 30, 2005, at the reasonable assurance level, because
of the material weaknesses described below,
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Notwithstanding the material weaknesses described below, we believe our consolidated
financial statements presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly present, in all material
respects, the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows for all periods
presented herein,

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for estabiishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, Internal control over financial reporting is the process designed by, or under the
supervision of, our CEO and CFO, and effected by our board of directors, management and
other personnel, o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our
fransactions and dispositions of assets; (i) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordarce with the authorization of our management and directors; and

(iit)y provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internai control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions
or that the degree of compliance with established policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our CEO and
CFQO, we conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as-of June 30, 2005. In making this assessment, our management used the criteria set
forth in Infernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results
in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will. not be prevented or detected. Management identified the following material
weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2005:

1. Control environment. We did not maintain an effective control environment.
Specifically, we (i) falted to establish adequate controls over the selection, application
and documentation of our accounting policies to ensure all accounting policies were
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (i) failed to adequately
frain our personnel in the application of generally accepted accounting principles
commensurate with our financial reporting requirements; (iii) failed to effectively train
our personnel on compliance with our Code of Conduct; and (iv) failed to maintcin an
effective whistleblower program.

A control environment sefs the tone of an organization, influences the control
consciousness of its people, and is the foundation of all other components of internal
control over financial reporting. This control environment material weakness confributed
to the material weaknesses described in 2 through 6 below.

2. Confrols over revenue recognition: We did not maintain effective controls over
revenue. Specifically, effective controls, including effective reconciliations, were not
designed and in place to ensure the completeness, accuracy and appropriate timing
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of revenue and deferred revenue recognition related to new customer contracts,
software sales and service bureau hosting arrangements, and the presentation of gross
versus net revenue recognition for certain distribution and marketing activities within the
fund services division. This control deficiency resulted in the restatement of our
consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, for each
of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all quarters in fiscal 2004 and adjustments to
the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 fto correct revenue and deferred
revenue. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a misstatement of the
aforementioned accounts that would result in a material misstatement to our annual or
interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.

Confrols over accounting for business combinations and divestitures. We did not

maintain effective controls over the accuracy and completeness of our accounting for

“ business combinations and divestitures, Specifically, effective controls were not
designed and in place to prevent or detect errors related to (i) the capitalization of
certain acquisition costs; (i) the recording of charges to merger and divestiture related
accrudls; (i) the recognition of certain merger related cash flows as revenue; (iv) the
recognition of divestiture gains and operating expenses and (v) the amortization of
customer related intangible assets. This control deficiency resulted in the restatement of

. our consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, for
each of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all quarters in fiscal 2004 and adjustments to
the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to correct merger and divestiture related
accruals and expenses, goodwill and intangible assets. Additionally, this control
deficiency could result in a misstatement of the aforementioned accounts that would
result in a material misstatement to our annual or interim consolidated financial
statements that would not be prevented or detected.

Confrols over vendor rebafes and legal and contractual setflements. We did not
maintain effective controls over the completeness, accuracy and validity of our
accounting for vendor rebates and expenses incurred in connection with legal and
confractual settlements. Specifically, effective controls were not designed and in place
relative to the identification, communication and review of financial data used in
accounting for vendor rebates and expenses incurred in connection with legal and
contractual seftlements. This control deficiency resulted in the restatement of our
consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2008, foreach
of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all quarters in fiscal 2004 and adjustments to the
third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to correct vendor rebates, legal and contractual
settlement expenses, and the related accruals. Additionally, this control deficiency
could result in a misstatement of the aforementioned accounts that would result in a
material misstatement to our annual or interim consolidated financial statements that
would not be prevented or detected.

Confrols overlegses. We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and
accuracy of our accounting for lease related assets, liabilities and expenses.
Specifically, effective controls were not designed and in place over the selection,
application and monitoring of our accounting policies related to () the recognition of
escalating lease payments; (i) the recognition of lease incentives; and (i) the
capitalization of equipment lease obligations to ensure that such transactions were
accounted forin conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This control
deficiency resulted in the restatement of our consolidated financial statements for the
years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, for each of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all
quarters in fiscal 2004 and adjustments to the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to
correct equipment, deferred rent, rent expense, amortization expense and lease
obligations. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a misstatement of the
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aforementioned accounts that would result in a material misstatement to our annual or
interim consclidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.

6. Controls over insurance commissions payable: We did not maintain effective controls
overthe completeness and accuracy of our accounting for commissions payable in the
life insurance services division. Specifically, effective controls, including effective
reconciliations, were not designed and in place to appropriately record sales
commissions payable to our retail agents. This control deficiency resulted in the
restatement of our consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2004
and 2003, for each of the first two quarters in fiscal 2005, all quarters in fiscal 2004 and
adjustments to the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005 to correct accrued
commissions payable. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a misstatement
of the aforementioned accounts that would result in a material misstatement to our
annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would notf be prevented or
detected.

Because of these material weaknesses, management has concluded that the Company did
not maintain effective internal control over financial reporfing as of June 30, 2005, based on the
criteria set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

Monogemen’r’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2005 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Management's Consideration of the Restatement

In coming to the conclusion that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and
internal control over financial reporting were not effective as of June 30, 2005, management
considered the restatement and material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting described above. In additfion to the restatement adjustments that were a
result of the material weaknesses described above, there were other immaterial misstatements
corrected as part of the restatement ( as disclosed in Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K ) that were considered by
management. Management has evaluated these misstatements and concluded
these misstatements were the result of control deficiencies, which did not constitute a
material weakness, individually, or in the aggregate, in the Company’s infernal control over
financial reporting.

Changes in Infernal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company‘sinternal control over financial reporting during the
quarterended June 30, 2005 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s infernat control over financial reporting.
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Management’s Remediation Efforts

We have taken the following steps to strengthen our internal control over financial reporting.
Notwithstanding such efforts, the material wecknesses described above will not be remediated
until. the new controls operate for a sufficient period of time and are tested to enable
management to conclude that the controls are operating effectively.

1.

Control environment. We have taken, and are developing further plans to take,
significant actions to improve our control environment. The Company hired a new Chief
Financial Officer in August 2005 to oversee the fransition of financial responsibilities,
address staffing matters and implement improved controls and procedures. Our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, together with other senior executives, are
committed to maintaining a strong control environment, high ethical standards and
financial reporting integrity. Following are the actions we are taking or plan on taking,
to improve our control environment and eliminate the material weaknesses:

+« Create adirect reporting line from the business unit accountants to the Corporate
Controller in an effort to ensure the independence of accounting decisions.

o Develop or revise our written accounting policies and procedures to establish a
comprehensive up-to-date accounting manual, including revenue and expense
recognition guidelines and processes.

+ Establish enhanced quarterly accounting reviews and formal training programs for
financial staff in an effort o ensure all relevant personnel are familiar with our
accounting policies, control processes and have the necessary competency,
fraining and supervision for their assigned level of responsibility and the nature and
complexity of our business.

o Contfinue to evaluate key financial positions and add senior management
personnel focused on financial accounting, financial reporting and financial
controls, We will also continue to evaluate and take appropriate actions with
respect to certain employeesin management, infernal audit and financial reporting
functions, which may include further training, supervision and/or reassignment.

s Confinue to enhance our “whistleblower” procedures and “tone at the top” to
increase the likelihcod that concerns related to financial reporting or the control
environment will be timely reported and properly evaiuated.

o Continue to implement a quarterly and annual sub-certification process requiring
written confirmations from business and finance managers as to the operating
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over
financial reporting.

Confrols over revenue recognition. Following are the actions we are taking or plan
on taking, to improve our conirols over revenue recognition and eliminate the
material weakness:

o Implement a comprehensive periodic review of divisional income statements
and balance sheets to identify and assess significant revenue and deferred
revenue transactions.

* Develop procedures to ensure quclified, senior level personnel within the finance
organization are responsible for the review and approval of all revenue transactions
with a significant financial impact,

¢ Continue to enhance documentation and review of all new business acquisition
and system conversion related activities and other transactions with a material
financial impact on revenues 1o ensure proper freatment and disclosure,
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o - Continue fo enhance month-end closing procedures to ensure that fimely, effective
and consistent reconciliations are performed on all revenue accounts by qualified
‘personnel within the finance organization.

¢ Continue to- add and retain fechnical c:ccourmng personnel and enhance
supervision with regard to, among other things, timely account analysis and review
and approval of significant revenue ’rronsoc’nons

Controls over accounting for business combinations ono‘ divestitures. To improve our
aecounting over business combinations and divestitures and eliminate the material
weakness we will ensure qualified, senior level personnel within the finance organization
are responsible for the review and approval of occruols ond eshmc’res related to
accounting for acquisitions and divestitures. ‘

" Controls over vendor rebates and legal and contractual setflements. Following are the
actions we are taking or plan on taking, to improve our controls over non-routine
fransactions and contractual obligations to eliminate the material weakness:

+ Improve procedures forverifying and documenting non-standard fransactions and
contracts, including a comprehensive review of divisional income statements and
batance sheets to identify and analyze complex and significant non-routine or
non- recurnng ’rronsoc’nons and contractual obhgcmons

s Develop procedures to ensure qualified, senior level personnel within the finance
organization are responsible for the review and approve all significant complex,
non-routine, and non-recurring Tronsocﬁons and con’rroc’ruol obligations.

¢ Codntinue to enhance procedures To review bolonce sheef occounT reconciliations
by qualified, senior level personnel within the finance organization, including
increasing the frequency and depth of such reviews and implement a risk based
approach focusing .on complex accounts and occoun’rs having a significant
financial impact.

¢ Continue to add and retain technical occounTlng personnel to enhance supervision
with regard fo, among other things, account reconciliations and supporting
documentation for non-routine transactions and contractual obligations.

o Confrols over leases. Following are the actions we are taking or plan on taking, to

improve our controls over leases and eliminate the material weakness:

‘s Continue accounting reviews to ensure all relevant personnel involved in leasing
transactions understand and  apply Gpphcoble accounting guidance in
_ accordance with generally occepfed accounfing principles.

¢ Contfinue to mplemem‘ procedures ensuring gudlified, senior level personnel within
the finance organization review all lease and sublease transactions, including
supporting documentation, and are responsible for the review and approval of all
related accounting considerations and schedules.

Controls over insurance commissions payable. Following are the actions we are taking
or plan on taking, fo improve our controls over insurance commission payables and
eliminate. the material weakness: .

e« Continue to implement procedures ensuring qualified, senior level personnel within
the finance organization review the impact of insurance commissions receivable
and.commissions payable transactions, including supporting documentation, and
are responsible for the review and approval of alirelated accounting considerations
and schedules.
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¢ Continue to improve procedures for verifying and documenting insurance
commissions payable, including the review of account reconciliations, account
anaiyses and supporting documentation.

e Confinue to develop processing systems to provide more aufomation, accuracy
and control in recording insurance commissions payable fransactions.

The restatements primarily related to matters which occurred prior to 2004 under the
Company’s previous management team and notably, before the Company began ifs
assessment of internal control over financial reporting as required by the Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, The Company believes it has taken appropriate disciplinary action
with respect to those employees who were responsible for activities that contributed to the
restatement or thot such individuals are no longer employed by the Company. We are
committed to complete the actions described above as soon as possible and believe the
implementation of these new controls will improve our internal control over financial reporting.

PART Ili

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The following sets forth certain mformchon concernmg -our dnreCTors and executive officers
as of March 31, 2006. : .

Denis A. Bovin, 58, has served as a Director of the Company since June 2001. Mr. Bovinis Vice
Chairman — Investment Banking, and Senior Managing Director. of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., a
financial services firm. Prior to joining Bear Stearns in 1992, Mr. Bovin spent more than two decades
at Salomon Brothers Inc. and headed that firm’s Investment Banking Corporate Coverage and
Capital Markets Divisions after previously heading the firm’s Communications and Technology
Group. He is a rmember of the Board of Directors of Bear Stearns & Co.

Robert J. Casale, 67, hos served as a Director of the Company since 1997, Mr. Cascle is the
former Group President, Brokerage Information Services, of ADP, a-position in which he served
from 1988 to 1998. His experience also includes serving as Managing Director, Mergers &
Acguisitions/Corporate Finance of the High Technology Group of Kidder, Peabody & Co. ond
more than 10 years in various executive positions with AT&T, including President-elect of AT&T's
Special Markets Group, responsible for major joint ventures and partnerships. He is a member of
the Board of Directors of EasyLink Services, a public company provider of services 1o facilitate
the elecfronic exchange of certain information, and Northeast Securities, a privately held NYSE
member firm. : :

Thomas A. Cooper. 69, has served as a Director of the Company since 1997, Mr, Cooper has
been Chairman of TAC Associates, a financial advisory and investment firm, since 1996, and
former Chairman of Flafiron Credit Company, a finance company, from 1997 until 2003.
He previously served since its formation and unfil 1996 as Chairman of TAC Bancshares,
Inc., a holding company formed in 1991 1o acquire and operate financial service institutions,
He 'is a member of the Board of Directors. of Renaissance Relnsuronce a publicty-heid
reinsurance company. o

Russell P. Fradin, 50, joined the Company as a Director and President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in February 2004. Prior to joining the Company he had served for seven
years.in various senior executive positions with ADP. most recently as Group President, Giobal
Employer Services. Prior to joining ADP, Mr. Fradin was a senior partner-at McKinsey & Company,
a consulting firm. He is a member of the Board of Directors of The Corporate Executive Board.

. Richard J. Ha\)i|cnd, 59, has served as a Director of the Company sihce September 2004, He
served for 20 years in various executive and financial positions at ADP, most recently as its Chief
Financial Officer and a member of its Executive Committee, retiring from the company in 2001,
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His experience prior to ADP includes 11 years in the auditing and assurance practice of Touche
Ross & Co., a predecessor firm of Deloitfe & Touche, a public accounting firm.

Paula G. Mclnerney, 56, has served as a Director of the Company since November 2003.
Mrs. Mclnerney has been a private investor in a number of private companies that provide
various financial services since her retirement in 1998 as Chief Operating Officer of the
Cppenheimer Funds. Mrs. Mcinerney’s career includes 15 years in various operations paositions
for financial services companies, including Dean Witter Reynolds (1983-1985), Fidelity
Investments (1985-1990), Bankers Trust (1990-1995), and the Cppenheimer Funds (1995-1998).

Joseph J. Melone, 74, has served as a Director of the Company since August 1999. He retfired
as President and Chief Executive Officer of The Equitable Cos., Inc. in 1998, a position in which
he served since 1996, He served from 1992 through 1995 as President and Chief Operating Officer
of The Equitable upon its formation in 1992 affer having served two years in the same position
for its principal insurance subsidiary, The Equitable Life Assurance Society of the United States.
Prior to joining The Equitable, Mr. Melone served as President of The Prudential Insurance
Company of America. He is a member of the Board of Directors of Foster Wheeler Corporation,
a publicly-held engineering and construction company. He also serves as Chairman of the Board
of Horace Mann Educators Corp.. a publicly held insurance company.

There are no family relationships among the current executive officers and directors of
the Company. ‘

Each director named above holds such office until the next annual meeting of stockholders
and until his or her successor is elected and gualified or until his death, resignation or removal.

Identification of Audit Committee/Audit Committee Financial Expert

BISYS has a separately designated standing Audit Committee established in accordance
with Section 3(a)(68)(A) of the Exchange Act. The Audit Committee, which has a written charter
approved by the Board, consists of Thomas A, Cooper (Chairperson), Richard J. Haviland, and
Joseph J. Melone. Mr. Melone replaced Ms. Mclnerney as a member of the Committee in
December 2005. The Board has designated Thomas A. Cooper as the Audit Commifttee financial
expert within the meaning of ltem 401(h) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act and has
determined that Mr. Cooper gualifies as an independent director under the NYSE rules.

Other Executive Officers:

Bruce D. Dalziel, 48, serves as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. He joined
the Company in his current position in August 2005. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Dalziel
served as Chief Financial Officer of DoubleClick Inc, from Octolber 2001 to July 2005, Mr. Dalzie!
previously served in a number of other senior management positions at DoubleClick, including
Acting Chief Financial Officer from August 2001 to October 2001, Vice President of Finance and
Operations, Technology, Data and Research from January 2001 to August 2001, and Vice
President of Financial Planning and Analysis from Septemiber 2000 to January 2001. From
September 1986 until joining DoubleClick in 2000, Mr. Dalziel served in a variety of roles af
Prudential Insurance Company of America, including Vice President of Financial Planning and
Analysis, Chief Financial Officer for International Insurance and Portfolio Manager.

Cory Douglas, 39, serves as Senior Vice President, Corporate Finance and Controller, He
joined the Company in his current position in November 2005, Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Douglas served as Vice President, Corporate Finance and Controller of DoubleClick Inc. from
August 2002 to October 2005. Mr. Douglas previously served as DoubleClick’s Vice President,
Pianning and Anatlysis from April 2002 until August 2002 and Vice President, Finance, TechSolutions
from April 2000 until April 2002. Mr. Douglas also served as DoubleClick’s Assistant Controlier from
April 1999 until April 2000. Prior fo that, Mr. Douglas served as a Finance Manager at Colgate-
Palmolive Company, a consumer products company, from 1997 until April 1999,
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John M. Howard, 39, serves as Executive Vice President and President, insurance Services.
Mr. Howard joined the Company in September 2004. Prior to joining the Company and from 2002
to September 2004, he served as President of the Prudential Select Brokerage unit of Prudential
Financial, Inc., a financial services company. Prior to joining Prudential and from 2000 until 2002,
he served as President of the Retirement Services strategic business unit of Conseco, Inc., @
financial services company, and as President of Conseco Securities, Inc., a broker-dealer and
subsidiary of Conseco, Inc. From 1993 until joining Conseco in 2000, Mr. Howard served in a
number of senior management positions with GE Capital Services, Inc. and GE Financial
Assurance, Inc., each a financial services subsidiary of General Electric Company,
a conglomerate.,

J. Robert Jones, 53, serves as Executive Vice President, Business Development. Mr, Jones
joined the Company in 1989 as Vice President, Sales and Marketing. He became Senior Vice
President, Business Development in 1996 and was elected to his current position in 1998.

Steven J. Kyono, 44, serves as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary.
Mr. Kyono joined the Company in his current position in April 2006. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Kyono served as Staff Vice President and Associate General Counset of ADP from May 2004
to April 2006. Mr, Kyono previously served as ADP’s Associate General Counsel and Vice President
from December 2002 to May 2004 and as Assistant General Counsel and Vice President from
December 1998 to December 2002,

Sharon Murphy, 47, serves as Executive Vice President, Human Resources. Ms. Murphy joined
the Company in her current position in November 2005. Prior fo joining the Company, Ms. Murphy
served as Vice Praesident, Human Resources of ADP’s Small Business Services division from
February 2002 to October 2005. Ms. Murphy previously served as ADP’s DVP. Marketing
Communications from January 2000 until February 2002 and DVP Human Resources, Electronic
Services Division from June 1997 unfit January 2000. Prior to that, Ms. Murphy served in a variety
of Corporate and Employer Services Group Human Resources roles with ADP from May 1983 until
June 1997,

William W. Neville, 52, serves as Executive Vice President and President of the Company’s
Alternative Investment Services business. Mr. Neville previously served as Executive Vice President
and Group President, Information Services from September 2000 until March 2006 and was
appointed to his current position following the announcement of the sale of the Information
Services to Open Solutions Inc. He joined the Company in 1992 as Senior Vice President/General
Manager Sales, Eastern Region of the Banking Solutions division, and was promoted in 1997 to
President of the Banking Solutions division.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted the Code of Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer and senior
financial officers. The Code of Ethics is publicly available on our website at www.bisys.com. Any
waiver or amendment of the Code of Ethics will be disclosed on our website or as otherwise
permitted under applicabie law.

Section ié(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires that our directors, executive
officers and persons who own more than fen percent of a registered class of our equity securities
file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC. Directors, executive officers and
greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulations to provide us with copies
of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely on a review of Forms 3, 4 and 5 submitted to
the Company during and with respect to fiscal 2005 and written representations from our
executive officers and directors, all statements of beneficial ownership that were required to be
filed with the SEC were timely filed.
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ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.
Compensation of Directors

Fiscal 2005

During fiscal 2005, Mr, Casale, as non-employee Chairperson of the Board, received an
annual retainer of $150,000 for his services. Each other non-employee Director (i.e., each Director
other than Messrs. Casale and Fradin) received a $25,000 annual retainer, payable in quarterly
instaliments. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee and the Chairperson of the Compensation
Committee each received an additional annual retainer of $5,000, also payable in quarterly
installments. All non-employee Directors also received a $1,000 daily meeting fee for personal
attendance at each meeting, including committee meetings held other than on the same day
as a Board meeting. Mr. Fradin does not receive any compensation for services as a Director,

Each non-employee Director also receives stock options to purchase shares of Common
Stock of the Company in consideration of their services as a Director, pursuant to the Company’s
Non-Employee Directors” Stock Option Plan. Commencing with the 1997 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, each non-employee Director then elected by stockholders and each new non-
employee Director elected for the first time by stockholders at a subsequent Annual Meeting of
Stockholders was granted an option upon such election to purchase 25,000 shares of Common
Stock of the Company atf the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the date of grant.

Each option vests 20% on the date of grant and 20% upon the Director’s re-election by
stockholders at each subsequent Annual Meeting of Stockholders until such option is fully vested.
Each option is exercisable to the extent vested. A new stock option for an additional 25,000
shares of Common Stock is-granted to a non-employee-Director upon re-election at the next
Annual Meeting of Stockholders following the Annual Meeting at which any prior option
becomes fully vested. All stock options under the Non-Employee Directors’ Plan are granted at
an exercise price equal to the fair market value of ashare of Common Stock on the date of grant.
A total of 1,100,000 shares of Common Stock are cuthorized and reserved for issuance in
connection with the grant of options under the Non-Employee Directors” Stock Option Plan, of
which 167,400 shares are currently available for future option grants.

Fiscal 2006

In June 2005, the Board of Directors voted to change the compensation of non-employee
directors effective July 1, 2005 1o: (i) increase fees for Board and committee meeting afttended
in person from $1,000to $1,500; (i) pay committee meeting fees even when committee meetings
are held on the same day as a Board meeting, (i) pay meeting fees for formal Board or
committee meetings attended telephonically at the same rate as in-person meetings, (iv) pay
an additional $5,000 annual refainer fee to the Chairman of the Nominating and Governance
Committee and (v) pay an additional $5.000 annual retainer fee to each member of the Audit
Commiftee, which will also be paid to the AUdIT Committee’s Chairman.,
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Compensation of Executive Officers

The following table shows, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, certain
compensation information as to Mr. Fradin (who served as Chief Executive Officer during fiscal
2005), each of the four next most highly compensated executive officers of the Company serving
as executive officers at June 30, 2005 and one additional individual who was an executive officer

~during fiscal 2005 but who ceased o be an executive officer before the end of fiscal 2005
("Named Executive Officers”). : :

Annual Compensation __Long Term Compensation Awards °

@ - ® e @ 0 (@ ®
' ’ \ Securities ‘

- Restricted Underlying Options/ L

Stock SARs (#)@ ‘All Other
: o . ' L - Awards Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year Salary (§) . Bonus ($) ($)“’ Annual  Reload Total >
Russell P. Fradin® ............... 2005 $650,000 ‘. $600,000 $1,463,000 125,000 0 125000 $ 56,250
President and : ' 2004 $250,000 $300,000. $ 630,000 375,000 0 375,000 $ 6,000

Chief Executive Officer S e - ’ '

James L. Fox® ... ... . ... 2005 $406,100 $294000 $ 292600 25,000 0 25000 $ 6,044

Former Executive Vice ‘ 2004 $398,119 $240,000 $ 263,000 40,000 0 40000 § 6065
President ond Chief ' ‘ .
Financial Officer

John M, Howard® . ......... ‘. ... 2005 8263,'84-16 $238,500 $ 504,350 25,000 S 0 25000  $167.000
Executive Vice President ‘ ‘ . .
President, Insurance Services

J.Robert Jones ................. 2005 $347.400 $234,300 $ 266,000 22,000 22000  $130,845

0

Executive Vice President, 2004 $353,731 '$165500 $ 342,600 45,000 0 45,000 §110,007

Business Development 2003 $334,231 0 0 50,000 0 80,000  $166,000
Wiliam W. Neville . .............. 2005 $380,000 ‘ $207,500 § 292,600 25,000 0 25000 $ 15154

Executive Vice President 2004 8375192 $209,100 $§ 85650 36,000 0 36,000 § 25793

President, Information Sefvices 2003 $349,231 $180,000 0 40,000 0 40000 § 22481
Willam J. Tomko® ......o...... . 2005 $385000 $195300 § 292,600 25000 0 25000 § 12826

Former Executive 2004 $386,038 $224,000 $ 256,950 36,000 0 36,000 $ 17,332

Vice President 2003 $378,269 S 35,000 0 40000 11,725 51,725 _ § 29,018

Group President,
Investment Services

(1) The value shown in the table represents the dollar value at the date of award of all restricted
- stock awards during the fiscal year. All restricted stock awards were made under the
Company’s 1999 Equity Participation Plan. No restricted stock awards were granted prior to
fiscal year 2004, The number and-value of all unvested-holdings-of shares of restricted stock
held by the Named Executive Officer as of June 30, 2005, based on a closing share price
of $14.94 on that date, is as-follows: Mr. Fradin (136,250 shares, $2,035,575); Mr. Fox (37,000
shares, $552,780); Mr. Howard (35,000 shares, $522,900); Mr. Jones (35,000 shares, $§522,900);
Mr. Neville (25,750 shares, $384,705) and Mr. Tomko (33,250 shares, $496,755). Shares of
restricted stock vast 25% per year over a four-year period from the date of grant on the grant
anniversary date. The recipient of the restricted stock is entitled to the payment of dividends,
if any, on such shares.

(2) The number of options shown for each fiscal year reflects the actual number of total options
granted (annual grants and reload grants) during such fiscal year as of the date of such
grants. The number of stock options and exercise price for stock options granted in fiscal 2005
is set forth below under the heading “Stock Options Granted in Fiscal 2005.”

(3) Forfiscalyear 2005 includes (i) the Company’s matching contribution under the Company’'s
4071(k) Plan as follows: Mr. Fradin ($7,500); Mr. Fox (86,044); Mr. Howard (§7,000); Mr. Jones
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($5.922); Mr. Neville (§5,948), and Mr. Tomko (§6,258):; (i) the economic value of a “split doliar”
life insurance policy as follows: Mr. Jones (§2,655); Mr. Neville (§2,568), and Mr. Tomko (§1,281);
@ity the value of the Company’s matching confribution under the Company’s volunfary
executive deferred compensation plan as follows: Mr. Fradin ($47,500); Mr. Jones (525,525);
Mr. Neville (81,200); (iv) payment of $160,000 in connection with Mr. Howard'’s relocation
package; and (v) a bonus estimated at $96,743 to cover the interest payable on a loan
made fo Mr. Jones in 1999 1o pay the exercise price of certain stock options and related
income taxes, grossed up to cover the income taxes payable in respect of such bonus.

Mr. Fradin became an executive officer during fiscal year 2004 (in February 2004) when he
joined the Company as President and Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Fox became an executive officer during fiscal year 2004 (in September 2003) upon his
promotion to Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Cfficer. Mr. Fox ceased to be an
executive officer in August 2005.

Mr. Howard became an executive officer during fiscal year 2005 (in September 2004) when
he joined the Company as Executive Vice President- Insurance Services.

Mr. Tomko ceased to be an executive officer in June 2005.

Stock Options Granted in Fiscal 2005

The following table containsinformation concerning the grant of stock options to the Named

Executive Officers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 under the Company’s 1999 Equity
Participation Plan. The per share exercise price for all options is the last sale price as reported
by the NYSE on the trading day immediately prior to the option grant,

Option/SAR Grants in Last Fiscal Year

o Potential Realizable Value
Number of % of Total . at Assumed Annual Rates of
Securities Options/  Exercise Stock Price Appreciation
Underlying SARs Granted or base for Option Term
Options/SARs to Employees Price Expiration

Name Granted™ in Fiscal Year  ($/5h) Date 5% ($)@ 10% ()@

Russell P. Fradin .......... 125,000 11.2%  $13.30 08/16/2014 $1,045,537 $2,649,507
James L. FOX .............. 25,000 2.2% $13.30 08/16/2014 $ 209,107 $ 529,919
John M. Howard ......... 256,000 2.2% $14.41 09/17/2014 § 226,559 § 574,146
J. Robert Jones .......... 22,000 2.0% S$13.30 08/16/2014 $§ 184,015 § 466,329
William W. Neville ........ 25,000 22% $13.30 08/16/2014 $ 209,107 $ 529,919
William J. Tomko ......... 25,000 22% $13.30 08/16/2014 $ 209,107 $ 529,919
(1) Stock options vest and are exercisable in five equal instaliments on the first five anniversaries

@

of the grant date, and expire ten years affer the grant date. In the event of a change in
control of the Company, all options then held by the executive officers become
automatically vested, to the extent not previously vested, as of the effective date of such
change in control.

The dollar amounts under these columns are based on the assumed appreciation rates of
5% and 10% required by SEC disclosure rules. These amounts are not intended to forecast
possible future appreciation, if any, of the Company’s stock price.,
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Aggregate Option/SAR Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year End Option Values

The following table sets forth information with respect to the Named Executive Officers
concerning the exercise of options during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 and unexercised
options held af the end of the fiscal year based on the last sale price of ashare of Common Stock
as of that date of $14.94,

Number of Securities

Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Shares Options/SARs In-the-Money Options at
Acquired on Value at Fiscol Year End (#) Fiscal Year End ($)
Name Exercise (#) Realized (§) Exercisable/Unexercisable Exercisable/Unexercisable
Russelt P, Fradin .......... N/A 375,000 125,000 $ 0 $205,000
James L Fox.............. N/A 28,000 87,000 $ 23,120 $111,480
John M, Howard ......... N/A 0 25,000 $ 0 $ 13250

N/A 692,152 22,000 $638,675 § 36,080
N/A 424,784 25000 $411,682 $ 41,000
N/A 323,725 25,000  $165522 § 41,000

J. Robert Jones ..........
William W. Neville ........
Williom J. Tomko .........

o000 O

Loans to Executive Officers

The Board of Directors approved and the Company made loans to certain executive
officers, one of which was also a Director of the Company, in November 1999 to assist them in
exercising non-gudlified stock options, retaining the underlying shares and paying the applicable
taxes resulting from such exercises. The loans accrued interest at the rate of 2.48%. These are the
only loans made by the Company to executive officers or Directors that were outstanding during
fiscal 2005, and no portion of the loans has been forgiven. During the 2005 fiscal year, the largest
principal amount of the loans outstanding to such persons were as follows: Mr. Lynn Mangum,
former Chairman of the Board (President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
at the time of the loan) ($5.636,968); and Mr. Jones ($2,479,051). Messrs. Mangum and Jones
repoid a portion of their loans in accordance with their terms in September 2004, leaving an
outstanding balance of $2,523,990 for Mr. Mangum and $1,193,807 for Mr. Jones as of June 30,
2005. Messrs. Mangum and Jones each repaid their loans in their entirety in August 2005.

Employment and Separation Agreements

The Company does not have employment agreements with any of its executive officers but
has entered into Key Executive Separation Agreements with its executive officers. The
Agreements provide for certain lump sum severance payments in the event of termination other
than for cause or following a change in control of the Company. For terminations other than for
cause, the executive would receive one time (one and one-half fimes in the case of Mr. Fradin)
the sum of (i) his then current base salary and (ii) the greater of his then current fiscal year “at
Plan” annual incentive target amount or the immediately prior year’'s annual incentive
compensation sefflement amount (such sum, prior to being multiplied, referred to as the
“Applicable Severance Amount”). In the event of a change in control of the Company, the
executive may unilaterally terminate his employment with the Company for any reason during
the first 12 months after the change in confrol and, under certain circumsfances, during the 13th
through 36th month after the change in control. In the event of such termination of employment,
the executive officer would receive a lump sum severance payment egual to two times (three
times in the case of Mr. Fradin) his Applicable Severance Amount. The Agreement does not
provide any guarantee of employment or any other terms and conditions of employment.,

Mr. Fox’s employment terminated on October 2, 2005. In accordance with his separation
agreement dated August 12, 2005, Mr. Fox received (i) an amount equal to $699,100 as
contemplated by the Key Executive Separation Agreement previously entered into between the
Company and Mr. Fox, (i) an additional amount equal fo $198,750 in consideration for Mr. Fox's
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assistance in the orderly transition of his responsibilities, and (i) his annual incentive
compensation award in respect of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

Pursuant to the terms of their stock option agreements, in the event of a change in control
of the Company, all options then held by the execuiive officers of the Company become
automatically vested, to the extent not previously vested, as of the effective date of such
change in control.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Under the Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan, certain management employees may
elect, prior to the beginning of a year, to defer a portion of their annual compensation. Deferred
amounts are designated for investment at the election of the participant in shares of Commmon
Stock or other available investments, Certain participants, designated as “senior participants”,
who elect to invest deferred amounts in Common Stock are entitled to a matching contribution
by the Company equal to a percentage of the deferred amounts determined by the Company.
Matching contributions by the Company vest after a two-year period and are forfeited if the
participant does not remain in the employ of the Company during such two-year period. The
Company’s deferred compensation obligations are payable in cash and Common Stock based
on the cash balance in a participant’s account and the share balance of any portion of the
participant’s account designated for investment in such shares. Deferred compensation
obligations are payable to participants in a lump sum or in annual installments over a three, five,
ten or fifteen-year period, as provided in the plan.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mcmcgément

The following table sets forth certain information, based on the most recent filings made on
Schedule 13G with the SEC with respect to the shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by
stockholders reporting ownership of more than 5% of the shares of Common Stock issued and
outstanding as of such filing:

: : Number of Shares Percent
Beneficial Owner : Beneficially Owned of Class
FMR COMR. oo, R I 7.714,800¢" 6.39%

82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 02109

T. ROWE PrCe ASSOCIATES, INC. «vovveirer oo | 6,950,300®@ 5.7%
100 East Pratt Street
Baitimore, MD 21202

Wellington Management Company, LLP ..., 16,856,703 13.95%
75 State Street
Boston, MA 02109

(1) Based on its filing dated February 14, 2006. The stockholder has sole investment power with
respect fo the shares shown as beneficially owned by it. The stockholder has sole voting
power with respect to 445,500 shares and has no voting power with respect to the remaining
shares shown as beneficially owned by it.

(2) Baosed on its filing dated February 14, 2006. The stockholder has sole investment power with
respect fo the shares shown as beneficially owned by it. The stockholder has sole voting
power with respect to 446,800 shares and has no voting power with respect to the remaining
shares shown as beneficially owned by it.
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Based on its filing dated February 14, 2006, The stockholder has shared investment power with
respect to all of the shares shown as beneficially owned by it. The stockholder does not have
sole voting power with respect to any of the shares shown as beneficially owned by it, and has
shared voting power with respect to 12,816,875 shares shown as beneficially owned by it

The following table sefs forth, as of March 31, 2006, certain information with respect to the

shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by (i) each Director, (i) each of the persons for
whom individual compensation information is disclosed below under the heading "Executive
Compensation” and (i) all the Company’s Directors and executive officers as a group.

Number of
Exercisable Stock
Options Included

Number in Number of
of Shares Shares
Beneficially Percent Beneficially
Beneficial Owner Owned® of Class Owned®
Denis A, BOVIN oo 50,600 * 50,000
Robert J. Casale ... 45,000 * 45,000
ThOomM@As A, COOPEI .\ i e 146,200 * 57,475
Russell P. Fradin ... oo 792,263 * 400,000
Richard J. Haviland ...................... ST 26,000 * 25,000
Paula G. MCINBINEY ......o.oo i 91,492 * 15,000
Joseph J . Melone ..o 133,000 * 125,000
James L. FOX 11,393 * 0
JOhN M, HOWAOId .o 36,968 ¥ 5.000
JROberr Jones ... i e 922,828 * 663,492
Willicm W. Neville .................0s. e 456,667 * 427,544
William J. TomKo oo 375.293 i 328,725
Alt Directors and executive officers as a group
(T4 DEISONS) v vttt e 2,763,018 2.3% 1,813,511

*

M

@
©)

Less than 1%

Each perscn, other than Mrs. Mcinarney, has sole voting and investment power with respect
to the shares shown as beneficially owned. Mrs. Mclnerney is joint owner with her spouse of
76,492 shares shown as beneficially owned by her. Mr. Neville's beneficial ownership includes
2,380 shares owned by his children. For Messrs, Fradin, Fox, Jones, and Tomko, the number
of shares beneficially owned does not include the portion of their deferred compensation
designated for investment in shares of Common Stock under the Company’s Deferred
Compensation Plan. These shares are not beneficially owned until issued upon distribution
in accordance with that Plan. As of March 31, 2006, the number of vested shares of Common
Stock representing deferred compensation designated for investment in Common Stock by
each such person is as follows: Mr. Fradin (37.444); Mr, Fox (0), Mr. Howard (657); Mr, Jones
(77.573); Mr. Neville (7,278); and Mr. Tomko (13,291). ‘

Includes shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options exercisable within 60 days of
March 31, 2006.

Mr. Fox’s employment with the Company terminated on October 2, 2005. In accordance
with the Company’s 1999 Equity Participation Plan, Mr. Fox’s outstanding options were
cancelled on November 1, 2005,




Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table shows certain information - with respecT to the Company’s equity
compensohon plans as of June 30, 2005.

Number of securities
remaining available for
Weighted-average future issuance under
Number of securities to exercise price equity compensation

be issued upon exercise  of outstanding plans (excluding
of outstanding options, options, warrants, securities reflected in
warrants, and rights and rights column (a))
Plan Category (@ (b) ©
Equity compensation plans ' '
approved by security holders ..... . 12,651,286 $19.27 11,449,614
Equity compensation plans not '
approved by. security holders ... 50,2267 — 22,350
Total o 12,701,512 $19.27 11,471,964

(1) Represents shares of Common Stock contributed by the Company as matching employer
contributions to the accounts of certain participants in the Company’s voluntary executive
deferred compensation plan (*Deferred Compensation Plan™) and vested pursuant to the
provisions of such plan, based on the participant’s designated investment of deferred
compensation in shares of Common Stock. The material features of the Deferred
Compensation Plan are described in this report under the “EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION —
Deferred Compensation Plan.” The Deferred Compensation Plan is the only eguity
compensation plan of the Company not approved by security holders.

(2) Represents an estimate of the shares of Common Stock that may be contributed as
matching employer contributions to the accounts of certain current participants in the
Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan based on designated investments of participant
deferred compensation in-shares of Common Stock that may vest over the next two years.
The Deferred Compensation Plan does nof limit the number of shares available for matching
contributions. . :

ITEM 13. Certain Reldtionships and Related Transactions.

Mrs. Mclnemey is a director of the Compony and owns |nd|recT|y in excess of ten percenT
of the outstanding equity interests in Matrix Settiement & Clearance Services LLC (Matrix). Matrix
provides setflement and clearing services for frades made by participants in certain retirement
plans for which BISYS Retirement Services is the record keeper. During fiscal years 2005, 2004 and
2003, the Company incurred expenses of approximately $5.4 million, $4.7 million and $3.1 million,
respectively, for such services, These amounts represent in excess of five percent of Matrix’s
consolidated gross revenues for each of its last three fiscal years.

Mr. Bovin, is a director of the Company and serves as Vice Chairperson — Investment
Banking. and Senior Managing Director, Bear Stearmns & Co. Inc., a financial services firm that has
been the Company’s primary investment banking advisor for more than five years. The Company
has engaged Bear Stearns to provide financial advisory services in fiscal 2005 and 2006 and may
continue to do so in the future. Fees for financial advisory services provided by Bear Stearns in
fiscal 2005 approximated $1.0 million.

Information regarding indebtedness of management is incorporated by reference to Loans
to Executive Officers included in Part I, tem 11 of this Annual Report.
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ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The following sa summary of the fees billed to the Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
for professional services rendered for The fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004,

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004

Fee Category Fees Fees
CAUGITFEeS A $5,817,270 $2,423,933
Audit-Related Fees ........ e e e $1,227.830 $1,153,868
Tax Fees .............. e e e S 727,648 S 682,300
All OtherFees .............. I B PRI $ 4,791 $ 0
Total ool e $§7.777.539 84,260,101

e Auditfees consist primarily of fees for the audit of our annual financial statements and certain
proker-dealer audits and statutory audits. A substantial portion of the increase in audit-
related fees in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004 relates to additional work for the
restatement and audit work relating fo the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

o Audit-Related fees consist primarily of fees for service auditor reviews (i.e., SAS 70°s),
employee benefit plan audits, and accounting consulfations N connection
with acquisitions.

e Tax fees consist of fees for tax complionce, tax advice and tax planning.
+ Al other fees consist of fees for services other than the services described above.

The Audit Committee consid’ered and determined that the provision of non-audit services
by PricewaterhouseCoopers was compatible with. maintaining the firm’s independence.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of
Independent Auditors ‘

The Audit Commiftee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissitle non-audit services
provided by the independent registered public accounting firm. These services may inciude
audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. Pre-approval is generally
provided for up fo one year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or
category of services and is generally subject to a specific budget. The independent registered
public accounting firm and management are required to periodically report to the Audit
Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent registered public
accounting firm in accordance with this pre-approval, and the fees for the services performed
to date. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(@) Financial Statements

Our consclidated financial statements as of June 30, 2005 and 2004, and for each of the
three years in the period ended June 30, 2005, required to be filed as part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K are listed below with their location in this report,

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ..o 35
Consolidafted Statements of INCOME ... .o 39
Consolidated BAlANCe Sheets ........oo.vvviviverieiiieinnen, OO T T U TR SO 40
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows ............. PP T SUPSR 41
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EQuity ............ ET T R R TRy 42
Notes to Consolidated FINANCIAI SEATEMENTS ........coiviiteeeei et 44

(@)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All ﬁnoncidl statement schedules are omitted for the reason that they are either not
applicable or not required, or because the information required is contained in the consolidated
financial statements or notes thereto.

(@(3) Exhibits:

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of September 15, 2005 by and among Open
Solutions Inc., Husky Acquisition Corporation, The BISYS Group, Inc., and BISYS inc., as
previously amended on December 15, 20056, February. 28, 2006 and March 3, 2006
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Reports on Form 8-K
dated September 19, 2005, December 19, 2005, February, 28, 2006 and March 8, 2006.)

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The BISYS Group, Inc., as
amended by Certificates of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate
of Incorporation of The BISYS Group, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-@ for the quarterly period ended
December 31, 2001.)

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of The BISYS Group, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2005.)

4,1 Rights Agreement, dated as of May 8, 1997 (the "Rights Agreement”), by and between
The BISYS Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as Rights Agent (including the form of
Rights Certificate as Exhibit A). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 8-A
filed on May 8, 1997 with the SEC.)

4.2 Amendment to the Rights Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2002. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Form 8-A/A filed on September 26, 2002 with the SEC.)

4.3 Indenture, dated as of March 13, 2001, befwee~n The BISYS Group, Inc. and Chase
Manhattan Trust Company, National Association, as trustee. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 15, 2001.)

10.1  Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan, dated as of June 14, 2002.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003.)
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10.2

10.3
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-10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12~

21"
31.1*
31.2*
32*

Executive Life Insurance Plan, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.)

The BISYS Group, Inc. Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by
reference o Exhibit C to Registrant’s proxy statement for its 1999 annual meeting
of stockholders.)

The BISYS Group, Inc. 1999 Equity Participation Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit B to Registrant’s proxy statement for its 1999 annual meeting of stockholders.)

BISYS 401(k) Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.)

The BISYS Group, Inc. Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended. |
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.)

Executive Loan Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999.)

Credit Agreement dated as of January 3, 2006, by and among The BISYS Group, Inc.,
the lenders party thereto and SunTrust Bank, as Administrative Agent. (Incorporated
by reference o Exhibit 10.1 To the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 4, 2006.)

BISYS 2005 Annual Incentive Compensation Awards for Named Executive Officers
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 fo the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated August 10, 2005).

Separation Agreement and General Release, dated August 12, 2005, by and between
the Company and James L. Fox (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 10, 2005).

Form of Executive Separation Agreement entered into between the Company and
Its other named officers (other than the Chief Executive Officer) (Incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 10.3 1o the Regls‘rrom‘ s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
August 10, 2005).

Executive Separation Agreement dated February 2, 2004 entered into between the
Registrant and its Chief Executive Officer, Russell Fradin.

List of significant subsidiaries of The BISYS Group, Inc.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(q) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.
Section 1350 Certifications. |

*  Filed herewith,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
- the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized. ‘ :

The BISYS Group, Inc.

Date: April 25, 2006 | By: '/s/‘ Bruce D. Dqlziel
‘ Bruce D. Dalziel

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated
on the 25" day of April, 2006.

Sig‘ najure Title
/s/ Russell P, Fradin Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Russell P. Fradin) (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Bruce D. Daiziel Executive Vice President and Chief
(Bruce D. Dalziel) Financial Officer (Principal Financial

and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Robert J. Casale Director and Chairman of the Beard
(Robert J. Casale)

/s/ Denis A. Bovin Director
(Denis A. Bovin)

/s/ Thomas A. Cooper Director
(Thomas A, Cooper)

/s/ Richard J. Haviland Director
Richard J. Haviland)

/s/ Paula G. Mclrlefney Director
(Paula G. Mcinerney)

/s/ Joseph J. Melone Director
(Joseph J. Melone)
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Exhibit No.

10.12

21
311
31.2
32

INDEX TO EXHIBITS FILED HEREWITH

Description o
Executive Separation Agreement dofed Februory 2, 2004 entered into be’rween the
Registrant and its Chief Executive Officer, Russell Fradin. :

List of significant subsidiaries of The BISYS Group, Inc.

Rule 13a-14(0)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.
Section:1350 Certifications
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS, INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The BISYS Group, Inc.
105 Eisenhower Parkway
Roseland, NJ 07068
973-461-2500
www.Disys.com

ANNUAL REPORT AND OTHER REPORTS

The fiscal 2005 Annual Report is also available online under “Investor Relations” on The BISYS
Group, Inc.’s Web site at www.bisys.com. Our annual report on Form 10-K, gquarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy statement, other SEC filings, and amendments to
those reports, statements and filings are available, without charge, on The BISYS Group, Inc.’s
Web site as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed electronically with the SEC.

LISTING

New York Stock Exchonge under the symbol BSG

TRANSFER AGENT

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane
New York, NY 10038
866-668-6550

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, NY

BISYS® is a registered trademark
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